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Financial Summary

—ZEME  ZZTRE  ZEERE  ZZTHFE  ZBENF

HEBETIR HK$ Million 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
BRES Shareholders’ funds 7,721 8,649 9,316 9,229 8,173
RIEER Subordinated notes 972 3,290 3,480 5,148 5,672
EPER Deposits from customers 43477 58,354 67,279 79,084 82,361
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 8,452 7,713 8,768 8,843 4,655
Faes Total deposits 51,929 66,067 76,047 87,927 87,016
AEEE Total liabilities (including

(BREREER) subordinated notes) 63,571 80,844 92,701 106,692 104,192
XPER Advances to customers

(BEEESHZEE) (including trade bills) 33,007 45572 50,603 61,295 60,999
EESAE Total assets 71,312 89,517 102,037 115,940 112,386
BREMLEN Profit attributable to shareholders 1,119 979 1,196 800 189
2ERENK Total dividend distribution 561 565 652 373 168
BTl B HK$
FREARRF Basic earnings per share 1.29 1.06 1.28 0.86 0.20
BRERE Dividends per share 0.61 0.61 0.70 0.40 0.18
KB AR Percentage %
ERHER L% Loan to deposit ratio

(BIEE BTN (including certifcates

BFHE) of deposit issued) 63.7 69.0 66.5 69.7 70.1

2 AFRTEEMERALT
—ET\EER
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Financial Summary
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

John William Simpson

David Richard Hinde

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
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John William Simpson
David Richard Hinde
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
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Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICE

36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

Telex: 74063 DSB HX

S.W..LE.T.: DSBAHKHH

Web Site: http://www.dahsing.com

SECRETARY

Hoi-Lun Soo B.A. (Hons.), ACIS

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

MEVAS Bank Limited

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

(Please see pages 228 to 232 of this annual report for respective list of

branches.)
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
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(a) Board of Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Aged 68. Appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 2004. Chairman
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Bank,
Limited, MEVAS Bank Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company
Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, New Asian Shipping
Company, Limited and various other companies. Over 40 years of
experience in banking and finance. Member of the Advisory Committee
of the Securities and Futures Commission, the Hong Kong Association
of Banks, the Chinese Banks Association Limited and the Hong Kong
Shipowners Association. Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, an executive Director of
the Company, its key operating banking subsidiaries and the insurance

subsidiaries under DSFH.

Mr. John W. Simpson

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 68. Independent non-executive Director of the Company, Dah
Sing Bank, Limited and MEVAS Bank Limited. Had been a director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited from 1987 to June 2004 when its
banking business applied for separate listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Over 40 years of experience in banking and

finance.

Mr. David R. Hinde

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 70. Independent non-executive Director of the Company, Dah
Sing Bank, Limited and MEVAS Bank Limited. Had been a director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited from 1987 to June 2004 when its
banking business applied for separate listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Currently Chairman of Invesco Asia Trust
plc. and Macau Property Opportunities Fund Limited. Over 30 years of

experience in international investment banking.
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(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 68. Independent non-executive Director of the Company
appointed in 2004. Also an Independent non-executive Director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Currently the Chairman of the Audit
Committees, the Nomination and Remuneration Committees of both
the Company and DSFH, and a non-executive Director to a number of
Hong Kong listed companies. Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Also a former partner of an international

firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 58. Appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 2004 and of Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of
the Company, in 2006. Currently Legislative Councillor (Industrial First),
Chairman of the Hong Kong Productivity Council and the Vocational
Training Council. Honorary President of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and Textile Council of Hong Kong. He is also a Council
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and a member

of the Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 62. Appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company in August 2008 upon his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief
Executive Officer of Heidelberg China Limited. Over 39 years of
experience primarily in the Print Media Industry and with a sound

knowledge of the Asian markets, particularly in China.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Keisuke Tahara

Non-executive Director

Aged 51. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
March 2007. Currently Deputy General Manager of the Hong Kong
Branch of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“‘BTMU”). He joined
The Sanwa Bank Ltd. (how becomes BTMU after several mergers over
the past few years) in 1982. Expertise lies in the area of Corporate
Banking, Industrial Research and Corporate Planning activities. Over

27 years of experience in banking and finance.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

Managing Director and Chief Executive

Aged 56. Appointed the Managing Director of the Company in 2004.
Appointed as a Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited in 1993
and promoted as the Managing Director in January 2002. Joined Dah
Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the Company, in 1977
and has served and managed various departments before appointed
as a director of Dah Sing Bank in 1989 and was promoted as its
Managing Director in 2000. President of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. Director of
Great Wall Life Assurance Company Limited and Bank of Chongqing,
in which the Group has an interest in shares. Associate of The Institute
of Bankers (U.K.), Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Over

30 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)
Executive Director

Aged 59. Appointed an executive Director of the Company in 2004.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the Company, in
1986 and was appointed as an executive Director of Dah Sing Bank in
1995. Currently the Chief Executive and Director of Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A. incorporated in Macau. 30 years of experience in

banking.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Executive Director

Aged 48. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2004.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was promoted
as a Director of Dah Sing Bank in 1997. Also a Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited. Currently Group Finance Director
responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group. Qualified accountant, Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Over 20 years of experience in financial management mainly related to

banking.

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Executive Director

Aged 39. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2004.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 2000, and appointed as its executive Director in 2005.
Also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank, Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited
and Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited. Qualified solicitor in England
and Wales and Hong Kong. Son of David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman
of the Company and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited.

Mr. Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau

Executive Director

Aged 57. Appointed as an executive Director of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited in 2007. Also an executive Director of Dah Sing Bank,
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and MEVAS Bank, key operating
subsidiaries of the Company. Currently Head of Group Risk of the
Banking Group, responsible for the strategic direction, overall business
and risk policy, ongoing management and control of risk of the Banking
Group’s portfolio. Chartered Financial Analyst and Ph.D in Economics.
Member of Board of Trustees of Global Association of Risk
Professionals. 20 years of experience in governmental or
quasi-governmental departments in supervision of financial related

corporations.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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(b) Senior Management

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 41. Joined Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited in 1998 and
currently its executive Director. Also a Director of Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited,
Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, Dah Sing Bank and Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited. Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of Dah
Sing Bank responsible for its treasury and corporate finance activities.
Over 19 years of experience in financial services both in the U.K. and
Hong Kong.

Mr. John Cheung-Wah Lam
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank and MEVAS Bank

Aged 54. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and appointed as its executive Director in 2005 and as the
Head of Retail Banking Division responsible for retail banking business.
Also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank and
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Fellow of The Institute of
Canadian Bankers. Approximately 30 years of banking experience in
Hong Kong and North America.

Mr. Kwok-Leung Kwong (Thomas Kwong)
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 60. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and was appointed as its executive Director in 2007, and a
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008. Currently Head of
Commercial Banking Division in Dah Sing Bank, responsible for
overseeing and supervising commercial banking business and asset
based and trade financing. Over 30 years of experience in banking and
finance.

Mr. Xiaojiang Yan
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 54. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 2006. Appointed as an executive Director of Dah Sing
Bank in 2007, and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008, responsible
for the banking development, and branch supervision and management
in the Mainland China. 20 years of banking experience in Hong Kong
and China.

Note: Interests of Directors and Senior Management in shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations, if any, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2008 are disclosed in the “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” of the Report of the Directors as included in this 2008 Annual
Report of the Company.



R-ZZNFTHEE  BERERZEER
ERERL - GAPENERDBIER - X
BRIFEETEEE  HC2EBERR - L
AHOEME - A4RPIEE - KERF 2B
BREZBERE - MEH 2 X ZRRS B
BRAGETRESRIREE 2BTRZR
BINHERE -

BRI LRS- N EESFUAREE2REL
BR2BET  —ET)\FEEFEERDE
BHME - AEBRFEHFEN TR - KR
EISENR—BNTLAEEET  WEFAR
BAZETN  BFRBKRANDREFRE - R
BoaZt  HEREBERARKS  TE2HRMEE
BRI AR

AHBREEBEEMN TEED 2 tHE+T
BRATHLBEEET TEARKERMSWA
ZW2W - Wz E=F  mMSR - TEHRE
BEFURESX UL RE SR ERERBTE
S - R ERRBFRERBET=F
—THAEET  WEFEMEBDZN °

FA - AEEMRETKIEBERRTADZ=
i SAKREZAFKREZAN 2T R
M- BERXSR_ETNF+HABRTK  #(E
A LAB R {E A 10 2 L IR SN s 5T BAREE

FTERES
Chairman’s Statement

In the second half of 2008, economic conditions continued to
deteriorate, both in Hong Kong and globally. Whilst growth in
Mainland China remained positive, there were signs of a slowdown,
particularly in the export sector, despite the announcement of a
substantial stimulus package. Similarly, in Macau, the economy has
slowed significantly after several years of above trend growth.
Conditions in the banking sector globally have remained extremely
difficult, with bailouts of a number of major global financial
institutions having taken place.

Against this backdrop, with the increasingly likely outcome of the
first global recession for many years, our results for the full year
2008 were disappointing. The Group reported a decrease in profits
for the year, with profit attributable to shareholders of HK$189
million, a decrease of 76% compared with the previous year. Whilst
net interest income remained robust, growing by around 7%, fee
income was weak, principally due to reduced activity in the wealth
management business.

Profit before impairment charges was down by 14% to HK$1,459
million, due mainly to much weaker fee and commission income.
The major reason for the substantial reduction in profit was due to
sharp increases in overall impairment charges on loans, as well as
continued high impairment charges on securities investment over
the previous year. In aggregate, impairment charges for loans and
securities totalled HK$1,314 million, an increase of 8% compared
with the previous year.

During the year, we were pleased to complete the acquisition of a
further 3% in Bank of Chongqing, bringing our total shareholding to
20%. However, as the transaction was completed in October 2008,
we only recorded the additional contribution to our results for a
period of just over two months during the year.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Chairman’s Statement

BEREESRETRE #MATFFEERFK Lending volumes remained relatively flat. Whilst loan demand
HERXS  ~&EHE 1)3?:1# Tr?% R P AREZE weakened considerably in the second half of the year, we were able
%o BEAFEZERBBEE ST FEE to continue business to support our customers as appropriate, with
o Eﬂ@i MHREET I%’E  REEREFPER the result that aggregate loan volumes for the year were similar to
RBEZFHAEAD 2 ZIER - 2007. Despite the difficult market environment, our customer

deposits grew 4% year on year.

RFTIRIT (P R) BIR AR ABARFBITAFRE Dah Sing Bank’s wholly owned and locally incorporated subsidiary
WK~ WERERE 2HERIT BTN\ bank in China, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, commenced
FN ﬂ — B RRRUE o WM ERIT AR R RESER R business on 1 August 2008. This subsidiary bank is headquartered
I BRRINERE—FTX1T  RESHKR XK in Shenzhen, with a sub-branch in Shenzhen and a branch in
ﬁﬁ o Shanghai.

47 (P E) A PR 2 w5

€AY DA SINGBANK (CHINA) LIMITED
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*

The inauguration ceremony of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited on 5 December 2008 was attended by Mr. John C. Tsang (left 6), Financial Secretary
of the Government of the HKSAR, Mr. LU Rui Feng (right 5), Vice Mayor of The People’s Government of Shenzhen Municipality, Mr. Y.K. Choi (left 4),
Deputy Chief Executive of HKMA, Mr. Luan Feng (right 1), Deputy Director General of CBRC Shenzhen Office, Mr. Liu Xueqiang (right 4), Secretary
General of CPC Shenzhen Municipality Luohu District Committee, Mr. LiLin (right 3), Director General of Office of Financial Development Service of
the People’s Government of Shenzhen Municipality, Ms. Zheng Wei (right 2), Vice President of PBOC Shenzhen Central Sub-Branch, in addition to
Mr. David S.Y. Wong (left 7), the Chairman, and other directors of Dah Sing Groups including Messrs. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung (left 5), Derek Wong
(left 3), Keisuke Tahara (left 2) and John Wai-Wai Chow (left 1).
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Chairman’s Statement

Board of Directors

During the year, Mr. Seng-Lee Chan was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan
brings to the Board his rich expertise and insight, as well as a sound
knowledge in the Asian markets, particularly in China.

| would like to welcome Mr. Chan in joining the Board and believe
his expertise and extensive experience will be of value to the Group.

Future Prospects

Recent economic data has indicated that the current economic
downturn is likely to be one of the most severe in recent years.
Whilst the Mainland China economy continues to record healthy
rates of growth, and the stimulus measures announced recently are
expected to be supportive of the economy, it would not be prudent
to expect that this will overcome the more general global economic
slowdown entirely.

Therefore, our strategy into 2009 will be one of caution. However,
we must also be mindful that in times of adversity there are often
opportunities, and that in the medium to longer term we expect
that our market presence in Hong Kong, Mainland and Macau, and
the continued long term prospects for the China market will enable
us to continue to grow our business in future years.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support of our customers.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Financial Highlights

The highlights of the Group’s financial performance for the year are
summarised in the table below:
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2008 2007 Variance
HEE Net interest margin 2.11% 2.16%
BEAT HK$ Million
MR EFORERT Operating profit before
2B A loan impairments 1,459.0 1,690.4 -13.7%
ETRAEAREEEERZL Operating profit before gains or
&5 18 Bl 2 & & i K losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 800.5 1,509.6 -47.0%
1% 3R FE 1k S5 ) Profit attributable to shareholders 188.6 800.2 -76.4%
EFEXR Advances to customers 60,999 61,295 -0.48%
BEPFEX Customers’ deposits 82,362 79,083 4.15%
BEIT 2T RE Certificates of deposit issued 4,655 8,843 -47.4%
FREE Total deposits 87,017 87,926 -1.03%
BT 2ERE S Issued debt securities 2,804 2,795 0.31%
BIEEK Subordinated notes 5,672 5,148 10.2%
BEREERE R Loan to deposit (including
(BIEFHE) certificates of deposit) ratio 70.1% 69.7%
B ZN U A LY =R Cost to income ratio 51.6% 43.0%
A 75 o Financial Review
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2008 was one of the most challenging years for financial services
businesses in recent decades. Against the backdrop of a severe
financial crisis and rapid slowdown in the global economy, the
Group, affected by deterioration in the credit quality of our loan
book, and mark-to-market losses and impairment charges in the
securities investment portfolios during the year, reported much
weaker results in 2008, although pre-impairment operating profit
was down by only 14%.

Net interest income in the year increased by 7%, mainly contributed
by a higher balance of other interest earning assets despite a flat
loan book for 2008. Both the yield of loans and interest earning
assets, and the funding cost decreased in response to the lower
market interest rates. Our net interest margin decreased to 2.11%,
compared with 2.16% in 2007.
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Review of Operations

Financial Review (Continued)

Despite improved treasury performance with increase in net trading
income mainly derived from higher foreign exchange trading gains
and fair value gains on financial instruments, non-interest income
fell by 10% during the year due to a weaker performance in net fee
and commission income, reflecting the softening of demand for
investment and securities broking products and services in the
second half of the year.

The higher growth in net interest income and net trading income,
although offset partially by the decline in net fee and commission
income, brought to net increase in operating income by 2%.

Operating expenses for our core business were broadly unchanged
from the previous year, although together with additional one-off
expenses during the second half of the year, total operating
expenses increased by 22% relative to 2007.

Operating profit before impairment charges was HK$1,459 million,
down 14% relative to 2007.

Credit quality deteriorated significantly, mainly due to increased bad
debts in our commercial banking business, and particularly related
to customers in the trade, manufacturing and export sectors. Whilst
impairment charges relating to our retail banking business increased
somewhat, the rate of increase was relatively milder than that for
the commercial banking segment.

With a much higher level of operating expenses and a significant
increase in loan impairment charges, our Group’s operating profit
after operating expenses and loan impairment in the year was
HK$800 million, 47% down from 2007.

There were also a significant losses relating to our securities
investments, mainly caused by the bankruptcy of Washington
Mutual Bank, as well as further markdowns on our remaining
holdings in the leveraged/structured investment portfolio, which has
now been marked down, on a cumulative basis, by 91% to a
carrying value of HK$146 million at the end of 2008. Moreover, profit
in the year was further depressed by the valuation deficit on our
investment properties. Decrease in the values of our investment
properties at the end of the year brought to us a net revaluation
loss of HK$79 million, against the revaluation gain of HK$182 million
in 2007.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Financial Review (Continued)

We completed the acquisition of a further 3% interest in the Bank
of Chongging (“BOCQ”) in late October 2008, taking our total
investment to 20%. Principally due to the strong performance of
BOCAQ, and also with the full year effect of our investment in 2008,
our share of results of associate increased to HK$121 million for
the year, an increase of 67% over 2007, despite only accounting for
the increased contribution from the additional 3% stake in BOCQ
for a little over two months.

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Group decreased by 76%
to HK$189 million.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s total gross loans and
advances amounted to HK$61 billion, broadly flat relative to the
end of 2007. Portfolio composition did not change very significantly
during the year, although trade finance dropped by around 17%
reflecting the overall reduction in trade volumes and exports caused
by the global economic slowdown, particularly in the second half of
the year.

Customers’ deposits totaled HK$82.4 billion, representing an
increase of around 4% over the previous year. The aggregate
balance of certificates of deposit issued decreased by 47%,
reflecting a much more difficult debt and money market for new
issues in 2008. The loan to deposit ratio as at 31 December 2008
was 70%, broadly unchanged relative to the end of 2007.

Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the retail banking, VIP
banking and private banking market segments of Hong Kong and
Macau, encountered one of the most challenging years in our history
during 2008. With lower operating income, higher operating
expenses and higher loan impairment charges, profit before tax was
73% lower than 2007.

The lower operating income was attributable to lower net interest
income caused mainly by lower margins on customer deposits
especially during the second half of 2008, and lower fee and
commission income earned especially on lower sales of wealth
management products and lower investment trading volumes by
customers. With a slowdown in the local economy and rise in
unemployment particularly in the second half year, a modest
deterioration in asset quality was noted in our unsecured retail
lending portfolio, and a higher level of loan impairment charge in
the year was recorded.
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Personal Banking (Continued)

Against the more challenging operating environment, we pursued a
more cautious business and lending strategy, with the result that
overall loans to individual customers contracted by close to 2%
when compared with 2007, and was mainly caused by a lower
residential mortgage loan balance, reflecting our less active pursuit
of new lending in this business when mortgage loan margins were
tight, especially in the first half year.

During the year, we continued to promote credit card and unsecured
personal loan businesses with a series of programs to bring to our
customers more benefits and product varieties. We also
strengthened our retail securities trading services by expanding and
upgrading securities trading centres in some of our branches.

Our focus on expanding the retail deposit customer base and efforts
to strengthen our customer deposits brought to us a notable
increase over 2007 in the customer deposit balance of our Personal
Banking business.

The collapse of Lehman Brothers in September 2008 caused
significant and adverse fallout to the global financial market, and
also a far-reaching impact to many retail banks and retail investors
in Hong Kong having distributed and bought Lehman Brother-
related investment products respectively in the past few years. We
have devoted a large amount of resources to address issues arising
from this incident, including handling customer complaints and
regulatory investigations.

As of the end of 2008, our branch network includes 48 retail
branches in Hong Kong under the name of Dah Sing Bank and
MEVAS Bank, and 14 branches in Macau under Banco Comercial
de Macau, and one subsidiary private bank in Guernsey, Channel
Islands providing offshore private banking services.

Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking, which includes trade finance, commercial
lending, syndicated lending, equipment finance and vehicle finance,
reported a much lower profit before tax relative to 2007.

Overall loan balance under Commercial Banking businesses was
flat on 2007, with growth in property lending and vehicle finance
offset by contraction in trade finance and equipment finance
balances. A mild contraction in customer deposits from our
commercial customers was recorded in the year.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Commercial Banking (Continued)

Despite the much higher net interest income earned in the year, the
operating performance of our Commercial Banking businesses in
2008 was significantly affected by the rapid deterioration in asset
quality in the second half of 2008 caused by a drastic slowdown in
global demand, trade and manufacturing activities. With the much
higher loan impairment charges incurred, Commercial Banking’s
profit contribution was significantly lower than the previous year.

Cashflow difficulties and the decline in the value of collaterals for
some of our commercial customers resulted in notable increases in
impaired assets and individual impairment losses. Against the
unfavourable market conditions, we had implemented measures to
further tighten our credit criteria and monitoring, and step up our
collection actions.

Treasury

In response to the deterioration in the global financial crisis and
weakening in market confidence in the year, our Treasury in 2008
increased its focus on liquidity and counterparty risk management.

Our Treasury division generated an overall loss in 2008. Despite the
stronger core operating results driven mainly by higher net interest
income, Treasury’s operating performance was adversely affected
by the global financial crisis in general and specific impairment loss
recognised on securities investments, including the bankruptcy of
Washington Mutual Bank, impairment and fair value losses on
externally managed leveraged/structured investment vehicles
managed by third party portfolio managers. The Group’s US$200
million investment in structured investment vehicles was written
down to HK$146 million as of the end of 2008, after a further charge
of HK$377 million in 2008.

New surplus funds investments in year were much more selective
and were made mainly in short-term and high-quality treasury bills
and debt securities, including government guaranteed securities.

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”)

BCM in 2008 achieved moderate loan and deposit growth, but
reported a drop of 40% in net profit relative to 2007. BCM’s less
than satisfactory operating results in the year was caused mainly
by a lower net interest income with a tighter net interest margin,
and higher loan and securities impairment losses.
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Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”) (Continued)

Macau’s economic growth in the second half of 2008 recorded a
significant slowdown when compared with the first half, resulting in
a full year GDP growth of around 13%, much lower than the growth
of 25% in 2007.

Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a wholly owned new
subsidiary locally incorporated in China, commenced business on
1 August 2008 after receiving all regulatory approvals. DSB China
initially focuses on commercial banking businesses and is operating
with its headquarters in Shenzhen together with a sub branch, and
another branch in Shanghai. DSB China will shortly expand its
branch network in China with the addition of more branches in other
cities in China.

DSB China was profitable in its first year of operation and reported
a small net profit in 2008.

MEVAS Bank

MEVAS Bank, the separately branded Hong Kong banking
subsidiary under the Group focusing on the personal banking sector,
recorded a significant drop in net profit in 2008 as result of lower
operating income, higher operating expenses and the recognition
of a property revaluation deficit charge.

Bank of Chonggqing

After our acquisition of an initial 17% interest in Bank of Chongqing
(“BOCQ”) in April 2007, we are pleased to report that Dah Sing
Bank received regulatory approvals during 2008 to increase our
interest in BOCQ by another 3% to a total of 20%, which was
completed in October 2008

BOCQ is the leading city commercial bank in Chongging, the largest
city in Western China, and is operating with a branch network of
over 70 branches. BOCQ’s total assets, as of 31 December 2008,
driven mainly by loan and treasury asset growth, reached RMB56.4
billion, up 26% relative to 2007. Net profit for the year ended 31
December 2008 was RMB655 million, up 18% on 2007.

The Group’s share of BOCQ net profit, on equity accounting basis,
amounted to HK$121 million in the year, an increase of 67% over
2007.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Risk Management and Compliance

The unfolding of the subprime crisis to a full-blown financial crisis,
with far-reaching and tumultuous impacts to the global economy in
the second half of 2008, was of such a scale that few could have
predicted. The significant stress and near meltdown in the financial
market during the course of 2008, and the rapidity and scale of
government intervention with substantial liquidity and capital
support, were unprecedented since the Second World War.

In the light of the severe financial turmoil and new challenges, the
Group had undertaken review of its risk management system and
business strategies pursued in the past few years, and adopted
more cautious business strategies particularly in respect of the
Group’s treasury and lending businesses. The Group will continue
to improve its risk management practices, taking into consideration
new regulatory guidance and market development.

During the year, we continued to strengthen our compliance
function, and promoted added compliance awareness and best
practices in all our key businesses and operations, riding on the
themes communicated in our first group-wide compliance
conference held at the end of 2007 to promote communication and

2o sharing of our Group’s increased emphasis on compliance and
internal control.
AR KA 4 Capital and Liquidity
—EENFE —ZTTLF
2008 2007
MIEBIRTT < & OrE AN EE Combined Capital base of
(LABEBE T banking subsidiaries
-R+=ZA=+—H” (HK$ million) — at 31 December
— ZLER - Core capital 5,175 6,102
— ¥ pnE A — Supplementary capital 5,174 4,309
HR &2 BRERE @R Total capital base after deductions* 10,349 10,411
BEARFTEEE Capital adequacy ratio
— &z - Core 6.8% 9.1%
— B — Overall* 13.6% 15.5%
MBES X (FETFT) Liquidity ratio (average for the year) 48.9% 52.4%
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Capital and Liquidity (Continued)

*

The total combined capital base as at 31 December 2008 shown above
includes the consolidated capital base of Dah Sing Bank (“DSB”)
calculated on a regulatory consolidation basis specified by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”). The total combined capital base as at 31
December 2007 includes the capital base of DSB, which was stated after
adjusting for capital deduction in respect of DSB’s investment in Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) (a reporting basis agreed with the
HKMA prior to 2008). The risk weighted exposures of BCM were not
included in the combined risk weighted exposures of the Group’s banking
subsidiaries in computing the capital adequacy ratio for 2007, whereas
the risk weighted exposures of BCM and Dah Sing Bank (China) were
included in the aggregate combined risk weighted exposures of the
Group’s banking subsidiaries in computing the capital adequacy ratio as
at 31 December 2008.

With higher unrealised mark-to-market losses on available-for-sale
securities held by Dah Sing Bank as a result of the deterioration in
the global credit market, and pursuant to the clarification from the
HKMA relating to deduction of such unrealised losses from core
capital rather than supplementary capital for locally incorporated
authorized institutions in Hong Kong, the combined capital base,
and therefore, capital adequacy ratio of the Group’s banking
subsidiaries, were depressed in 2008.

The Boards of Directors of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) and DSB, on
25 March 2009, resolved to repurchase and cancel the US$52
million subordinated note issued by DSB to DSFH in 2008, for DSFH
to lend a total of HK$1 billion to DSBG on normal commercial terms,
and for DSBG to use the proceeds of the loan to subscribe for a
total of HK$1 billion new equity issued by DSB. These capital
actions, including the HK$1 billion equity injection to DSB, were
concluded on 25 March 2009. If these actions were to be considered

MARFRITIEE S HTEAET - MEIEET as having taken effect on 31 December 2008, the proforma capital
REERAER_ZEEN\F+_A=+—B4% position would be as follows:
EEBEERRRAT -

—EENF+=-A=+—8 (E=Z)
NER= - i1y HK$ million 31 Dec. 2008 (Proforma)
ZOE AR Core capital 6,175
Mgz EARERAERE Total capital base after deductions 11,567
BEARFTRIEE Capital adequacy ratio
— &z - Core 8.1%
— B - Overall 15.2%

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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Capital and Liquidity (Continued)

With our pool of liquid assets including cash and placements with
banks, and diversified marketable securities held for investment and
liquidity purposes, we continued to operate at prudent and high
levels of liquidity, and a sound level of liquidity ratio throughout the
year.

DSB’s long-term credit ratings, at “A3” and “A-" assigned by
Moody’s and Fitch respectively, were affirmed in 2008.

Human Resources

To improve the quality, skills and compliance awareness of our staff,
and to ensure sufficient professional training of our front-line staff
particularly in relation to banking services and securities business
continued to be our training and development objectives in 2008. A
new talent management initiative was launched in the year to
reinforce our talent development commitment for the long-term
competitiveness of the Group. We also continued our graduate
trainee development programme, and are pleased to note that the
programme has proved its success with highly motivated young
talents steadily progressing over the past few years to take up
managerial positions.

We are pleased to have been recognised again by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Services as one of the leading Hong Kong caring
employers, a recognition we achieved consecutively over the past
seven years.

In 2008, we continued our work to improve the service excellence,
teamwork, caring and trust culture throughout the organization.
Personal support and counseling services as well as crisis
management training were provided to staff-in-need through our
employee assistance program. Our staff social club continued to
promote staff and family well-being, and organized different social
and sports activities to help promote staff benefits, affinity,
friendship and health.

The Group’s headcount increased as a result of our business
development and increasing demand for human resources to
strengthen our capabilities mainly in China business. The total
number of employees of our Group, including our staff in Macau
and China, increased from 1,828 at the end of 2007 to 1,891 at the
end of 2008.
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Corporate governance practices

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance,
and follows all of the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”).

This report is issued in accordance with Appendix 23 of the Listing
Rules, and explains how the Company applies the provisions set out in
the Code.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted on 23 March 2009 a revised code for
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
prevailing required standard set in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the Directors of the
Company confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year 2008.

The Board of Directors
(1)  The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
so as to promote its success and continued growth. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company has sound systems of risk
management, internal control and regulatory compliance. The Directors,
collectively and individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board sets
the business objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution

of those objectives by the management of the Company.

(2)  Board composition and meetings

The Board is made up of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, five
executive directors including the Chief Executive, one non-executive
director, and five independent non-executive directors. Brief

biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to 10.

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at approximately

quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as necessary.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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The Board of Directors (Continued)
(2)  Board composition and meetings (Continued)

The following table sets out the attendance record of each director at
the board meetings held in 2008:

Number of Board meetings in 2008 8

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze 8/8 100%
John William Simpson 5/8 63%
David Richard Hinde 5/8 63%
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 7/8 88%
Seng-Lee Chan (appointed on 18/08/2008) 3/4 75%

Non-Executive Directors
Keisuke Tahara 7/8 88%

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong 8/8 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 8/8 100%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 8/8 100%
Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) 7/8 88%
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 8/8 100%
Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau 8/8 100%
Average attendance rate 89%

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give all
directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the
Company Secretary, in writing, and at least seven days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept
by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committee,
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice

by any director.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)
(2)  Board composition and meetings (Continued)

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. In
circumstances where directors believe that independent advice is
needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive in the first instance with their request. No such request will
be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive will endeavour to identify and engage an appropriate

professional adviser at the expense of the Company.

All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running the
Group to the executive management, and has delegated responsibility
for certain matters to a number of committees, which are described
more fully in the following sections. There are a number of matters which
require the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated to
the committees of the Board or the executive management. These

reserved matters include:

° Transactions that a substantial shareholder or a director has a

conflict of interest;

° Material acquisitions or disposals (i.e. an amount that exceeds
10% of the lower of the Company’s net asset value or market

capitalisation at the relevant time);

° Material investments or disposal of investments (except for
normal investment or dealing in securities in the ordinary course

of deploying the surplus funds of the Group);
o Any material change in the nature of the Group’s business;
° Appointment of new directors;
° Approval of relevant policies; and
° Approval of annual budget.

The Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal

action against its directors.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008



PERERHE
Corporate Governance Report

JiE B AT BLA

AARRAHEGCEECESEMEIZER : £
SrEERHEBCARER - ESSEEWE
DEAEARERE ) R AR 2 T - e E
BARATZHL 2 R - Bt - FEETHE
FHEBTRBHEZERLE AAREEE TH
A WEBAEEe B FFITELEFS
HIEEEEAG  URREZTSASEERET
HEF FREARKEESESUEEESR
KRR - THAHRBEARRIZBEER A
REBEB 2 FREEEG M RABEBK
g ReERREERERABERRS -

FEPATHE F

RRARA—MFERITEETRAMUBIIENTE
F o RBIUFATEEHER EMARBIFEIA3K
Ziﬁir‘ﬂzﬁ AIEREB M -

IEMITEE NIRIEEAHMEREE - HaBiRE
o FRTESEPRFHERERIB =F—
RZEESRTEIRHE— -

FRTES NHEMBEFENE  BBTHER
NEBSERRER  BMAOAERGE - BEHNE
REBTRABEEREE  REFGRHEZHEZE
MEZEeWRER - RELNFEEHMMEHESS
G URBHEARTZBRRAE MRS
RE - FATEFTEBREBY - ERRERA
BER  ARERARZRERERERELERE
B o

26 AFRTEEERAT

—TR\EER

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power
and authority, so that no one individual should have unfettered powers
of decision. The roles and objectives of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-
Yeh Wong, and the Chief Executive, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong),
are therefore separated and have been approved by the Board. The
Chairman mainly provides leadership for the Board to ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Company to provide business direction and operational leadership
for the benefit of the Group’s businesses, enhance shareholder value

and ensure sound internal control.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has one non-executive director and five independent
non-executive directors. Each of the independent non-executive
directors has provided to the Company confirmation of independence

as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The term of appointment of non-executive directors is
normally for a term which coincides with their expected dates of

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive directors, as equal Board members, give the Board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance
and active participation. They attend regular and special Board
meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or special meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The non-executive directors make
a positive contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and informed

comments.
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors
Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management of the
Company, and require that such appointments are made after

deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its role
and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is responsible, among
other things, for the review of the nomination of new directors, approval
of the remuneration of directors and senior management. The majority
of the members are independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference for the Committee are available for inspection at the

Company’s registered office.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held two meetings in
2008. The current members of the Committee and their attendance

records in 2008 are set out below:

Number of meetings held in 2008 2

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 2/2 100%
John William Simpson 2/2 100%
David Richard Hinde 1/2 50%
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 2/2 100%
David Shou-Yeh Wong 2/2 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 2/2 100%
Average attendance rate 92%

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors (Continued)
Remuneration of Directors (Continued)
The work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2008

included:

= Determining and approving the bonus and remuneration levels

for executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing the nomination of directors to the Board and senior

management of the Company and of the Group
The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages commensurate with market terms, and is based on business
needs, expertise and quality of the individual, and industry practice.
For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages
of executive directors:
- Business needs and performance
- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s

responsibility

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be

involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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Auditors’ Independence and Remuneration

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for

performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when the
Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the independence
and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external auditors can be

maintained. Otherwise, professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC during the year provided the
Group non-audit services by rendering regulatory compliance review
services, review of tax returns and computation, tax advisory services,
review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure based on agreed-upon
procedures, and review of the update of offering circular of the US$2

Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme of Dah Sing Bank, Limited.

Details of the fees payable to PwC for the year for audit and audit-

related services are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established by the Board of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the directors have exercised the
care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate

accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The Committee
reviews and monitors the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards.

The Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including significant financial

reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements.

The Committee reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its
finding and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below, whilst for risk management,
these are shown in the Supplementary Financial Information under Risk
management and described with appropriate financial quantification in
the Financial risk management sections as notes to the annual financial

statements.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available for

inspection at the Company’s registered office.

The members of the Committee are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Mr. John William Simpson and Mr. David Richard Hinde. All the
members of the Committee are independent non-executive directors
with extensive experience in banking, finance and business
management. The Committee’s chairman, Mr. Sze, is a qualified
accountant and was a partner of a predecessor firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. None of the other committee
members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the former or

existing external auditors of the Company.
The Committee members meet at least three times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit and the

external auditors. In 2008, a total of four meetings were convened.

The attendance record of individual directors at the Audit Committee

meetings in 2008 is set out below:

Number of Audit Committee meetings in 2008 4

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 4/4 100%
John William Simpson 4/4 100%
David Richard Hinde 3/4 75%
Average attendance rate 92%

To enable directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of
the Audit Committee, the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are
included in the board papers of regular board meetings sent to

directors.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during

2008 in discharging its responsibilities:

Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2007 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2008 Interim
Report;

Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2007 audit and financial

statements;

Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2007 for inclusion

in the Company’s 2007 annual report;

Review of an update and discussion on the valuation and
accounting issues on certain structured investments held by the

Group;

Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion revised and dealt with by the Audit
Committee in the second half of 2007 and the first half of 2008;

Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of

external auditors;

Review of the findings and recommendations of the external

auditors;

Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;
Review and approval of internal audit plan;

Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations;

Review of reports on applicable compliance and regulatory
matters and adoption of the minutes of the meetings of the

Compliance Committee;

Review of update from Group Risk on the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”)’s examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s

recommendations; and
Review and approval of the internal audit charters of Dah Sing
Bank’s banking subsidiaries.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to develop
and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal control
system, operating through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended to allow the Board
to monitor the Group’s business performance and financial positions,
to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business practices,
to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against fraud and errors, to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to provide
oversight and guidance to management in achieving the Company’s
objectives. However, it should be recognized that the Group’s internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute,

assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an

effective internal control system are as follows:

° A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-

defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

° Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest

rate risks, operational risk and compliance risks.

° Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management committees
including the Executive Committee. Actual performance results
against budgets are closely monitored. The Board reviews the

Group’s business and financial performance on a quarterly basis.

° Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering), staff training,
IT development, IT governance and information security, business
continuity planning, financial control (including accounting,
regulatory reporting, financial reporting to comply with regulatory
and financial reporting standards, management accounting and
budget control, reconciliation of accounts), and system of
management oversight including the operations of various
functional committees.
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Internal Controls (Continued)

° The independent internal audit function monitors compliance with
management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal control
reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits and
operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency
and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head of Internal
Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the

Executive Committee.

° The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to the Board via the Risk
Management Committee and the Executive Committee, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality in the portfolio of the
Group’s businesses with due consideration of a proper risk and

return balance.

° The Group’s banking business is working on the upgrade of its
risk management framework and capabilities to progress toward
the implementation of the more sophisticated risk management
practices under the Basel Il capital accord, with the banking group
starting on the basis of standardised approach for regulatory
capital reporting and management commencing 2007. This
development will contribute to enhance the overall risk

management and internal control process of the Group.

° The Group’s Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability of
compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing and
guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure compliance
with all statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines. The
Legal and Compliance Division of the Group performs an
independent on-going monitoring role on the Group’s compliance

with relevant rules and regulations.
Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the Board
has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
executive management, and the findings of both internal and external

auditors.

The 2008 reviews included an annual assessment of internal control
system with reference to the provisions of the Code regarding internal
controls. Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s
Internal Audit in the year conducted an assessment covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management practices.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.
Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“Company”) is banking investment holding. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries are shown in Note 32 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the reporting period by business and geographical
segments are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 49.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.18 per share,
amounting to HK$167,896,596 which was paid on 18 September 2008.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
shown in Note 46 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 47 to the financial statements.
Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$654,000.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown in

Note 34 to the financial statements.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman
*John William Simpson
*David Richard Hinde
*Robert Tsai-To Sze
*Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

*Seng-Lee Chan
(appointed 18 August 2008)

Keisuke Tahara

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

Managing Director and Chief Executive
Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau

* Independent non-executive Directors

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
David Shou-Yeh Wong, Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau, John William Simpson
and Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung retire by rotation and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Seng-Lee Chan will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors, and
the Company still considers all the independent non-executive Directors

to be independent.

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive

At 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
have taken on were deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
and the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction

adopted by the Company were as follows:
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B AT AR A () Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)
B ARAR A W) R AR BB A B PR Z B4 e 2 a) Interests in shares of the Company and associated
corporation

FEERSG

HEBE#T

RAFD L

Percentage

of share

BHEE interest

Number of shares in the

BARER EEER HiEs BitER relevant

Personal Corporate Other Total issued

EE Director Interests Interests!" Interests Interests  share capital
BEXQATEREE Number of ordinary shares of
18 L B B R HK$1 each in the Company

IFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 699,169,170 - 699,169,170 74.96

BEANEREEERAR Number of ordinary shares of
SREE2E TN BRE G HK$2 each in Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited

5% David Shou-Yeh Wong - 5,367,695 94,909,4119 100,277,106 38.53
Iy i3 John William Simpson 10,0001 - - 10,000 0.00
HEEXC Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) 38,800 - - 38,800 0.02

e Notes:

1. BEEEBERDIEREEE =S 2K 1. The corporate interest is in respect of shares held by a company in
A ERRARFFA RS ° which the director has an interest of one third or more.

2. RZZEENF+ZA=1+—RH2zRHA - 2. Such shares in the Company represent the corporate interest of
AEFELEERERNEREEBR AR David Shou-Yeh Wong under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his
(TR#£rt)) 100,277,106 B 25 A1 4 beneficial interest in 100,277,106 ordinary shares of Dah Sing
= (HIEE 1T AR38.53% + EMik Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), representing 38.53% of its
FH R EEEOIEXVE N ERWRIEES entire share capital currently in issue as at 31 December 2008 being
KRR 2 EE R - the record date.

3. WEAFERBMDIIBREFERERE 3. Such shares in DSFH are indirectly held by HSBC International
ML 2 2REEEXTEAREERE Trustee Limited, a trustee of a discretionary trust established for
SABERARBERE - the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family.

4. WEAFTCRBRMIBFEEELEREE 4. Such shares in DSFH are jointly owned by John William Simpson
THRHEE - and his wife.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation
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i)

Share option scheme of the Company

The Share Option Scheme (“DSBG Option Scheme”) of the
Company was initially approved by Dah Sing Financial Holdings

Limited (“DSFH”), being the sole shareholder of the Company, on
12 June 2004. With the approval of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”), the terms of the DSBG Option Scheme

as disclosed in the Company’s initial public offering prospectus

remained valid after its public listing commencing from 30 June

2004.

Summary of DSBG Option Scheme disclosed in accordance with

the Listing Rules are as follows:

(1)

Purpose of DSBG Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSBG Option Scheme is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the

Group’s business and growth.
Participants of DSBG Option Scheme:

Eligible participants of DSBG Option Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
DSBG and its subsidiaries.

Total number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2008:

The number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme is 38,995,000 shares, representing 4.18%
of the issued share capital of DSBG as at 31 December
2008.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSBG

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming

entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when

RESEE BB T (@A HEE aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
BEFETRANBES Z2— @ AT EE or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
BT REE - EE— PR TFTaRE the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of

ﬁEZ wuHX*E?%LTj(*ﬁfE‘TT% =] WUHX
RSBl I5R - REDKET 2 £
RANBEE o
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relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSBG Option Scheme and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)
i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(5)  Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company and is specified when related options are
granted, but shares under the options must be taken up
within 10 years from the date of grant. All the existing share
options under the DSBG Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in varying amounts between the
first and up to sixth anniversaries from the date of grant, or

in a shorter period as the case may be.

(6)  Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one

year from the date of grant.

(7)  Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.
(8) Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of
the Listing Rules and is calculated as the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of
the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(9) Remaining life of DSBG Option Scheme:

DSBG Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 12 June 2004 and

expiring at the close of 11 June 2014.

Pursuant to the Company’s Option Scheme, certain directors of

the Company and its major operating subsidiaries were granted

options under the Company’s Option Scheme. Details of the share

options outstanding as at 31 December 2008 which have been

granted under the Company’s Option Scheme are as follows:

AREEZ 2 ALARMEA

Number of the Company's shares in the options

RZZENF ZERNER RIBENE
-A-A ZEBENFR ZBINER  AMW/EE tZASt-H il
%5 R fif Lapsed/ b F] fTiEE" Exercise period
Held at Granted  Exercised  cancelled Heldat  Exercise RFAH # Z
ARA Grantee 1/1/2008  during 2008  during 2008  during 2008  31/12/2008 price”  Grant date From To
gt (B/AE)  (RIAE)  (RIAE)
HKS  @my) @my) (G
gz Directors
BEX Lung-Man Chiu
(John Chiu) 250,000 - - - 250,000 16.70  25/11/2004  25/11/2005  25/11/2010
L Frederic
Suet-Chiu Lau 250,000 - - - 250,000 14.40 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
Easge Aggregate of
Employees? 300,000 - - - 300,000 14.40 25/8/2005 26/8/2006 25/8/2011
250,000 - - - 250,000 1432 30/12/2005  30/12/2006  30/12/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.30 25/9/2006 25/9/2007 25/9/2012
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2010
250,000 - - - 250,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2013
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

() Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) ARIRE]ZRIRIERZ (&) i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

[ Notes:

1. BEET2TEEDNBRIRRIT EMRAE 1. The exercise prices for each tranche of granting was determined in

17.03(9)fk - 2E RHIRITREBA ()ER
THRBMIMEREZWME B ERT
BRI AER S A RERAEE 2 R
B MEATZERSEMEE - E&RTH
AIARBBRDETELT

accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on
the SEHK for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the respective dates of grant are set out below:

RTYAAAHBRTEERS
REEXZFzWmE

Closing price

®¥H TEE of the Company’s shares on the SEHK
Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant
(B/A/%) BT BT
(d/m/y) HK$ HK$
25/11/2004 16.70 16.60
25/8/2005 14.40 14.15
30/12/2005 14.32 14.35
25/9/2006 17.30 17.04
19/7/2007 17.84 17.58
2. RADBRBERBE_ZTZ\F+_A=+ 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph and particulars and movements

— AL FEARRERTTRRIEZ 28 Mt
& BIARRRARTFARAEIELEMBER
A=ZREFREERRITHRABZRR
g WABTERFBGIERT EEAH]
TEWRE °

Z—EZM} BRSBTS - WEARARER
REAEA LR Z SR -

{‘EZ’K/& wu\HX$§u+2lT IHEH—JZ’K
AN ER B 6 78 i 2 AR A 4 J*?ﬁi%#$w
o

BE_ZZN\F+_A=t+—HLFE
BHRBENEER

HE_ZZN\F+-_A=+—HLLFEFM
BERBEZ BEETFBHENMBEHRE
MEES5T ©

during the year ended 31 December 2008 of the Company’s
outstanding share options which were granted to 3 directors and 4
senior executives of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries
and are working under employment contracts that are regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

None of the grantees under the Company’s Option Scheme were
granted share options exceeding respective individual limits.

No share options under Company’s Option Scheme were granted

to the Company’s or the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2008:

Details of the computation of value of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2008 are shown in Note 51 to the financial
statements.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings

Limited, the holding company of the Company

The shareholders of DSFH approved to adopt the new Share
Option Scheme (“DSFH Option Scheme”) on 28 April 2005.

Summary of DSFH Option Scheme disclosed in accordance with

the Listing Rules are as follows:

M

Purpose of DSFH Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSFH Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, DSFH

group of companies.
Participants of DSFH Option Scheme:

Any director of, manager of, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in, DSFH
group of companies as the Board may in its sole discretion
determine to be eligible to participate in DSFH Option
Scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2008:

The number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme is 9,580,462 shares, representing 3.68%
of the issued share capital of DSFH as at 31 December
2008.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSFH

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSFH Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.
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Report of the Directors

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings

Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

(5)  Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH
and is specified when related options are granted, but
shares under the options must be taken up within 10 years
from the date of grant. All the existing share options under
DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in
varying amounts between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.

(6)  Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSFH and is specified when related options are
granted. None of the existing share options under DSFH
Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one year from

the date of grant.

(7)  Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.

(8) Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSFH in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules and is calculated as the higher of (i) the closing
price of DSFH shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of DSFH shares
traded on the SEHK for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.
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B AT AR A () Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)
&) FEAA R BRI B B % e b B b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
() Company and associated corporation (Continued)
i)  AREZERAFAX 2 EEERGR i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
NAlZ SRR E (B) Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)
9) A¥FemRBRETEHBEND - (9)  Remaining life of DSFH Option Scheme:
AR EGTE B S hEN DSFH Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period
A+ NBRBHTFRESR £2=F of 10 years commencing from 28 April 2005 and expiring at
—RFMNAZ=+T+EHER - the close of 27 April 2015.
BBRFEBRRETS - AT EE Pursuant to DSFH Option Scheme, certain Directors of DSFH and
FTELEMBARNE TEFERTRK its major operating subsidiaries were granted options under DSFH
e RZZEENFF+_A=+—H &KX Option Scheme. Details of the share options outstanding as at
e pARRETE NARITEZ AIREXR 31 December 2008 which have been granted under the DSFH
FemBROERNGHRFBOT ¢ Option Scheme are as follows:
AREAEZAHERRAYE
Number of DSFH shares in the options
RZZENE ZEENER RIZENE
-A-A ZEENFR -BENERM  AMAE t-A=1-H filid:]
%5 R fif Lapsed/ b F] fTiEE" Exercise period
Held at Granted  Exercised  cancelled Heldat  Exercise RFAH # Z
ARA Grantee 1/1/2008  during 2008  during 2008  during 2008  31/12/2008 price”  Grant date From To

Bt (B/AE)  (B/AE)  (B/IA/E)
HKS (dimy) (dimly) (dimy)

gz Directors
FEE Hon-Hing Wong
(Derek Wong) 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
T Gary Pak-LingWeng 400,000 - - - 4000 5171 2580005 25080006 25/8/2011
IHE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013
Easge Aggregate of
an employee? 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013
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Report of the Directors

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings

Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The exercise prices for each tranche of granting were determined
in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of DSFH
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of DSFH shares traded on the SEHK for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The closing
price of DSFH’s shares immediately before the respective dates of
grant are set out below:

BTFHAKXKHEH
REEBXZizWHE
Closing price

BFHHB TEE of DSFH shares on the SEHK

Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant
(B/A/%) BT BT

(d/m/y) HK$ HK$

25/8/2005 51.71 51.05

28/9/2007 61.93 60.90

2. RAEASBRBETNEBE_STNFT+=_A=1 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements

—HIEFEAR - AR EARTTER H’ﬂ’?é
“%ﬁ&% & - R EMBRTAR
RLEBEMBLRR—BESR {BU%K%E
%%ﬂﬁ’]*%%% C U REBEBERRBIGIIER
TIEBEEK] TIEHES -

3. HEAHEBMBEAEEIT - UWEARARE
BTZREEALRZ B -

4. TEXR¥MEEBRBREET  UERRER
FTAMEBEAKE 2B RRREHE
7 o

5. BEZEZN\E+_A=1+—HLFEMR
RHRRENEE

BE-_ZZTN\F+-A=+—BLLFEFH
BRERBEEE BEABERRPBERE
MizEST ©

P bR EBIrE R _TTNF+ A=
T—B  ARAKEIESFIBEERAIMREZ
EERTREIER SRR BECMALBESRR
BRBOHME

during the year ended 31 December 2008 of DSFH’s outstanding
share options which were granted to an employee of the Company
or its major operating subsidiaries who is a director of DSFH and is
working under employment contract that is regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

3. None of the grantees under DSFH Option Scheme were granted
share options exceeding respective individual limits.

4. No share options under DSFH Option Scheme were granted to the
DSFH’s and the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

. Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2008:

Details of the computation of value of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2008 are shown in Note 51 to the financial
statements.

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at 31
December 2008, none of Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO as recorded in the register of

directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
subsidiaries, or its holding company a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company nor their spouses or children under
18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Company.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Shareholders” Interests

At 31 December 2008, the register of shareholders’ interests in shares
and short positions maintained under section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had been notified of the following interests, which
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of Directors, being

5% or more held in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

HEROHE ROEDE2E
ERITREABF D)

Number of shares interested
in the relevant issued

share capital of the Company

(Percentage of interest

B R g4 held in the Company’s
Shareholder Capacity entire issued share capital)
AemEBBR AT EEExn

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Beneficial interest 699,169,170 (74.96%)

ELEERELEBERAA
HSBC International Trustee Limited

AEES

Corporate interest 698,045,370 (74.94%)"

HERBHEBATRERS MRIELER
Deemed interest by virtue of

EBREES
Christine Yen Wong 699,169,170 (74.96%)@

her spouse having a notifiable interest
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Report of the Directors

Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

1. By virtue of the deemed interest in DSFH shares indirectly held by HSBC
International Trustee Limited (“HSBCIT”) in trust for a discretionary trust
established for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family,
HSBCIT is taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to the relevant
shares of the Company held through its controlled companies. Relevant
shares have been included in the “Corporate interests” of David Shou-
Yeh Wong as disclosed under the heading of “Interests of Directors and
Chief Executive” above.

2. Such shares represented deemed interest of Christine Yen Wong by virtue
of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial shareholder of
DSFH which held a corporate interest in relevant share capital of the
Company. Christine Yen Wong is taken to have a duty of disclosure in
relation to the deemed interest of the Company held by her spouse. This
interest comprised the same interest of David Shou-Yeh Wong under the
heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” shown above.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2008, no short positions were recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions

maintained by the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2008. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s own shares during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Connected Transactions

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008 since its incorporation have been set out in

Note 50 to the financial statements.

Five-Year Financial Information

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are included in the section of the annual report under

“Financial Summary”.
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Five-Year Financial Information (Continued)

The Company was incorporated on 11 March 2004 as a subsidiary of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”). Pursuant to a group
reorganisation, DSFH transferred its banking-related subsidiaries to the
Company in June 2004 through a share-for-share swap and the
Company became the holding company of these banking-related
subsidiaries thereafter. Based on the merger accounting treatment and
for the purpose of disclosing the five year financial information, the
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries were
produced on the basis that the Company had existed and the banking-
related subsidiaries had been subsidiaries of the Company throughout

the reporting periods.

Major Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group derived less than
30% of its interest income and other operating income from its five

largest customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the

Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

Compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the

preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_TT)\F+_A=+—HLEE

; = — =N T - For the year ended 31 December 2008
(A F i3 R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

e Z—STNE —ZZT+HF
Note 2008 2007
FEIA Interest income 4,612,468 5,851,302
FEZ W Interest expense (2,404,882)  (3,783,469)
FR B WA Net interest income 6 2,207,586 2,067,833
RS E& &AW A Fee and commission income 637,000 747,447
AR & R e Fee and commission expense (104,736) (100,014)
FREERASWA Net fee and commission income 7 532,264 647,433
FEBEWA Net trading income 8 211,060 149,351
HihgsgA Other operating income 9 63,265 98,693
EEWRA Operating income 3,014,175 2,963,310
EESH Operating expenses 10 (1,555,157)  (1,272,957)
MR EEEA 2 EEER Operating profit before impairment losses 1,459,018 1,690,353
EXRRBRZBEEE Impairment losses on loans and advances 13 (658,535) (180,795)
ETREREEEERBANEEA Operating profit before gains or losses
ZEERF on certain investments and fixed assets 800,483 1,509,558
TERAMEEEENEREM Net gain on disposal and revaluation of
R ER premises and other fixed assets 14 854 94,512
REMELERFABRATEZ Net (loss)/gain on disposal of and fair value
F(E518) ke adjustment on investment properties 15 (78,923) 181,527
B AT B AT s Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities 18,490 85,141
GBS NAl 2 245 Share of results of an associate 120,589 72,070
FEAG RIS E RS« 34E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 5,674 10,536
REINHER 2 REBBRRE Impairment losses charged on held-to-maturity
securities (357,684) -
AHEEFEEZREEIE Impairment losses charged on available-for-sale
e securities 16 (297,618)  (1,037,742)
B %4 A 5 A Profit before income tax 211,865 915,602
B H Income tax expense 17 (21,288) (109,318)
FEBRN Profit for the year 190,577 806,284
B A% B A i F) Profit attributable to minority interests (1,935) (6,115)
AR F IR R EAG SR Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company 18 188,642 800,169
BE Dividends
S ERR S Interim dividend paid 19 167,897 232,854
R R B AR B Proposed final dividend 19 - 139,712
167,897 372,566
BRER Earnings per share
AR Basic 20 HK$0.20 HK$0.86
3] Diluted 20 HK$0.20 HK$0.86

FE55E R F2008 Z AR BB IHRK 2 —

25 -

financial statements.

The notes on pages 55 to 200 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolldated Balance Sheet

—ZETENF+A=+—H As at 31 December 2008
(A F i3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
e Z—ZBBNF —ZZTLF
Note 2008 2007
BE ASSETS
e RERITHEH Cash and balances with banks 21 12,665,167 10,025,003
ERIT—ZE+ B AR EBANFR Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 22 1,656,950 1,919,342
T—rf’EEEﬁHLE’T % Trading securities 23 1,875,564 2,281,409
AFEAEARES Financial assets at fair value through
quMa SR E E profit or loss 23 565,290 1,351,698
TESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 24 1,066,439 758,047
FERERREMIRE Advances and other accounts 25 69,507,336 65,438,768
T 4 ) 28 5 Available-for-sale securities 27 14,247,299 25,434,195
T ?:?'JH;QEA% Held-to-maturity securities 28 6,159,264 4,354,181
w LNRIRE Investment in an associate 30 1,132,461 800,989
HEZEHEEIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 31 59,973 63,852
I"ﬂ = Goodwill 33 811,690 811,690
BAE ) Intangible assets 33 126,875 145,911
TEREMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 34 1,666,499 1,785,033
=AY Investment properties 35 546,172 658,588
BNEARIIE & B Current income tax assets 139,860 102,224
BEEBIREE Deferred income tax assets 43 159,380 9,228
BEEST Total assets 112,386,219 115,940,158
a8fE LIABILITIES
IRITER Deposits from banks 2,443,594 2,651,668
TESHMTA Derivative financial instruments 24 2,267,640 970,781
BIEEERAZNEE Trading liabilities 37 1,791,419 2,689,069
BERA ?@”riﬁﬁ """"" Deposits from customers designated
M\%a 5 K& P FR at fair value through profit or loss 38 471,065 3,142,488
EPER Deposits from customers 39 81,890,447 75,940,861
BETHERE Certificates of deposit issued 40 4,654,985 8,843,414
BEITHERES Issued debt securities 41 2,803,640 2,794,861
BEES Subordinated notes 42 5,671,716 5,147,837
HibRB KIER Other accounts and accruals 2,183,662 4,394,590
BNEARIIEB(E Current income tax liabilities 12,682 27,256
FERIEE & Deferred income tax liabilities 43 1,575 88,862
B8EE5 Total liabilities 104,192,425 106,691,687
s EQUITY
DER RS Minority interests 20,593 19,045
AATBRREMER Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
f& 75 Share capital 46 932,759 931,416
f# Reserves 47 7,240,442 8,158,298
R AR AR B Proposed final dividend 19 - 139,712
BRERES Shareholders’ funds 8,173,201 9,229,426
EEAF Total equity 8,193,794 9,248,471
EERkAEETT Total equity and liabilities 112,386,219 115,940,158
EERR _ETNFZA - THBIERIRER Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
5 o March 2009.
Er¥ HERE David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
3 EERATE Director Managing Director
FEE5E EFE200E 2 M ARGAE M BME 2 — The notes on pages 55 to 200 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.
REFFWITEBBRA A
ZEEN\FER



As at 31 December 2008

BEBER
Balance Sheet

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

it ZBBENFE —“ZTTLHF
Note 2008 2007
MEBARKRE Investments in subsidiaries 32 3,265,734 3,212,029
MENEE Current assets
RITHE &R Bank balances 21 19,076 50,399
FEUR R H A BR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 356 402
19,432 50,801
mBEE Current liabilities
RITEX Bank overdraft - 29,224
TERRERA LK EAMEKE Accrued expenses and other accounts 1,373 1,532
1,373 30,756
FREEE Net current assets 18,059 20,045
3,283,793 3,232,074
xR EQUITY
f& 2 Share capital 46 932,759 931,416
1 Reserves 47 2,351,034 2,160,946
R R BARR B Proposed final dividend 19 - 139,712
EREE Total equity 3,283,793 3,232,074

EERNZZNF A ThARE RS

ffi o
EFHE HEA
EF EF

5B EF2008 2 M I ANRA MR 2 —
B

March 2009.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Director

financial statements.

Hon-Hing Wong
Managing Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25

The notes on pages 55 to 200 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_TZ N\F+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2008
(LAB BT A7) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
ARARREGESR
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
SERE
RE  ROEE HtRE REEF B BRET
Share Share Other  Retained  Minority Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
“EZ\F-B-REH Balance at 1 January 2008 931,416 2,209,149 665,339 5,423,522 19,045 9,248,471
AHHEERZ ATEEE Fair value losses on
available-for-sale securities - - (1,396,982) - (251) (1,397,233)
REERGBEATHIESS Investment revaluation reserve
REMEBZNEE transferred to income statement
upon impairment of available-for-sale
securities - - 297,618 - - 297,618
HE AT & F Disposal of available-for-sale securities - - (18,490) - - (18,490)
REERREEDMER Deferred income tax asset recognised
ERHBEE on movements in investment
revaluation reserve - - 177,582 - - 177,582
NEEfZATEEE Fair value losses on revaluation of
premises - - (106,874) - - (106,874)
TEEEREESMEE L Deferred income tax liabilities released
EEHEAR on movements in premises revaluation
reserve - - 49,965 - - 49,965
NEERGERNLENTERER Premises revaluation reserve realised
on disposal of premises - - (4,852) 4,852 - -
TENEMBREMEEZRER Revaluation reserve transferred to
retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (12,491) 12,491 - -
BEFIHERR Exchange differences arising on
BRENELZE translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - 39,293 - (136) 39,157
BREINERCF (BB) /WA Net (loss)/income recognised directly
in equity - - (975,231) 17,343 (387)  (958,275)
FEBH Profit for the year - - - 188,642 1,935 190,577
RZTZN\ERR 28 () /WA Total recognised (expense)/income
for 2008 - - (975,231) 205,985 1,548  (767,698)
AR S5 8 Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to
BT EBRRAN scrip dividend arrangement 1,343 19,306 - - - 20,649
IRETRNER Payment of share issue expenses - (19) - - - (19)
“ERLERARE 2007 final dividend - - - (139,712 - (139,712
“ET\FHRERE 2008 interim dividend - - - (167,897) - (167,897)
1,343 19,287 - (307,609) - (286,979)
“EENFTZA=+-HEH Balance at 31 December 2008 932,759 2,228,436  (309,892) 5,321,898 20,593 8,193,794

BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—EZN\F CZTTtF
2008 2007

BEMREBAFA Proposed final dividend
2R AR AR B included in retained earnings - 139,712

KHRITEEER AT
—ZEN\FEH




RE DR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_ZTN\E+_RA=+—HILFE &)

S A For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued)
(CAB 8 F Th5IR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FARRREGES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
PHRR
BE  ROEE HitEE REERM Bi BRET
Share Share Other  Retained  Minority Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
“ZEtE-A-AEH Balance at 1 January 2007 931,416 2,209,149 991,633 5,184,043 19,000 9,335,241
RHERF DT EER Fair value losses on available-for-sale
securities . (1,695,133 . (391) (1,695,524)
BREEMEEATRLESR Investment revaluation reserve
REMBBENHE transferred to income statement
upon impairment of available-for-sale
securities - - 1,087,742 - - 1,087,742
HETHEEE S Disposal of available-for-sale securities - - (85,141 - - (85,141)
AEMERS N TESR Deferred income tax liabilities released
REEMREETHEAR on fair value losses and disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - 127,822 - - 127,822
TEEMfzATEYE Fair value gains on revaluation of
premises - - 399,842 - - 399,842
TEEMMBAZREREARE Deferred income tax liabilities
recognised on premises revaluation - - (49,111) - - (49,111)
TEEMRRERNLENEREE Premises revaluation reserve realised
on disposal of premises - - (76,857) 76,857 - -
TERENBSBEREBZREBN  Revaluation reserve transferred to
retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (14,444) 14,444 - -
BEFINERR Exchange differences arising on
HBRENELZR translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - 28,986 - 48 29,034
ERBARNERZE (BE) /A Net (loss)/income recognised directly
in equity - - (326294 91,301 (343 (235,336)
FREMN Profit for the year - - - 800,169 6,115 806,284
RZZRLFHEA 2B (L) /WA Total recognised (expense)/income
for 2007 - - (326,294 891,470 5772 570,948
MEARRE S HRIRERS Dividend paid to minority shareholder
of a subsidiary - - - - (5,727 (5,727)
ZEERERBKRE 2006 final dividend - - - (419,137) - (419,137
“ETLEPHARE 2007 interim dividend - - - (232,854 - (232,854
- - - (651,991) (5,727)  (657,718)
ZEZEE+ZAZ+—-AER Balance at 31 December 2007 931,416 2,209,149 665,339 5,423,522 19,045 9,248,471
FEE5E EFE200E 2 M ARG E M BME 2 — The notes on pages 55 to 200 are an integral part of these consolidated
B o financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE_ZT)\F+_A=t ALFE

LA T L5 R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Mizx Z—ZBNFE Z—TTLHF
Note 2008 2007
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
WERERAR S F5E Net cash from operating activities 48(a) 5,733,659 1,574,884
RETBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
g NG £ Acquisition of interest in an associate (179,718) (703,339)
BETE HREMER Purchase of premises, investment
Hih[EE & E properties and other fixed assets (78,482) (85,063)
HETE REWE Proceeds from disposal of premises,
N H Ah B E & EFT1S 3R investment properties and other
fixed assets 28,997 261,217
REEBMARE F5E Net cash used in investing activities (229,203) (527,185)
METBZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT E Certificates of deposit issued 1,491,822 2,007,662
BEFRE Certificates of deposit redeemed (5,499,765)  (2,049,334)
BITEBES Debt securities issued - 450,000
BITIREE Subordinated notes issued 403,023 1,562,570
P8 2 Rl A H D SR RIR AR B Dividend paid to minority shareholder
of a subsidiary - (5,727)
Ui el i ) Dividends paid on ordinary shares (286,960) (651,991)
XTEITRNDER Payment of share issue expenses (19) -
BMEES (A RARESFRE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (3,891,899) 1,313,180
ReRERRSEEENTFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,621,557 2,360,879
FYReLERRESIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 13,622,981 11,262,102
FRESRERESLER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 48(b) 15,235,538 13,622,981
$55H £ E2008 2 it IR A M SRR 2 — The notes on pages 55 to 200 are an integral part of these consolidated
B o financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. General information

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) provide banking, financial and other related

services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing

Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, a listed

company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 25 March 2009.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of properties
(including investment properties), available-for-sale financial assets, fair
value-hedged loans and receivables, financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities

(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

(@

Amendments and interpretations to existing standards effective
in 2008

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
amendment on reclassification of financial assets permits
reclassification of certain financial assets out of the held-for-
trading and available-for-sale categories if specified conditions
are met. The related amendment to HKFRS 7 - Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, introduces disclosure requirements
with respect to financial assets reclassified out of the held-for-
trading and available-for-sale categories. The amendment is
effective prospectively from 1 July 2008. The Group has
reclassified certain financial assets out of the available-for-sale
category pursuant to this amendment. Details are set out in Note
29.

HK(IFRIC) Int 11 - HKFRS 2 Group and treasury share
transactions, provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or involving group entities
(for example, options over a parent’s shares) should be accounted
for as equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment
transactions in the standalone accounts of the parent and group
companies. This interpretation does not have a significant impact

on the Group’s financial statements.

Interpretations to existing standards effective in 2008 but not

relevant to the Group’s operations

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 - HKAS 19 The Limit on a Defined Benefit

Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and Their Interaction.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

-l

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group

The Group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards that were issued
but not yet effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 January
2008:

° HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Financial Statements

(effective from 1 January 2009).

° HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs (effective from 1 January
2009).

° HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (effective from 1 July 2009).

° HKAS 32 (Amendment) — Financial Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Presentation of Financial Statements -
Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation (effective from 1 January 2009).

o HKFRS 2 (Amendment) — Share-based Payment (effective from
1 January 2009).

° HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations (effective from 1 July
2009).

o HKFRS 8 Operating Segment (effective from 1 January 2009).

° HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 — Customer Loyalty Programmes Statements
(effective from 1 July 2008).

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited 57
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008

M

(10)

HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Presentation of Financial
Statements (effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 16 (Amendment) — Property, Plant and Equipment
(and consequential amendment to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows) (effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 19 (Amendment) — Employee Benefits (effective from
1 January 2009).

HKAS 20 (Amendment) — Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance (effective
from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 23 (Amendment) — Borrowing Costs (effective from 1
January 2009).

HKAS 27 (Amendment) — Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning
from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 28 (Amendment) — Investments in Associates (and
consequential amendments to HKAS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation) and HKFRS 7 - Financial
Instruments: Disclosures (effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 31 (Amendment) — Interests in Joint Ventures (and
consequential amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7)
(effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 36 (Amendment) — Impairment of Assets (effective
from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 38 (Amendment) - Intangible Assets (effective from
1 January 2009).

HKAS 39 (Amendment) - Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (effective from 1 January
2009).

HKAS 40 (Amendment) - Investment Property (and
consequential amendments to HKAS 16) (effective from 1
January 2009).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008
(Continued)

(18) HKFRS 5 (Amendment) — Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations (and consequential
amendment to HKFRS 1, “First-time adoption”) (effective
from 1 July 2009).

(14) Other minor amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, HKAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, HKAS 10
Events after the Reporting Period, HKAS 18 Revenue and
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The adoption of the above amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(d)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and not relevant to the Group’s
operations

° HKFRS 1 (Amendment) - First Time Adoption of HKFRS and
HKAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2009).

° HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estates
(effective from 1 January 2009).

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 — Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation (effective from 1 October 2008).

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008

(1) HKAS 29 (Amendment) — Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies (effective from 1 January
2009).

(2) HKAS 41 (Amendment) — Agriculture (effective from 1
January 2009).

(8) Other minor amendments to HKAS 20 Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance, HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies, HKAS 40 Investment
Property and HKAS 41 Agriculture.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group

controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in

the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less allowances for impairment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses to the
Group that are recorded in the income statement. Purchases from
minority interests could result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired

of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

(c)  Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates include goodwill (net of any accumulated

impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the

income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associate are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral

control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of the net

assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction

costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash

flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained a
part at the same effective interest rate for the other participants. Wealth
management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised

rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Financial assets
2.5.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition, except for subsequent reclassification

meeting specified definition of relevant asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it
is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with all

holding gains and loss recognised in the income statement.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit

or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases;
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial assets (Continued)

2.5.1 Classification (Continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such

as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for
trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-
sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration. Assets in this category are carried at
amortised cost less any impairment loss. For assets that are
subject to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements

of the assets hedged are carried at fair value.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,

exchange rates or equity prices.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 Financial assets (Continued)
2.5.1 Classification (Continued)

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Assets in this category are carried at amortised cost

less any impairment loss.

2.5.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held for trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets
are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading category
only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual
and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition, the Group may
choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of
loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale
categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in
estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require adjustment

to the effective interest rates prospectively.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 Financial assets (Continued)
2.5.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks

and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be recognised in the income statement.
However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when the

Group’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.
If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models refined to

reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.
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2.

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
(@)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about the following loss

events:
(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i)  a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

(iii)  the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a

concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties; or
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2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group
of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with

the individual financial assets in the group, including:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers

in the group; or

- national or local economic conditions that correlate

with defaults on the assets in the group.

The estimated period between a loss occurring and its
identification is determined by management for each identified
portfolio. In general, the periods used vary between 3 months
and 12 months; in exceptional cases, longer periods are

warranted.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
that asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market

price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and

selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according

to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.
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2.

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis
of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of

conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status,
or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses
in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the

allowances for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income

statement.

(c)  Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past

due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7  Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at

fair value.

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair

value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through profit

or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel such as the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i) Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,
including the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives, are designated as such at inception or date of
transition to the new HKFRS. Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value and any
gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7  Financial liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities

using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
balance sheet, and the difference between the carrying amount
of a liability and the consideration paid is included in net trading

income.

2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in
active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair

value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is
the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or

received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid

contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities.
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way

provided certain criteria are met.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting

changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss

over the period to maturity.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised

immediately in the income statement.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,

or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The counterparty liability in respect of securities sold subject to
repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to other
banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals, as
appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse
repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or
customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to

counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The

obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the balance sheet with appropriate

amounts of impairment allowances made.

2.12 Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting policy, the
Group has determined that business segments be presented as the
primary reporting format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format.

Business segments are distinguishable business divisions of the Group
that provide products and services to customer base or dealing with

the market that are different to those of other business segments.

Geographical segments are grouped by the location of the principal
operations of the subsidiaries or in the case of banking subsidiaries, of
the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results

including assets and liabilities.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.12 Segment reporting (Continued)

For the purposes of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
business or geographical segments are reported directly under
respective segment, while revenue and funding cost arising from inter-
segment funding operation and funding resources are allocated to the
business segments by way of transfer pricing mechanism with reference
to market interest rates. Transactions within segments are priced based
on similar terms offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-

segment income or expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various business segments and products based on effort
and time spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on
the nature of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that
cannot be reasonably allocated to business segments, products and

support functions are grouped under unallocated items.

2.13 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the

functional currency of the major part of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income

statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investment in equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are

included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.13 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as

part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Leasehold properties comprising land and buildings held on which a
reliable estimate is not available on the split of the carrying value
attributable to each of the land and building elements are accounted
for as finance leases and shown at fair value, based on periodic, and at
least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.14 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged
against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are

expensed in the income statement.

Depreciation of premises and other fixed assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the remaining period
of lease

- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful

and motor vehicles lives generally between

5 and 10 years

The difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of premises charged to the income statement and depreciation
based on the premises’ original cost is transferred from premises

revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the

consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and

buildings held under finance lease.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a

finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,

continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from
future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other fixed
assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous

impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Gooduwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit

from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or other
legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They include core
deposits, contracts and customer relationships intangible assets, and
trade names. Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation
based on estimated useful lives, and/or accumulated impairment
losses.

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

each reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is

recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each
jurisdiction, is recognised as an expense in the period in which profits
arise. The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward
are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits

will be available against which these losses can be utilised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is
also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant

investments.

2.19 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by

the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to

vesting fully in the contributions.

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates a cash settled, share-based compensation
plan, which requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the
share option to a grantee at the date of exercise. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted. At each balance sheet
date, the Group will re-measure the fair value of the share options

and any change is recognised in the income statement.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

balance sheet date.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d)  Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the balance sheet date are recognised when the Group has a
present or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

2.21 Leases
(@)  Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased
out are included in fixed assets in the balance sheet. They are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent
with similar owned fixed assets. Rental income (net of any
incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.21 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially retained all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included as liabilities. The investment properties

acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment

outstanding for each accounting period.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the

Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date
of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to cash and are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.25 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import

duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to

the income statement.

2.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control

of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,

products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
under the authority delegated by the Board oversees and guides the
management of different risks which are more particularly managed
and dealt with by the Group Risk and different functional committees.
In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of

risk management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest

rate and other price risk.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group
seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term funds and
lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining sufficient

liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending
to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance and other

bonds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currency, interest rate and commodity prices.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposure that can be
taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts

required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate term liabilities. Certain of these
financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms
of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value

hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties may
default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee and for each business
division a credit committee made up of certain Executive Directors and
senior credit officers and chaired by the Chief Executive. Each credit
committee has the responsibility for formulating and revising credit
policies and procedures for that division within the parameters of the
Group Risk Policy and regulatory framework. Credit policies and
procedures define the credit assessment and approval criteria and
guidelines, use of scoring, review and monitoring process and the

systems of loan classification and impairment.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis, in
accordance with the credit approval and review policies, by evaluating
the credit-worthiness of different types of customers and counterparties
based on assessment of business, financial, market and industry risks
applicable to the types of loans, collateral and counterparty dealings
including dealing in or use of derivative financial instruments. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines. Credit exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly
monitored and controlled by management, credit committees and
Group Risk. The Group’s internal auditors conduct regular reviews and
audits to ensure compliance with credit policies and procedures and
regulatory guidelines.

The individual business’ credit policies also establish policies and
processes for the approval and review of new products and activities,
together with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes
and impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group reflects three components (i) the differentiation of credit
risk of the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; (ii)
current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future
development, from which the Group derive the “exposure at
default”; and (jii) the likely loss on the defaulted obligations after
considering recovery and collateral realisation.

These credit risk measurements, which operate to control and
monitor credit performance of individual and pools of borrowers
through on-going credit review, loan classification, collection,
credit risk mitigation including realisation of collateral, and
provision of impairment on problem loans as required by the
Group’s credit policies and procedures, and regulatory guidelines,
are embedded in the Group’s daily operational management.
Based on the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance, the Group is also required to assess expected loss of
individual and portfolios of credits, and to set aside sufficient loan
loss reserve against any expected loss. The operational
measurements to also cover expected losses can be contrasted
with impairment allowances required under HKAS 39, which are
based on losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet
date (the “incurred loss model”) rather than expected loss (Note
3.2.3).
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

@
i)

(i)

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group assesses the credit quality of individual
counterparties using internal rating tools tailored to the
various categories of counterparty. They have been
developed internally and combine general analysis and
judgements of credit officers, and are reviewed, where
appropriate, by comparison with externally available data.
Clients of the Group are segmented into three broad rating
classes. The Group’s rating scale, which is shown in Note
3.2.3, differentiates credit quality for each rating class. This
means that, in principle, exposures migrate between
classes as the assessment of credit quality and business
environment changes. The rating tools are kept under
review and upgraded as necessary. The Group regularly
reviews the performance of the rating and their predictive

power with regard to default events.

The Group uses both internal data and market information
(e.g. credit rating migration, credit scoring) for internal credit
risk assessment. Observed migration data per rating
category vary year on year, especially over an economic

cycle.

Exposure at default is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default. For example, for
a loan, exposure at default is the face value. For a
commitment, the Group includes any amount already drawn
plus the further amount that may have been drawn by the
time of default, should it occur.

Estimated credit loss or loss severity represents the Group’s
expectation of the event of loss on a claim should default
occur. It is based on actual loss experience and typically
varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim

and availability of collateral or other credit risk mitigation.
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3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)
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(b)  Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby
letters of credit — which represent irrevocable assurances that
the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot
meet its obligations to third parties — carry the same credit risk as
loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions — are
normally collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to
which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct

lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of

credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

(c)  Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external rating such as
Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents are used by Group
Risk for managing the credit risk exposures. The investments in
these securities and bills are made to gain a better credit quality,
to diversify risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain
a readily available source of funds to meet the funding and

liquidity requirement of the Group from time to time.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@

Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety

of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps and

options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange and

equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for both

trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in using

derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by acting

as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to risks and

to generate revenues through trading activities within acceptable

limits.

(i)

(i)

Derivatives held or issued for trading purposes

The Group transacts derivative contracts on behalf of
customers or to address customer demands in structuring
tailored derivatives. The Group also takes proprietary
positions for its own accounts. Trading derivative products
used by the Group are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives transacted based on interest rates, foreign

exchange rates, credit spread and equity prices.

Derivatives held or issued for hedging purposes

Derivatives held for hedging purposes primarily consist of
derivative instruments or contracts used to manage interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk. All of these are over-

the-counter derivatives.
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3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)

32 fEEmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 15 &M fi il & (4) 3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)
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foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered spot
transactions. Foreign currency and interest rate futures are
contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in currency rates or interest rates or to
buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a
future date at a specified price, established in an organised
financial market. The credit risk is negligible, as futures
contracts are collateralised by cash or marketable
securities, and changes in the futures contract value are

settled daily with the exchange.

(i)  Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result
in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates
(for example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination
of all these (i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). No
exchange of principal takes place, except for certain
currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk represents the
potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current
fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level
of credit risk taken, the Group assesses counterparties

using the same techniques as for its lending activities.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

(iii)  Foreign currency and interest rate options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the
purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or
during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign currency
or a financial instrument at a predetermined price. The seller
receives a premium from the purchaser in consideration for
the assumption of foreign exchange or interest rate risk.
Options may be either exchange-traded or negotiated
between the Group and a customer. The Group is exposed
to credit risk on purchased options only, and only to the

extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.

The Group may be exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not receiving
the expected cash value of a derivative transaction or upon the

expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure
to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and credit market conditions. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments
on hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or
unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative
financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time

to time.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the amount
subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract or notional values used to

express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages, controls and limits concentrations of credit risk
wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual counterparties

and groups, and to industries and countries.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing
limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or
groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such
risks are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual or
more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level
of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved

by relevant credit committees and Group Risk.

The exposure to any one borrower or counterparty including banks and
brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off- balance
sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items
such as forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against

limits are monitored daily.

Exposures to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of
the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by regular review and revision of

these limits where appropriate.

To avoid concentration of risk, large exposures to individual customers
or related groups are limited to a percentage of the capital base, and
exposures to industry sectors and countries/regions are managed

within approved limits to achieve a balanced portfolio.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(@ Loans and advances

In order to mitigate the credit risk and where appropriate, the
Group will obtain collateral to support the credit facility. To control
credit risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative
positions, the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved
financial institutions, and uses established market practices on
credit support and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk
exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for
each financial institution counterparty, including valuation limit
for derivatives, is approved by the Group Credit Committee with
reference to the financial strength and credit rating of each
counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are

the respective margins of finance.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile,

cashflow position and ability to repay.

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security
for funds advanced, which is a common practice. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types

for loans and advances are:

° Mortgages over residential properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory

and accounts receivable; and

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities

and equities.

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are
generally secured; revolving individual credit facilities are
generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimise credit loss,
the Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual

loans and advances.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,

which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.

(c) Derivatives

Since all counterparties for derivatives trading are financial
institutions, the risk is managed as part of the credit risk control
and monitoring process in respect of financial institutions
including credit controls such as setting individual limit for
valuation risk, daily settlement limits and performing periodic
credit assessment for each counterparty. Moreover, the Group
requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)
Agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice of
close-out arrangement in the event of default, settlement

procedure, valuation/pricing methods.

Collateral or other security is not usually obtained for credit risk
exposures on these instruments, except where the Group requires

margin deposits from counterparties.

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset
of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as transactions are usually
settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated with
favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement
to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all amounts with

the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.

The Group’s overall exposure to credit risk on derivative
instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change
substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each

transaction subject to the arrangement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating system described in Note 3.2.1 focuses more on
credit-quality assessment from the inception of the lending and
investment activities. In contrast, impairment allowances are recognised
for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred
at the balance sheet date based on objective evidence of impairment
(see Note 2.6). Due to the different approaches applied, the amount of
incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements may be
different from the amount determined from other loss estimation
approach that is used for internal operational management and banking

regulation purposes.

The impairment allowance shown in the balance sheet at year-end is
derived from each of the three broad internal rating grades. However,
the majority of the impairment allowance comes from the bottom two
gradings. The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-
balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowance covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for

each of these broad internal rating categories.

—EENE —EELF
2008 2007

AEEE REZERE

HENBRE BERESE

BAkl ERagsd

Impairment Impairment

ERREX allowance  EFRR#K allowance

Loans and as a % of Loans and as a % of

advances loan balance advances loan balance

58 Group % % % %
o Grades

1-WE 1 - satisfactory 97.1 0.3 98.3 0.2

2 - ¥ERIREE 2 — special mention 1.0 8.1 1.1 6.0

3- RFIIAT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.9 54.0 0.6 47.6

100.0 100.0

BERARBZAXRTER ZEEF D SRR
HWOREMT e

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,

the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows.
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(ABEE T TLF)R)

3. A B B ()
3.2 fEmEEE )
3.2.3 JH1E R I B ()

F-EFRHEI R AEERNBEFFRRGES
ZE-EBENG KRRERARFOHREN K EH
HA2#NENSMERAS 2 A TEEE -

F_ERFRET R ARERNLERFRE
BB 2B TR KRRERAERRERE - RS
BEBRIEEREE R - AR REEBRE
BEX-

F=FRIREFATIEEREBAHERTR
EMAZET—ZET=R REERALRE
REER RN EZNEE N TAE2ERE EAR
SERERHIKHEERZERRAFER B
HERS AR R SEKRZER - XL
ERERBMABYT REWER S EAKE -

RIBBAREBERE 2 TINREZ REFFAR T AR
BN E IR B BN BB G 5T R F 395 MR IREZ
EHEBRLGFHE

BHENMASHHE AR
fERARBRBR SRR (0 AR ER L
R HEEZFREENE) ¢

o  EBREFRBHIURN:

o FHWMMERR:

o  ERAZBEFENBIL: R

e HWRmEETE-

AEBZBRRERERDEF R LEEHIER
FEZRFHERNSNREZNRGZERMEE
ERIFHERE 2 RERE  BRAEMEENER
RPTREREEFEERNGER PR BN
FEE o A E IR B S A BRI RR P TR 2 AR
(BREENEREE AT At EAEL
MR -

RAHEREERE () BREREZMERR
ZRBEEEA  R(DRBARELE  KBH
BT & gt BRI R B B A E MDA MR 2 BK(E
B o

KR TEEERA R
—ZEN\FEH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

Grade 1 “satisfactory”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current
in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest
and principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Grade 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13 of the
Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in which
borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely to
jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account
the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that are considered
uncollectible after all collection options have been exhausted.

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether
objective evidence of impairment exists under HKAS 39, which is based
on the following criteria set out by the Group:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

o Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

° Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and

° Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred loss at balance sheet date on a case-by-case basis, and are
applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its
enforceability) and the anticipated receipts and liquidating collaterals
for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet
been identified, by using the available historical experience,
experienced judgement and statistical techniques.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

lll

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

credit enhancements

—EENE —TTLEF
5 Group 2008 2007
EHEEBBRNEEZEERBRENT ! Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
Be MEIRITHEH Cash and balances with banks 12,665,167 10,025,003
ERITHTER Placements with banks 1,656,950 1,919,342
FHEEERRNES Trading securities 1,875,564 2,281,409
NAFEFEEEEZHT AEENEHERE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 565,290 1,351,698
TEEmMIT A Derivative financial instruments 1,066,439 758,047
BFEREBR Loans and advances to customers
EAE R Loans to individuals
-EAFR - Credit cards 3,482,972 3,395,440
-ZIBER - Mortgages 18,526,215 18,476,883
- EAfty — Others 3,802,967 3,988,516
TEER Loans to corporate entities
-BHER - Term loans 10,205,960 10,066,194
-RB\BER - Mortgages 8,496,416 8,629,646
-E5ME - Trade finance 4,638,482 5,615,014
- EAfty — Others 11,846,061 11,122,938
RITER LB Loans and advances to banks 179,226 160,426
HiEE Other assets 2,281,945 4,343,268
PIEEERREWFIERER Investments in securities included in
BHKE the loans and receivables category 6,896,646 -
A EES Available-for-sale securities
- BEEEH — debt securities 14,084,911 25,069,939
HEIEE S Held-to-maturity securities 6,159,264 4,354,181
108,430,475 111,557,944
EHEERBERINEBZEERBRENT ! Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet items are as follows:
MBEREEMEERAAE Financial guarantees and other
credit related contingent liabilities 1,075,576 1,578,407
B RO R B s B E Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 36,535,397 35,962,962
37,610,973 37,541,369
+—-A=+—H At 31 December 146,041,448 149,099,313

FRINFAEER _ZENFR_TZLF
A=+—RE-REREBR THAETR - %A
ERAFARAZERARKEMERRANZE
Rk -

The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk

exposure to the Group at 31 December 2008 and 2007, without taking

into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

attached.
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3.2 fEmEEE )

3.2.4 REFAFFH Z HEH iy 2 H A A5 18 57

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

A 2 % 15 5 Bl B 8 ()

AEBEZEFEERAALZETIIFMIEE
i

o EXRBIMEATINEDBEENILTRE
BHREaZ-AFHERN(ZTZLF
5%)

o  HAERIZBANDBEIZEBERNEEMSR
TIEE

o  ERRFFMEEPI5%NAEEHKEMER

WE(ZEZEEF - 95%)

e  (ARSGARBIEFERR
BERRBFBEN1I%(ZEE
0.46%) ; #R77

ZHF  65%) R EAEERG -

ERRZZEZENF+=-A=
+— EIIEM@( TELF |
. BERES RAMESRRE R HIR60% (=

credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

with reference to the following:

3% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top

three grades of the internal rating system (2007: 5%);

Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

95% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2007: 95%);

Loans and advances to customers that are either individually or
collectively impaired constituted 1.7% (2007: 0.46%) of the total
loans and advances to customers. No advances to banks were
impaired as at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil); and

More than 60% (2007: 65%) of the investments in debt securities

and other bills have at least A- credit rating.

3.2.5 Bk Rk 3.2.5 Loans and advances
BEREBFEMmnT Loans and advances are summarised as follows:
—EZTN\F —ETLF
2008 2007
EFER RITER BEFER RITER
REXR KRB &L &L
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and
advances to advancesto advancesto  advancesto
£8 Group customers banks customers banks
B R R AR E Neither past due nor individually
impaired 57,882,997 179,226 58,415,480 160,426
@EEARERRE Past due but not individually impaired 2,102,897 - 2,626,217 -
(ENINERE Individually impaired 1,013,179 - 252,934 -
B Gross 60,999,073 179,226 61,294,631 160,426
B OREER Less: allowance for impairment (849,554) - (359,557) -
R Net 60,149,519 179,226 60,935,074 160,426

KHRITEEER AT
—ZEN\FEH
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fEEmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R #K () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
—EENFE b 3
EFEX BEFEN
kB8 &L
2008 2007
Loans and Loans and
advances to advances to
58 Group customers customers
HEEHRRBHR Impaired loans and advances
— ERRE GEF) - Individually impaired (Note (a)) 1,013,179 252,934
— FEREGE2) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 23,571 26,295
1,036,750 279,229
HEEE Impairment allowances made
— {ERIFHE GER) - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (550,909) (142,589)
— FaE(E2) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (22,367) (25,740)
(573,276) (168,329)
463,474 110,900
BEHIEERAFE" Fair value of collaterals held* 463,556 105,043
MEERRBREEFER Impaired loans and advances as a % of
kBFBBEzAEDL total loans and advances to customers 1.70% 0.46%

ERRATEDREBERDTEREFREES
B MERREEEE -

ERREERIZEEVRERREERELET
—fE ST ERENEREREE ([B
REMDWER - MZBEREHEZERZ T
ARBEREEXTZE - WaLr SEHEE o

REBEERRBRIEZL S AGE BEERERN
HRNEKREN2HRACBIHREEBENLTX
ZERRBR - ZEN LM 2 2 BEERES
BEEBHBRBEAREEGN—BD -

A EERRERBEEREEERR T —A=T
—HEZERREE -

Note:

(a)

(c)

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be reliably
estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date. The
collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a part
of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.
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3. A B B ()
3.2 fEEmEE @)
3.2.5 B KRB (4)

BRI 2587 5 B 2 5 4858 5849,554,000/%5 7T
(ZZZ 45 : 359,557,000/87C) * B LHE B
EE 2 % 1#550,909,0008 T (T T F -
142,589,000/ 7T) & ¥ #z4r & EE HNERZ
42 A ¥ {5 298,645,00008 T (Z T T+ F -
216,968,000 7T) ° MizF25RMEZE P ~ R1T
ERRBRZBEEBER o

BHE-T 7/\¢+ A=+—HLFE ~5HE
ZERRBFEETER0.5% « BARKEEANT
iﬁim);%)?&é%%ﬁ‘%iﬁiﬁﬁﬂ$ﬁf?kﬁiﬁﬁ% /A
BEEBRRMEFLHAITAENEEN G - F6H
Rt EERE - BETRFETFEEENER
&@ilizﬁﬁ&&%%\%&ﬁ ° RV BEEINER

BREATEENY - AREREBEETEEERR
ﬁ?%%#i&zjiﬁﬂ/ﬁ%giﬁﬁﬁ AARKERE
EERERRRBERMER 2 EMmEEd R K
&WZT%;:ETIZZ#/J\TE%H/E\ F EREBETER
F2ZWA - B 8D BHZERZMA
RERBRNAFFZEERE - REBFEMMEE
REETZERRP -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$849,554,000 (2007: HK$359,557,000), comprising an allowance of
HK$550,909,000 (2007: HK$142,589,000) for the individually impaired
loans and a collective allowance of HK$298,645,000 (2007:
HK$216,968,000) provided on loans assessed on a collective basis.
Further information on the impairment allowance for loans and

advances to customers and to banks is provided in Note 25.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s total loans and
advances decreased by 0.5%. When entering into new markets or
expanding business focus or allocation to different loan segments, the
Group undertakes proper risk assessment in accordance with credit
policies and procedures, review and approval of new risk limits, financial
and credit reviews with an emphasis on proper risk and return balance.
In order to minimise the potential increase of credit risk exposure, the
Group focussed more on the business with large corporate enterprises
or banks with good credit rating, extending credit to a diversified pool
of small-and-medium sized enterprises approved with proper
consideration of their risk profiles and collateral pledged to the Group,
and granting secured and unsecured credit to retail customers based
on customers’ income, occupation, credit scoring, collateral to be

pledged, and credit limit allowed for different loan types.
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fEEmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R #K () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FF)  fm a0 B ] (] B Rl (8,2 B3k 1% 3450 (a) Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
ERNBREET EERERAEOHARE The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were
ERRET) — 2 EREBRKA 2 AT neither past due nor individually impaired is normally assessed
BEGEL T - with reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.
EFEXR
BRAE ROEXR
BABEERF) i Total loans RBHAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans
BRF EEET advances and
Group Credit #HEER Hft  BHER REBER Trade i to  advances
At 31 December 2008 cards Mortgages Others Termloans Mortgages finance Others customers  to banks
EH Grades:
1-ME 1 - satisfactory 3,414,885 18,184,314 3,681,508 10,111,576 8,213,246 4,247,311 9,864,507 57,717,347 179,226
2-BRIBE 2 - special mention - - - 7,507 27,265 14,206 96,897 145,965 -
3-RBIIUT 3 - sub-standard or below 130 3,899 - - 5,735 1,700 8,221 19,685 -
At Total 3,415,015 18,188,213 3,681,508 10,119,173 8,246,246 4,263,217 9,969,625 57,882,997 179,226
EFEXR
BRAE ROEXR
BA(BERF) ¥ Total loans REBFHAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans
&8 ERF E50E advances and
ZEBRLE Group Credit RBER Bt AHER EBEXR Trade Eh to  advances
TZA=t-H At 31 December 2007 cards Mortgages Others Termloans Mortgages finance Others customers  to banks
0 Grades:
1-%8 1 - satisfactory 3,287,391 17,975,904 3,871,380 10,063,179 8,156,057 5,440,996 9,484,983 58,279,890 160,426
2-BRIBE 2 - special mention - - - - 18,419 12,515 60,612 91,546 -
3-RBIUT 3 - sub-standard or below 61 264 - - 40,064 442 3213 44,044 -
A Total 3,287,452 17,976,168 3,871,380 10,063,179 8214540 5453953 9,548,808 58,415,480 160,426
ERBREATER 2 BBEFTEZEFEAK Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were
Hon 2 BIEZRE T ERARRME - assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the

values and recovery of collaterals.
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fEEmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R #HGK () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) BEIER B E.Z B & EH (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EFERR
BABEEF) T BHAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
ERF E5mE and
@ Group Credit HBER it RBER Trade Hftr advances to
ZEE\E+ZA=1+-H  At31December 2008 cards Mortgages Others Mortgages finance Others customers
BE-EAIUT Past due up to 1 month 39,412 267,641 84,567 173,333 89,694 943,790 1,598,437
aB-EAUNLEE=HEA Past due more than 1 month and
up to 3 months 17,012 49,631 22,464 19,489 17,125 332,676 458,397
A=A LEEAER Past due more than 3 months and
up to 6 months 9,226 1,305 1,571 2,257 5,059 9,874 35,292
BENERAE Past due more than 6 months 2,307 - 1,085 - - 7,379 10,771
At Total 67,057 318577 115687 195079 111878 1293719 2,102,807
FEEARZDTE Fair value of collaterals® - 37972 3,919 193,049 6,983 1,081,955 1,603,878
EFERR
BABEEF) T BHAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
ERF E5mE and
@ Group Credit HBER it RBER Trade Hftr advances to
“EZEE+ZA=1-H  At31December 2007 cards Mortgages Others Mortgages finance Others customers
BE-EAIUT Past due up to 1 month 63,726 405,033 88,722 369,861 88,123 1,262,024 2,277,489
aB-EANLEE=HEA Past due more than 1 month and
up to 3 months 25,779 71,718 15,304 9,394 4,209 145,569 271,973
A=A LEEAER Past due more than 3 months and
up to 6 months 17,167 991 4,635 - 1,582 5,002 29,377
BEREANE Past due more than 6 months 1,316 3,239 3,178 18,756 2,497 18,392 47,378
At Total 107,988 480,981 111,839 398,011 96,411 1,430,987 2,626,217
BREERR ATE Fair value of collaterals* - 480,224 230 394,940 723 949,753 1,825,870
* BIRG 2 AFEDRERBRTELER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
REEES  MEPREEMTE value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
VRTERER N BHE  HER 2 AFE Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of
DIKBEEEEBEELYRRKA ZEERS collateral is based on valuation techniques commonly used for
SEMTE o BB HIRE - ERFENSEmE the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value
EA& Sk A8 & B fE B BT o is updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar
assets.
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fEEmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R #K () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1E1 5582 &P B3 & 250 (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired
AREERGTARBFAFEAR 2R ERATZ The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
ERIREZRFPER LT A1,013,179,000/8 the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
T (ZZZ 4 : 252,934,000/87T) © collateral held is HK$1,013,179,000 (2007: HK$252,934,000).
ERREERRBR BEENEEFF The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
VEIEIR 7 MR RAIR I8 A S EIREE R DT a0 and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
Nk collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
AEEE
EAEERF) % — AR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5RE allowances
£ Group RREX Ht  AHER  RBEX Trade Eff &3 - individual
ZEENETZA=+-H  At31December 2008 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment
ERAESR Individually impaired loans 19,425 5,172 86,787 55,091 263,387 582,717 1,013,179 550,909
REEARRIOTE Fair value of collaterals™ 15,463 762 16,178 35,388 63,210 332,055 463,556
HEEE
BABEEFR) ¥ — AR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
EARE allowances
&8 Group RREX 2 BHER RREX Trade At &3 -individual
“EEBEEFZA=T-H  At31December 2007 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment
FRIREER Individually impaired loans 19,734 5,297 3,015 17,095 64,650 143,143 252,934 142,589
BEEARZOTE Fair value of collaterals* 16,583 1,393 2,887 12,245 10,420 61,515 105,043
* B2 AFEDBEEMRTERER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
REBER  MEFBREEME ° value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. A B B ()
1o B R B (%)
3.2.5 B KRB (4)

3.2

(T) BEA=ERALZ
() BHREEERERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar:

s)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(@

Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

—EENF —ETLHF
2008 2007
B REE BARER
EREE BEREE
Gross 1H# %8 Gross h1B%E
amount of Batk amount of EFad
overdue % of overdue % of
58 Group loans total loans total
KEBEFER Gross advances to customers
BEE - mE which have been overdue for:
- ZEAREEXEA - six months or less but
over three months 203,430 0.33 87,239 0.14
- ~MAARLEE-F - one year or less but
over six months 143,438 0.23 81,789 0.14
- —FMNUE - over one year 131,592 0.22 105,627 0.17
478,460 0.78 274,655 0.45
(iy WBEREEERRBRZEEERNK (i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances against
M mE overdue loans and advances
EXNREH ERm HEER
RAEEUE BhfE BERm BERm HtEE —EAIEE
Outstanding Current  FIRENG REREFH BRHLEE Impairment
amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other allowances
@ Group loans and value of  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual
2B \F+ZA=t-H At 31 December 2008 advances collateral collateral collateral  mitigation assessment
BRREBEPENRER Overdue loans and advances
to customers 478,460 202,978 141,593 336,867 - 305,217
EXREX ERm HEEE
REEHE B BRE BRE HitEE — EAIEE
Outstanding Current FIREDH REREDG EREEEE  Impairment
amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other allowances
£8 Group loans and valueof  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual
“EELE+ZR=1-H At 31 December 2007 advances collateral collateral collateral  mitigation assessment
BEARERFPERRBN Overdue loans and advances
to customers 274,655 177,869 122,297 152,358 - 113,852

FEARIEARE EREFERK

YE
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fEEmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 HH KBk () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() #MEBHEZ (BEHIGEEREH=1E (e) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
AU EREZEENZ 205E) advances overdue for more than 3 months

ZEENF {FEEESL —ZTHHE HEEASK

£E Group 2008 % of total 2007 % of total
REER Advances to customers 294,506 0.48 66,121 0.11
B R Impairment allowances 18,504 591
3.2.6 WAl HL A i 3.2.6 Repossessed collateral
RERFE 2 WEEAROT Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:
e A
(M8 Group 2008 2007
EEMNE Nature of assets
qEk/ES Repossessed properties 53,075 7,517
Hit Others 26,090 21,125
79,165 28,642
W EHE R RIZ A TEARREE - BUEIER N Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
IR KREEZES - proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
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(ABEE T TLF)R)

3. A B B ()
32 fEEmEBE @)
3.2.7 EHEBH

TRIFRZZEZENFE T+ A=+ BRTRE
BIEE 2R RO 2B H3

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.7 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency

designation at 31 December 2008.

EEN

BEEE THHEERE BZIMRE ATVERE EXR

RREE Available- Held-to-  Designated EWzE
5E Group Trading for-sale maturity atfair  Loans and a3t
“EZ\E+=ZHA=+—H At31December 2008 assets investments investments value  receivables Total
AAA AAA - 410,039 77,499 - - 487,538
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 1,836,990 2,297,849 196,389 418,833 103,097 4,853,158
A-ZA+ A- to A+ 29,416 5,927,231 3,551,674 - 2,987,195 12,495,516
B REERA- Rated but lower than A- 5,655 4,622,513 2,333,702 145,312 3,806,354 10,913,536
REFR Unrated 3,503 827,279 - 1,145 - 831,927
att Total 1,875,564 14,084,911 6,159,264 565,290 6,896,646 29,581,675

BEMN

BEEE WHHUERE BZIHKRE ATESHE2 EXR

BABEE  Available- Held-to-  Designated EWFE
£F Group Trading for-sale maturity atfair  Loans and &t
ZZEZ+E+ZHA=+—H  At31December 2007 assets investments investments value receivables Total
AA-ZAA+ AA- to AA+ 2,258,460 4,558,428 718,512 1,351,698 - 8,887,098
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 22,949 10,424,640 2,556,309 - - 13,003,898
B REERA- Rated but lower than A- - 7,804,030 1,079,360 - - 8,883,390
REFE Unrated - 2,282,841 - - - 2,282,841
A&t Total 2,281,409 25,069,939 4,354,181 1,351,698 - 33,057,227

FRALEAREBEEF (CTTLF  E) -

R-ZEZ+F+-_A=Z+—HB A& E
1,560,000,0007% 7T 2 & 75 55 % 1% e 52 /= (& Bl
B WEERERESET% 2 MEERE - HER
BIZE - B RKEn % E41,030,000,000/% 7T
ZRERZZZNFAREERIFEIEREAR
FEAZEHZHGFABEOEMEE - WIKY)
TAHERES 2 A F(E264,000,00078 7T ABR o HEREL
BEW DB -

KR TEEERA R
—ZEN\FEH

There were no overdue debt securities in the year (2007: Nil).

As at 31 December 2007, debt securities with a principal value of

HK$1,560 million were identified as individually impaired and

impairment provisions amounting to 67% of the principal value had

been made. During 2008, a major portion of these impaired investments

with a principal value of HK$1,030 million was restructured and was

held as financial asset designated at fair value through profit or loss at

a fair value of HK$264 million on initial recognition. The remaining

balance was fully written off.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@  Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is
different from that of the counterparty.

At 31 December 2008, over 90% of the Group’s advances to
customers, including related impaired advances and overdue
advances, categorised on the basis of the geographical location
of the borrower were classified under Hong Kong (a position
unchanged from that as at 31 December 2007).

The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the Group
in relation to loans and advances, investments in securities, and
balances and placements with banks.

BITREM
SREE
Banks NEKRE
—EENF and other Public
+=A=+—H As at 31 Dec 2008 financial sector Hith Met
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAR - TEERBEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,415 240 9,761 19,416
tERBEE North and South America 602 - 3,051 3,653
BUM Europe 13,628 - 2,761 16,389
23,645 240 15,573 39,458
BITREM
SREE
Banks NERE
“EELE and other Public
+=ZHB=+—-8 As at 31 Dec 2007 financial sector Hit wet
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAR AEEBEBER  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 10,510 252 10,080 20,842
EEREE North and South America 966 - 2,684 3,650
BUM Europe 13,648 - 3,574 17,222
25,124 252 16,338 41,714

tESRERERREREARNER
% - RIER 5 E TP 4% B8 S 41
WXHHFHEEAEEAR - —RM = -
EXGHFNEETHETABRN S —
TR RBTERRS -HERITNEND
T MEEBZENTROER - 4 &
REBRA-BEREEES —BR - AR
BREIRARMEBREEERE10%3A 1
o[ R o

The above information of cross-border claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk
lies, and is derived according to the location of the counterparties
after taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, transfer
of risk from one country to another is recognised if the claims
against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in a
different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in a different country. Only
regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border
claims are disclosed.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans:

—EBEENE —ZTTLHEHE
£H Group 2008 2007
EBEAEFERMNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IHsR Industrial, commercial and financial
— MEER - Property development 448,282 389,293
— WEEE — Property investment 10,102,405 9,523,416
— SR — Financial concerns 373,243 528,728
- RELL - Stockbrokers 9,707 55,432
— tEEmTeEY - Wholesale and retail trade 1,187,833 1,204,904
— RUIEE - Manufacturing 885,724 1,277,385
— EBHNERZE — Transport and transport equipment 4,241,249 3,755,326
— FREIEE) - Recreational activities 23,507 58,083
— BB — Information technology 418 2,214
— EAh - Others 2,140,815 1,671,503
19,413,183 18,466,284
&A Individuals
- BEIEEBHEEHE] - - Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FLAZZEEEL & Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[MHEBHEFEIEFTER Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,625,129 1,776,573
- BEHMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,715,925 11,330,250
— EARER — Credit card advances 3,371,802 3,311,174
— Efh - Others 6,513,226 6,195,711
22,226,082 22,613,708
EEBFERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 41,639,265 41,079,992
Z oA Trade finance 4,457,618 5,393,581
BB AIMEANER GF) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note) 14,902,190 14,821,058
60,999,073 61,294,631

i EEBMMEANEREERTEBRR

BEFBRIMERZEHK -
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Note: Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to

customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside

Hong Kong.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, Executive
Committee (“EXCO”), Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCQO”), and Treasury Risk Committee (“TRC”). Risk limits are set by
products and by different risk types. Limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. Risk
Management and Control Department (“‘RMCD”) in Group Risk Division,
as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific action to ensure the overall and the individual
market risks are managed within an acceptable level. Any exceptions
have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate level of
management of TRC or by EXCO.

The launch of every new product is governed by the New Product
Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy in which the
relevant business units, supporting functions and Group Risk review
the critical requirements, risk assessment and resources plan. The
Group’s Internal Audit function performs regular independent review
and testing to ensure compliance with the market risk policies and

procedures by Treasury, RMCD and other relevant units.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”) which are subsidiaries of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”), run their treasury functions locally under their own set of limits
and policies and within the overall market risk limits set by DSB. RMCD
of DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operation of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures

in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading

positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and

derivatives.

@

Market risk measurement technique

As part of the management of market risk, the Group undertakes

various hedging strategies. The Group enters into interest rate

swaps to match the interest rate risk associated with the fixed-

rate long-term debt securities. The major measurement

techniques used to measure and control market risk are outlined

below.

Value at risk

The Group applies a “value at risk” methodology (“VaR”) to
its trading portfolio to estimate the market risk positions
held and the maximum losses expected, based on a
number of assumptions for various changes in market
conditions. The Board sets limits on the value at risk that
are acceptable for the Group which are monitored on a daily

basis by Group Risk.

VaR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on
the current portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses the “maximum” amount the Group might lose,
but only to a certain level of confidence which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. The VaR model assumes a
certain “holding period” until positions can be closed. It is
also based on the current mark-to-market value of the
positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of the
market risk factors over a period of 250 days (or over one
year). The Group applies these historical correlation and
volatilities in rates, prices, indices, etc. directly to its current
positions using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to
test the validity of the assumptions and parameters/factors

used in the VaR calculations.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
(@)  Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside

of these limits in the event of more significant market

movements.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board annually for all trading portfolio operations
and allocated to business units. Actual exposures against
limits, together with DSB’s VaR, is reviewed daily by Group
Risk. Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading

-l

activities during the year was HK$5,148,000 (2007:

HK$4,312,000).

The quality of the VaR model is continuously monitored by
back-testing the VaR results for trading books. All back-

testing exceptions are investigated, and all back-testing

results are reported to senior management.

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by Group Risk include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and ad hoc stress testing, which includes

applying possible stress events to specific positions or

regions.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior
management in each business unit and by the Board of

Directors. The stress testing is tailored to the business and

typically uses scenario analysis.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
(®)

BE-ZENE+=A=t+—-HLt+=f@A g
12 months to 31 Dec 2008

VaR summary of trading portfolio

“EE+E+-A=+—-HIE+ZMEA
12 months to 31 Dec 2007

¥4 B& B{& ¥4 B& RIE

£ Group Average High Low Average High Low
SNERBR Foreign exchange risk 2,769 5,353 670 1,383 3,550 506
FIEER Interest rate risk 3,858 7,714 1,727 3,538 8,981 1,308
REE R Equities risk - - - 27 624 -
FERR Credit risk 260 1,117 - 343 766 125
e All risks 5,148 9,181 2,700 4,312 10,507 1,758

3.3.2 JF B BRATHR Z 7 43 ), B

AREBZRITRT - MHEAREZ2REMERE
HFRERMEFZFR

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.
() m5E R ET % (@)

Market risk measurement technique

EEEe THZERRMERRZES
RIYZERERERRBES  RETH
R ERETHMER  HUHRTERE
HAKERITRPABINERR - FXE
BRERBHESRARSETIRARE ZRAR - &
SETHETHEEABRARINGES
ZHEBEMERBMRDEECERTEK —

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board, EXCO and TRC, various management action
triggers (“MATs”) are established to provide early alert to
management on the different levels of exposures of the Group’s
banking book activities to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
and liquidity risk. Sensitivity analysis and stress testing covering

shocks and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on- and off-

BISERBRATBS 2 REE DT RE
NRAH - HHERETHEEREAGER
BRAFERAEBRITERP ZTHEAR

A% B3R B 3 SRR A T 5 R B BU(EDE A ST
ERERBITRD ZTERR
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balance sheet positions, liquidity drift under institution-specific
and general market crisis scenarios are regularly performed to
gauge and forecast the market risk inherent in the Group’s
banking book portfolios against these MATs.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

The following descriptions on sensitivity analysis relate to the Dah

Sing Bank Group.

@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD and MOP) as foreign exchange positions
and foreign currency balances arising from customer
transactions are normally matched against other customer
transactions or transactions with the market. The net
exposure positions, both by individual currency and in
aggregate, are managed by the Treasury of the Group on a

daily basis within established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, is normally
matched using foreign exchange forward contracts to

reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2008, if HK$ had weakened by 1% against
US$ with all other variable held constant, the profit after
taxation for the year would have been HK$9,193,000 higher
(2007: HK$11,730,000 higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gain on translation of US$ denominated financial
assets compensated by foreign exchange losses on

translation of US$ denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 1% against US$
with all other variables held constant, profit after tax for the
year would have been HK$9,193,000 lower (2007:
HK$11,730,000 lower).

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate
risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair
value and cash flow risks. Interest margins and net interest
income may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements arise.
The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored
daily by RMCD.

At 31 December 2008, if HK$ market interest rates had been
200 basis points higher and US$ market interest rates had
been 200 basis points higher with other variables held
constant, profit after tax over the next 12 months and
economic value would have been HK$91 million lower
(2007: HK$71 million lower) and HK$159 million lower
(2007: HK$192 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange and interest rate risk are on the
same basis for both 2007 and 2008.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the

Group’s investments in debt securities are also exposed to other

price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments could

change significantly depending on a variety of factors including

liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect

individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

lll

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by currency.

&5 Group BT En B 2t ChHi
“BEN\FtZA=1-H As at 31 December 2008 HKD usD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
BeRERTHER Cash and balances with banks 3,817,013 5,490,460 249,477 3,108,217 12,665,167
EFT-E+-EAREHHFH  Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 84,500 1,267,193 - 305,257 1,656,950

RIEEERENES Trading securities 1,837,076 117 - 38,371 1,875,564
AATFENEEEED Financial assets at fair value through

SABRNEREE profit or loss 418,833 146,457 - - 565,290
fTHESBIA Derivative financial instruments 412,773 652,633 - 1,033 1,066,439
EREFRHEBEE Advances and other accounts 54,909,063 8,821,242 1,545,412 4,231,619 69,507,336
A E RS Available-for-sale securities 1,780,015 10,560,217 631 1,006,436 14,247,209
2 EEES Held-to-maturity securities 385,000 2,958,187 1,135,177 1,680,900 6,159,264
SREESH Total financial assets 63,644,273 29,896,506 2,930,697 11,271,833 107,743,309
8& Liabilities
BOER Deposits from banks 102,864 2,165,574 65,620 109,536 2,443,594
fTEERMTIA Derivative financial instruments 458,596 1,649,208 - 159,836 2,267,640
HIEEERANEE Trading liabilities 1,791,419 - - - 1,791,419
EEAATEHEREES Deposits from customers designated

FABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 462,618 8,447 - - 471,065
EPER Deposits from customers 54,194,369 15,172,547 4,126,410 8,397,121 81,890,447
BROINGENE Certificates of deposit issued 3,553,427 329,117 223,262 549,179 4,654,985
BRIINERES Issued debt securities 459,654 2,343,986 - - 2,803,640
BREER Subordinated notes - 5,671,716 - - 5,671,716
Hink B kiR Other accounts and accruals 1,366,127 525,858 30,942 260,735 2,183,662
SRMAEAH Total financial liabilities 62,380,074 27,866,453 4446234 9,476,407 104,178,168
BEABRLERATE Net on-balance sheet positions 1,255,199 2,030,053  (1,515,537) 1,795,426 3,565,141
BEERRISRERTE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 4,398,489  (2,308,091) 676  (1,740,531) 350,543
BEAE Credit commitments 36,179,150 588,215 536,842 380,313 37,684,520
* BEBERIIMNGRERRFHEEIZANBESE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

SMNEZEB R 2 INESRIOTAE T AMRZIFE -

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 i EBE () 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 SN i () 3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
£8 Group B En R 2t Bt
“EZtf+=-A=1+-H As at 31 December 2007 HKD usD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
Re RERTNER Cash and balances with banks 1,182,574 6,035,470 285,652 2,521,307 10,025,003
EFT-E+-EAREHOFH  Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 530,000 1,357,301 - 32,041 1,919,342
%1&%’ ERgNES Trading securities 2,258,421 39 - 22,949 2,281,409
AFENEEHED Financial assets at fair value through

ﬁ/\%@ SMEMEE profit or loss 791,548 560,150 - - 1,351,698
TSI A Derivative financial instruments 407,538 195,434 - 155,075 758,047
RIE%%K&EME B Advances and other accounts 57,791,381 4,811,614 1,514,673 1,321,100 65,438,768
AREEE Available-for-sale securities 5,441,088 13,571,693 1,201,087 5,220,327 25,434,195
B2HH Held-to-maturity securities - 2,248,905 - 2,105,276 4,354,181
SREERT Total financial assets 68,402,550 28,780,606 3,001,412 11,378,075 111,562,643
8% Liabilities
BAER Deposits from banks 1,508,306 1,047,901 66,942 28,519 2,651,668
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 438,322 511,438 - 21,021 970,781
HIEEERANEE Trading liabilities 2,689,069 - - - 2,689,069
EEAATEAHEREES Deposits from customers designated

FABENEPER at fair value through profit or loss 2,551,973 590,515 - - 3,142,488
REEH Deposits from customers 51,942,984 12,755,626 3,987,607 7,254,644 75,940,861
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 7,061,487 1,211,586 78,353 491,988 8,843,414
BEINESES Issued debt securities 454,778 2,340,083 - - 2,794,861
REER Subordinated notes - 5,147,837 - - 5,147,837
Hiik B kiR Other accounts and accruals 3,202,319 726,706 26,669 438,896 4,394,590
SREEA Total financial liabilities 69,849,238 24,331,692 4,159,571 8,235,068 106,575,569
BEERRLERRE Net on-balance sheet positions (1,446,688)  4,448914  (1,158,159) 3,143,007 4,987,074
EEGBRIMRERRE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 7,368,424 (3,745,234) 249 (3,861,441) (238,002)
EERE Credit commitments 35,482,031 1,615,566 606,118 867,801 38,571,516
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Notes to the Financial Statements

lll

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

TERMINAEE 2 A ERERE - RABEASEEIR The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
FEHSBHECTESRMEERBE  WIRETE Included in the table are the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets
BXRALINMB (UREERE) D - and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of

contractual repricing or maturity dates.

ZEANE -FHE
=f8A 2-F gk 3

FUT Over Over BENE T &
8 Group 3 months 3 months 1 year Over Non-Interest H
“EEN\FtZA=t-H As at 31 December 2008 or less tolyear  to5years 5 years Bearing Total
£E Assets
Re RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 10,617,948 - - - 2,047,219 12,665,167
ERT-ETZEARIBHTR Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 1,555,992 100,958 - - - 1,656,950
RIEEERBNES Trading securities 645,756 860,185 369,537 86 - 1,875,564
NATEGEEAEE Financial assets at fair value through
AABRNEREAE profit or loss 418,832 - - 146,458 - 565,290
fTESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,066,439 1,066,439
RBERREMES Advances and other accounts 53,029,291  3,825480 5248373 4,940,166 2,464,026 69,507,336
HHEES Available-for-sale securities 1,844,418 4,194,637 2,744,427 5,260,541 203,276 14,247,299
BEISER Held-to-maturity securities 4,845,057 219,911 230,776 863,520 - 6,159,264
tREEA Total financial assets 72,957,294 9,201,171 8,593,113 11,210,771 5,780,960 107,743,309
8% Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 848,030 1,522,167 - - 73,307 2,443,594
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 2,267,640 2,267,640
BIEEERBNERE Trading liabilities 944,493 802,038 44,714 174 - 1,791,419
BEENATENERES Deposits from customers designated
SABRNEPEN at fair value through profit or loss 428,767 42,298 - - - 471,065
EFREH Deposits from customers 72,428,070 5805222 1,684,273 - 1,972,882 81,890,447
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,666,445 1,439,314 549,226 - - 4,654,985
BROINEBRES Issued debt securities 1,162,500 1,641,140 - - - 2,808,640
#EEH Subordinated notes 2,325,000 - 1443438 1,903,278 - 571,716
LR RER Other accounts and accruals 313,000 - - - 1,870,662 2,183,662
SREBAH Total financial liabilities 81,116,305 11,252,179 3,721,651 1,903,452 6,184,581 104,178,168
FIEBEZEA (REHAR) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted) (8,159,011)  (2,051,008) 4,871,462 9,307,319
FRfETREANZ Y E Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,526,950 3,256,917 1,400,523 (9,222,477
FSREZES (KHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)*  (3,632,061) 1,205,909 6,271,985 84,842
* REARF EREEZEENREEBBRRANEEM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
BENFEEET - KRB EREZEDA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
FUBEFI R M#EITHFEKITETAEA LMK takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
R into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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(ABEE T TLF)R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 i EBE )
3.3.4 FF M 5 (%)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

SEANRE —ENLE
=R B-fF Bnf
HHUT Over Over BENE T8
£8 Group 3months 3 months 1year Over Non-Interest EH
“ZZtf+-A=t+-H As at 31 December 2007 orless  tolyear to5years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
ReRERTHER Cash and balances with banks 8,297,813 - - - 1,727,190 10,025,003
ERT-E+ZEARESOFR  Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 1,557,301 362,041 - - - 1,919,342

BEBERGNES Trading securities 890,706 980,190 389,253 21,260 - 2,281,409
AATEFEEAE Financial assets at fair value through

SABRNSREE profit or loss 1,295,734 55,964 - - - 1,351,698
frEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 758,047 758,047
ZREFREAMER Advances and other accounts 52,316,880 3,507,464 4,087,118 748270 4,689,036 65,438,768
MHHEES Available-for-sale securities 7878752 2708171 3,676,110 10,307,012 864,150 25,434,195
BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 2,859,419 194,549 76,064 1,224,149 - 4,354,181
SREEST Total financial assets 75,096,605 7,898,379 8228545 12,300,691 8,038,423 111,562,643
8 Liabilities
BIEH Deposits from banks 2,472,762 - - - 178,906 2,651,668
fTESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 970,781 970,781
FIEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 2,341,369 223,033 124,667 - - 2,689,069
BENATEABERED Deposits from customers designated

STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 2,084,671 728,738 329,079 - - 3,142,488
RPEH Deposits from customers 69,643,159 2,724,679 939,756 - 2,633,267 75,940,861
BETHENE Certificates of deposit issued 4,062,896 2,771,948 2,008,570 - - 8843414
BREOINEBES Issued debt securities 1,170,135 - 162472 - - 2,794,861
FEER Subordinated notes 2,340,270 - 1,163,688 1,643,879 - 5147837
EtEARER Other accounts and accruals - - - - 4394590 4,394,590
tREES Total financial liabilities 84115262 6448398 6,190,486 1,643,879 8,177,544 106,575,569
FEREZRAH (RERE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (9,018,657) 1,449,981 2,038,059 10,656,812
FRFTEIRG N E Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,173,845 3220320 2,676,837 (9,973,242
FISBEZBA T (KRR Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)*  (4,844,812) 4,670,301 4,714,896 683,570
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due
and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may
be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil

commitments to lend.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis to ensure that a
sufficiently high liquidity ratio relative to the statutory minimum is
maintained throughout the year. The average liquidity ratio of the
banking subsidiaries within the Group during the period was well above

the 25% minimum ratio set by the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group’s Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
regularly reviews the Group’s current loan and deposit mix and changes,
funding requirements and projections, and monitors the liquidity ratio
and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate limits on
liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch are set and sufficient liquid assets
are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term funding

requirements.

The Group’s funding comprises mainly deposits of customers,
certificates of deposit and medium term notes issued. The issuance of
certificates of deposit and medium term notes helps lengthen the
funding maturity and reduce the maturity mismatch. Short-term
interbank deposits are taken on a limited basis and the Group is a net

lender to the interbank market.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and
projections for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are
key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial

liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

ALCO also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and
type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities
and the impact of contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit

and guarantees.
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(ABEE T TLF)R)

3. A B B ()
3.4 RENE 4R GH)

3.4.2 #H H 7

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TROMAEEIZGEEBEHEEA NS BERK The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
FAERR (WER) 2 nKEI B EERE maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet
Ao date to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable, the earliest
callable date.
-@ANLE =AML -ENE
DHEE B=@RHLT E-F E3i¥:3
Repayable —fBAZMT 3 months or Over Over RENE

&8 Group on Upto lesshutover 3 months 1year Over EHWAEH &t
“EENE+ZRA=1-H As at 31 December 2008 demand 1 month 1 month to1year  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
RERERTHER Cash and balances with banks 2,483,016 10,182,151 - - - - - 12,665,167
ERT-Et-EAR Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months - - 1,555,002 100,958 - - - 1,656,950
RIEEERBNES Trading securities - - 645,757 860,183 369,538 86 - 1,875,564
NAFEFEAEEHHA  Financial assets at fair value through

BrNeBEE profit or loss - 418,833 - - - 146,457 - 565,290
fEEBIA Derivative financial instruments - 240,361 18,023 101,174 325,438 381,443 - 1,066,439
ZEEFRAMEST Advances and other accounts 6,389,292 5,887,624 5,173,542 6,838,576 20,020,874 24,871,375 326,053 69,507,336
TiERS Available-for-sale securites - 15 45211 4476956 3866599 5428106 203276 14,247,209
BEHEES Held-to-maturity securities - 507,615 500,134 736,067 2118970 22206478 - 6,159,264
BENTkE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 1132461 1,132,461
AEEHEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 59,973 59,973
S Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 126,875 126,875
NEREHEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1666499 1,666,499
REME Investment properties - - - - - - 546,172 546,172
HSHEEE Current income tax assets - - - 139,860 - - - 139,860
BEHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 159,380 - - 159,380
BERT Total assets 8,872,308 17,263,737 8,138,659 13,253,772 26,860,799 33,123,945 4,872,999 112,386,219
8% Liabilities
RER Deposits from banks 53,237 774,143 214,297 1,169,417 232,500 - - 2,443,594
ESRIA Derivatve financil intruments - s N477 60276 338936 1562204 - 2267640
HEEERRNER Trading liabilties - 944,493 - 802,038 44,714 174 - 1,791,419
ETULTEFEEEEE  Deposits from customers designated

SABRNEFRER at fair value through profit or loss - 418,831 9,935 42,299 - - - 471,065
EN Deposits from customers 18,258,098 32,740,368 24,072,122 5,864,973 954,886 - - 81,890,447
BEIRENE Certificates of deposit issued - 2,507 961,000 2,444,829 1,246,649 - - 4,654,985
BEANERES Issued debt securities - - - 2,803,640 - - - 2,803,640
hEER Subordinated notes - - - - 3768438 1,903,218 - 567,716
EEERER Other accounts and accruals 23,111 551,202 416,444 571,302 335,260 - 206,253 2,183,662
HEnEaE Current income tax liabilties - - - 12,682 - - - 12,682
ERHBEE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 836 739 - - 1,575
e Total liabilities 18,334,446 35,707,381 25,695,275 13,781,292 6,922,122 3,465,656 286,253 104,192,425
BRBLEE Net liquidity gap (0462138) (18443644) (17556616)  (527520) 19938677 20656280 4506746 8,193,794
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
34 MEBE 4B () 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 A H 447 (#) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

-@ANL  ZMAMNE -EHE
I B=@AZLNT E-% E5¥:3
Repayable —fEEZAT 3 months or Over Over BENE

£8 Group on Upto lesshutover 3 months 1 year Over RFHAH fit
ZEStETZA=T-H  Asat31December 2007 demand 1month imonth  tolyear  to5years Syears  Indefinite Total
EE Assets
ReREBINER Cash and balances with banks 1553203 8421311 50,399 - - - - 10,025,003
ERT-ETZEARA Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months - - 1,557,301 362,041 - - - 1919342
RBEEERRNES Trading securities - 45,191 845,515 980,190 389,253 21,260 - 2,281,409
DATEFEAEZEHHA  Financial assets at fair value through

BRNeBEE profit or loss - 418,850 876,884 55,964 - - - 1351698
i Derivative financial instruments 606 78,376 122,305 135,617 201,807 219,336 - 758,047
EEERRAMEKE Advances and other accounts 6,365,031 8029555 5222983 6467463 17681885 21412714 259,137 65,438,768
RLESS Available-for-sale securities - 1458772 3623701 2841619 5870631 11,271,138 366,334 25,434,195
RENBES Held-to-maturity securities - 4,833 - 101522 1405279 2,842,547 - 4,354,181
BANARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 800,989 800,989
AREHEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 63,852 63,852
g Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EREE Intangible assets - - - - - - 145,911 145,911
NERAMEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1785033 1,785,033
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 658,588 658,588
SBHEEE Current income tax assets - - - 102,004 - - - 102,224
BEREEE Deferted income tax assets - - - - 9,228 - - 9,228
BERT Total assets 7018930 18456888 12,299,088 11046640 25558083 35766995 4893534 115,940,158
af Liabilities
BIER Deposits from banks 178572 1,559,972 679,007 - 234,007 - - 2,651,668
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 18,788 117,821 140,696 145,565 185,091 362,820 - 970,781
FEEERSNER Trading liabilities 439,152 954,494 947,724 223,032 124,667 - - 2,689,069
EEUATEFEEEZZY  Deposits from customers designated

HABRNEPEH at fair value through profit or loss - 919885 2,015,733 154,821 52,049 - - 3142488
EPEH Deposits from customers 18748346 41,198,289  12,000495 2,963,975 939,756 - - 75,940,861
REDLILEE Certificates of deposit issued - 27917 1704505 3686949 3,204,043 - - 8843414
EREINERER Issued debt securities - - - - 2794861 - - 2,794,861
hEEH Subordinated notes - - - - 350395  1,643879 - 5147837
HbEE RER Other accounts and accruals 16478 3,067,489 558,749 321,863 2,439 3 47569 4394590
HEHERE Current income tax labilties - 564 - 26,692 - - - 27,56
BEHEERE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 176 88,686 - - 88,862
BEAH Total liabilities 19401336 48046431 18,136,999 7523073 11149577 2,006,702 407569 106,691,687
ERBHER Net liquidity gap (11482406)  (29580543)  (5,837911) 3523567 14408506 33,760,293 4465965  9,248471
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of
the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types.
An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also
increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options; and

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, and other interest rate
contracts.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps;

° Equity derivatives: equity options; and

° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3.

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)
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3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

N\

-ERAEUT -@EANL =AML —FHLE  EENUE
8 Group Upto 2= Z+=fiA pgiR:d Over Bt
“EEN\Ft-A=t-H As at 31 December 2008 1month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
EMETERER Non-derivative cash flow
BE Liabilities
ROFER Deposits from banks 1,432,753 432,081 1,228,656 258,649 - 3,352,139
BENATEABERED Deposits from customers designated
SABRNEPEN at fair value through profit or loss 425,412 - - - - 425,412
RPEH Deposits from customers 51,217,044 24,726,807 5,970,309 1,018,779 - 82,933,029
BEEERENERE Trading liabilities 1,725,500 138 22,306 44,840 103 1,792,887
BEINGTRE Certificates of deposit issued 220,981 805321 2,607,345 1,243,026 - 4,876,673
BREINEKES Issued debt securities - 16,674 2,854,482 - - 2,871,156
BEER Subordinated notes - 100,742 179,179 4,719,663 1,894,340 6,893,924
s Other liabilities 432,344 88,103 378,745 24,625 - 923,817
BELE Total liabilities
(AH3IHA) (contractual maturity dates) 55,454,034 26,169,956 13,241,022 7,309,582 1,894,443 104,069,037
TETARER Derivative cash flow
BRREEZTESRTIEA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 800 20,407 29,751 69,426 40,049 160,433
REBLETEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
MBS Total outflow 35,107,146 | | 15,457,315 | | 10,922,097 | | 4,044,704 | | 1,973,837 | 67,505,999
RARE Total inflow (35,086,194) |(15,437,453) |(10,842,954) | (3,684,250) | (1,605,545) |(66,656,396)
20,952 19,862 80,043 360,454 368,292 849,603
-BAIUT -@ANE =AML -FENLE  EENE
&3 Group Upto 2= Z+=fiA ERE Over Bt
ZEELETCAZT-H As at 31 December 2007 imonth 1-3months 3-12months  1-5years 5years Total
FTETERER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
BAER Deposits from banks 2,483,018 275,415 5,851 - - 2,764,284
BENATEHRBEASRS Deposits from customers designated
STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 914,501 1,990,646 118,373 45,609 - 3,069,129
RPRER Deposits from customers 60,825,417 12,409,316 3,134,577 486,342 - 76,855,652
BIEEERSNAR Trading liabilities 1,395,000 951,849 229,097 128,669 - 2704615
BREINERE Certificates of deposit issued 268,682 1,780,797 3979475 3,492,031 - 9520985
BEINERES Issued debt securities - 20,799 111,281 2,921,434 - 3053514
BEER Subordinated notes - 116,544 182,742 4436114 2,005424 6,740,824
Ehaf Other liabilities 3,419,495 171,529 410,908 1,808 - 4,003,740
BEAE Total liabilities
(BHEIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 69,306,113 17,716,895 8,172,304 11,512,007 2,005,424 108,712,743
TETERSR Derivative cash flow
RERLEEZITESRIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 759 5,378 (4,357) (5,384) - (3,604)
REBEETESRTEA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
ik Total outflow 27,870,619| | 12,123,061 | | 16,384,020| | 1,173,543 696,360 | | 58,247,603
mARE Total inflow (27,813,018) |(12,130,970)| |(16,430,247) | (1,511,731) | (675,032)| |(58,560,998)
57,601 (7,909) (46,227)  (338,188) 21,328 (313,395)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in the
course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to banks;
and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course of
business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable within
one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and treasury bills
have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group would also be able
to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and

accessing additional funding sources such as repo market.

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

° Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

o Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
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3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
34 MEBE 4B () 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 BEAFELEIEH #) 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
—FHR —F L% EFENE
58 Group No later ERE Over |t
—EZEN\FE+=-HA=1+—H At 31 December 2008 than 1 year 1-5 years 5years Total
ERRIE Loan commitments 35,615,524 919,873 - 36,535,397
R AR Guarantees, acceptances and
HAh & @RS other financial facilities
— &5 - Acceptances 9,970 - - 9,970
- BEREERERT - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 554,939 45,808 110,571 711,318
— REREERERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 354,288 - - 354,288
TR A RIE Operating lease commitments 81,619 54,256 24,300 160,175
BAREE Capital commitments 99,587 - - 99,587
At Total 36,715,927 1,019,937 134,871 37,870,735
—F R —FHU#E RENE
£ Group No later ZHE Over &t
—EZtLFE+-HA=1+—H At 31 December 2007 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
ERRE Loan commitments 34,865,943 1,097,019 - 35,962,962
BER ALK Guarantees, acceptances and
Hitn & gl AR5 other financial facilities
— #5 - Acceptances 37,677 - - 37,677
- ERRERERL - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 486,521 66,118 110,793 663,432
- RERFEERL - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 873,606 3,692 - 877,298
4R T A Operating lease commitments 78,290 81,463 - 159,753
B Capital commitments 83,904 - - 83,904
A&t Total 36,425,941 1,248,292 110,793 37,785,026

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited 127
Annual Report 2008



B 15 R R B ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

(ABEE T TLF)R)

3. A B B ()
35 AmhgEMkAEZ A FE

RERBTSEEZEMIA (FIMARESE 21T
ATA  BEEEAZNESFMAIHEE 285
ZRHERBERZMGER - AEBEAFZRE
BEMAZTER/EREAE  MERAEE
AmERERELE -

FERTSEE M IA (PINERRSITE
TR ZAFHEDERGERMEE - AEBE(E
REENE UREEERERZTRELR
#® e RHBEREDEARETIAZTSEXRZH
ZHRE BETHSKSMIAZAFERAERE
by - BIATEET IR RS RE - FIERHZ A
FEREFARREREZREFH < BHIME
BRIz A HERERRGEE R BIMNET G EE

WHRBEZREME  eMEERABZAFED
BEASKEARZFRESR T RILERMSN R
BARARENACREMTH -

() FRAEETFFEBATFEZ 2T A

RZZENER_ZTTLEFR  AEEY
BEEMUARFEFEZERTABRAR
BUHRAKFABETAZ AABRRIITESLAR
BKEASRABRIZM5EN ZHE
bz

128 AHRFEMERLT

“TENETH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded derivatives, trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is

the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such
as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest-rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet
date.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for

similar financial instruments.

(@)  Financial instruments measured at fair value using a

valuation technique

During 2008 and 2007, there was no financial instrument
measured at fair value using a valuation technique which is based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market
prices for the same or similar instrument or not based on available

observable market data.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)
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Financial instruments not measured at fair value
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values

of those financial assets and liabilities not presented in the

NEE - Group’s balance sheet at their fair value.
IREE ATHE
Carrying value Fair value
—BENFE C—TTtF CZBENF —TTtH

£6 Group 2008 2007 2008 2007
CHEE Financial assets
Re RERITHE Cash and balances with banks 12,665,167 10,025,003 12,686,558 10,026,795
EHRT—E2+ZEAR Placements with banks maturing

BB TR between one and twelve months 1,656,950 1,919,342 1,670,723 1,922,782
REER Advances to customers

BEAER(EEEP) Loans to individuals (retail customers)

- AR - Credit cards 3,482,972 3,395,440 3,483,173 3,395,440

- RIBER - Mortgages 18,526,215 18,476,883 18,537,337 18,476,608

— Hfp - Others 3,802,967 3,988,516 3,780,619 3,991,654

TEER Loans to corporate entitles

- EHEX - Term loans 10,205,960 10,066,194 10,206,200 10,066,194

— BBER - Mortgages 8,496,416 8,629,646 8,511,550 8,629,646

- BH5ME - Trade finance 4,638,482 5,615,014 4,638,656 5,615,014

- Hf - Others 11,846,061 11,122,938 11,810,914 11,133,174
RITER Advances to banks 179,226 160,426 179,245 160,426

BIEEETR R ER Investments in securities included in

FIEER 2 BHEE the loans and receivables category 6,896,646 - 5,905,929 -
REIHES Held-to-maturity securities 6,159,264 4,354,181 5,582,702 4,137,630
cREE Financial liabilities
RITIFR Deposits from banks 2,443,594 2,651,668 2,471,173 2,645,147
BEPEH Deposits from customers 81,890,447 75,940,861 82,128,041 76,035,114
EETNFRE Certificates of deposit issued 3,049,263 4,683,146 3,058,637 4,680,509
BETNEBRES Issued debt securities 1,622,154 1,624,913 1,622,409 1,624,311
BEEY Subordinated notes 4,631,278 3,984,149 3,601,752 3,791,963

@)

FEIRITHFERIMRITER

FEIRITHFE SR
BTYERMAE - lmﬂgfﬁz ANSS
BEREMERBEERR
RSpREZEBAZSEEH i%ﬂ?
HEZEFRBBRRERN -

Placements with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for

debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
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3. WAES R B A B () 3. Financial risk management (Continued)
35 &mhEERABZATE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) KEELAFEFEZEHBTA (B) (b)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

iy EPEZRKBRARK (i)  Loans and advances to customers

BRI 2 i3 A FEIFTR R
R A RR L2 BB -
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EAFE -
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The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents
the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are

discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held to maturity
categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets and loans
and receivables is based on market prices or broker/dealer
price quotations. Where this information is not available,
fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for
securities with similar credit, maturity and yield

characteristics.

Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other

borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using

interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

Debt securities in issue

For those notes where a quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to

maturity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimize the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS Bank Limited
(“MEVAS?”), are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel
Committee, as implemented by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA"), for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed
with the HKMA on a quarterly basis. The HKMA requires DSB and
MEVAS to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted
amount (i.e. the capital adequacy ratio) at or above the internationally
agreed minimum of 8%. These banking subsidiaries’ regulatory capital

as managed by the Group’s management is divided into two tiers:

° Core capital: share capital, profit and loss, and reserves created
by appropriations of retained earnings. The book value of goodwiill
and other intangible assets is deducted in arriving at core capital;
and

° Supplementary capital: qualifying perpetual and term
subordinated debts, collectively assessed impairment
allowances, regulatory reserve, and fair value gains arising on
revaluation of holdings of land and buildings and available-for-

sale equities and debt securities.

Investment in subsidiaries, significant investments in non-subsidiary
companies and shares, exposures to connected companies and
investments in other banks’ equity are deducted from core capital and

supplementary capital to arrive at the regulatory capital.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognized by
the HKMA or other principles as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-
balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts
by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before
being classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet

exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and China’s banking subsidiary, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM?”) and the China Banking Regulatory

Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk weighted exposures (i.e. the solvency ratio) at

or above the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as the Securities

and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give

rise to the risk that the Group will be accused of mal-administration.
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4. Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of
the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the Group
arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable

in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of recoverable
amounts. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and

actual loss experience.
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4.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets, the
Group has witnessed observable declines in market liquidity and
the range of market quotations for certain securities have
widened. The Group applies judgment in selecting the most
appropriate quotation for valuation purposes based on its
assessment of the range of observable quotations, recent
observable transactions, the reliability and quality of the pricing

source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

The Group has invested in leveraged/structured investment
vehicles managed by third party portfolio managers, which are
included in the Group’s available-for-sale investment portfolio.
These vehicles typically invest in medium term high grade bonds
using short to medium term financing to provide an enhanced
yield to investors. During the year, the Group observed that these
vehicles experienced more difficult funding conditions, and were
reliant to varying extents on their managers or bank sponsors for
funding support. Falls in the prices of bonds during the year,
coupled with the leverage effect on the Group’s holdings has
resulted in a decrease in their values. As a result, the Group has
assessed that there are objective indications that the vehicles
have suffered impairment, and an impairment loss has therefore
been recognised at the balance sheet date calculated with

reference to valuations received from the portfolio managers.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be
generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates which
could be caused by major changes in market conditions and
outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values of such
assets. In the event that the expected recoverable amounts of
goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than their
carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be

recognised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgment, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but
also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to supply
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (‘HTM”) and loans
and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end of the year and
up to the date of the approval of the financial statements of the
Group. Assessment for any impairment, on individual and
collective basis, is made with reference to the financial strength
and credit rating of each issuer, industry development and market
conditions, and historical loss experience of a portfolio of similar
credits provided by rating agencies. Apart from the SIV
investments, and those AFS equity securities and HTM debt
securities having been assessed as impaired, the Group has
concluded that there are no objective or specific indications that
any of its other AFS, HTM and LNR securities is impaired.
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42

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)
(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances - for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments

would therefore be measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgment is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need to
be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In
making this judgment, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and estimated
amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred to settle
the obligation after considering factors such as recent settlement

experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5.

Segment Reporting

(A) By business segments

For the year ended 31 December 2008

lll

N\

BART  BERS
Personal Commercial — BE¥H KAEEH it @t
&8 Group Banking Banking Treasury Unallocated  Elimination Total
G ON Interest income from
- HRERF - external customers 1,347,790 1,625,788 1,559,960 78,930 - 4,612,468
- BER - inter-segments 914,893 - - 399,302  (1,314,195) -
MEZH Interest expense to
- HRRP - external customers (1,327,883)  (376,481)  (234,188)  (466,330) - (2,404,882
- BER - inter-segments - (324,257) (989,938) - 1,314,195 -
FHEHA Net interest income 934,800 925,050 335,834 11,902 - 2,207,586
RBERAZWA Fee and commission income 469,315 139,952 12,518 15,215 - 637,000
REERFBE M Fee and commission expense (94,935) (1,084) (8,455) (262) - (104,736)
FREERESUA Net fee and commission income 374,380 138,368 4,063 14,953 - 532,264
FEEWA Net trading income 15,016 13,677 87,714 94,653 - 211,060
E2ERA Other operating income 20,277 4,611 2,990 35,387 - 63,265
2EMA Operating income 1,344,473 1,082,206 430,601 156,895 - 3,014,175
2ES Operating expenses (1,026,012) (293,376) (115,926) (119,843) - (1,555,157)
NBREFEN 2 S ERH Operating profit before impairment losses 318,461 788,830 314,675 37,052 - 1,459,018
BRRBR REEE Impairment losses on loans and advances ~ (147,046)  (511,489) - - - (658,535)
ETRERETEENAD Operating profit before gains or losses on
BRI EERT certain investments and fixed assets 171,45 277,34 314,675 37,052 - 800,483
TEREMETEEHERER Net gain on disposal and revaluation of
L FYE premises and other fixed assets 20 - - 834 - 854
RENFHERFARATEZ Net loss on disposal of and fair value
BB adjustment on investment properties - - - (78,923) - (78,923)
HETHREEEFFNA Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities 5,920 - 12,566 4 - 18,490
EEBENACEE Share of results of an associate - - - 120,589 - 120,589
EEEREHER £E Share of results of jointly controlled entities - - - 5,674 - 5,674
BEUEES OAEERR Impairment losses charged on
held-to-maturity securities - - (357,684) - - (357,684)
HMEES REEERE Impairment losses charged on
available-for-sale securities - - (39,984) (257,634) - (297,618)
BRaER/ (58 Profit/(loss) before income tax 177,355 277,341 (70427)  (172,404) - 211,865
RZEE\F+-A=+-H As at 31 December 2008
EEA Total assets 26,527,884 35,156,157 46,407,827 4,204,351 - 112,386,219
BfEAs Total liabilities 60,811,234 18,600,935 12,557,171 12,223,085 - 104,192,425
HE-ZZ\E+-FA=1—BILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008
e Depreciation 39,011 22,672 12,627 21,182 - 95,492
ER%H Capital expenditure incurred 23,869 3,740 373 50,500 - 78,482
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5.

Segment Reporting (Continued)

(A) By business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BART  BERS
Personal Commercial — BE¥H KAEEH it @t
58 Group Banking Banking Treasury Unallocated  Elimination Total
G ON Interest income from
- HREF - external customers 1,755,688 2,002,556 2,067,856 25,002 - 5851,302
- BER - inter-segments 1,244,272 - - 879,809  (2,124,081) -
MEZH Interest expense to
- MREPR - external customers (1,964,856)  (646,870)  (401,187)  (770,556) - (3,783,469)
- BER - inter-segments - (586,451)  (1,537,630) - 2,124,081 -
FHEMA Net interest income 1,085,104 769,235 129,039 134,455 - 2,067,833
R%ERASIA Fee and commission income 582,247 128,903 9,920 26,377 - T47 447
RBERAEIH Fee and commission expense (83,564) (1,011) (10,330) (5,109) - (100,014)
FREBRASNA/ (L) Net fee and commission income/(expense) 498,683 127,892 410) 21,268 - 647,433
FEEMA Net trading income 10,760 9,087 98,953 30,551 - 149,351
E2ERA Other operating income 60,613 8,021 7,037 23,022 - 98,693
BEHA Operating income 1,605,160 914,235 234,619 209,296 - 2,963,310
EEYH Operating expenses (858,485) (290,587 (88,667) (35,218) - (1,272,957
NBREFEN 2 S ERH Operating profit before impairment losses 746,675 623,648 145,952 174,078 - 1,690,353
ERRER AERSE Impairment losses on loans and advances
(RE) /Mm% (charged)/reversed (97,637) (83,178) 23 %) - (180,795)
ETREREREENE Operating profit before gains or losses on
ABBH 2 2ERT certain investments and fixed assets 649,038 540,470 145,975 174,075 - 1,509,558
TEREMETEELERER Net (loss)/gain on disposal and revaluation
23 (BR) /i of premises and other fixed assets @ 4 7 94,508 - 94,512
RENMELMERARATEZ Net gain on disposal of and fair value
Fha adjustment on investment properties - - - 181,527 - 181,527
HEMHLERFFRA Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities 9,603 - 75,538 - - 85,141
EUEBEAR EE Share of results of an associate - - - 72,070 - 72,070
EEAREHER R Share of results of jointly controlled entities - - - 10,536 - 10,536
AEHEEFRESERE Impairment losses charged on
available-for-sale securities - - - (1,037,742 - (1,037,742
BEANERH/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before income tax 658,634 540,474 221,520 (505,026) - 915,602
RZBBLET-A=1—H As at 31 December 2007
EEA Total assets 27,267,243 35957,780 48,482,583 4,232,552 - 115,940,158
afEas Total liabilities 55,411,277 19,761,043 17,146,476 14,372,891 - 106,691,687
BHEZZZ+F+-A=T—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2007
e Depreciation 49,977 20,663 6,373 7,869 - 84,882
BEARYH Capital expenditure incurred 43,341 7,748 884 16,801 - 68,774
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Segment Reporting (Continued)
(A) By business segments (Continued)

Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits from
individual customers and the extension of residential mortgage lending,
personal loans, overdraft and credit card services, the provision of

insurance sales and investment services.

Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance to
commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the provision of
trade financing. Hire purchase finance and leasing related to equipment,

vehicle and transport financing are included.

Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange services
and centralised cash management for deposit taking and lending,
interest rate risk management, management of investment in securities

and the overall funding of the Group.

Unallocated items include results of operations, corporate investments
and debt funding (including subordinated notes) not directly identified

under other business divisions.
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
5. JyME#ERE (8) 5. Segment Reporting (Continued)
(&) %385y (B) By geographical segments
BE S ERB
B
EERHM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment HEt
and others Macau elimination Total
HE-_ZZN\F For the year ended
tZA=+—HLEFE 31 December 2008
EEIA Operating income 2,758,069 256,381 (275) 3,014,175
% 0 A1 4 Profit before income tax 194,594 17,271 - 211,865
FEE A Profit for the year 180,657 9,920 - 190,577
& Depreciation 75,127 20,365 - 95,492
BAYH Capital expenditure incurred 72,824 5,658 - 78,482
R-BENF+=ZA=+-8H As at 31 December 2008
BEAR Total assets 103,304,945 11,253,411 (2,172,137) 112,386,219
BEAF Total liabilities 96,783,058 9,581,504 (2,172,137) 104,192,425
HREEREE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 37,094,520 1,485,131 - 38,579,651
B ERB
g
EBRHM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment st
and others Macau elimination Total
BE-ZZtH For the year ended
tZA=+—HLEFE 31 December 2007
BB Operating income 2,667,751 295,559 - 2,963,310
PR B A5 A Profit before income tax 853,589 62,013 - 915,602
F R F Profit for the year 754,593 51,691 - 806,284
e Depreciation 67,243 17,639 - 84,882
BARE W Capital expenditure incurred 50,393 18,381 - 68,774
R-EELE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2007
AEAR Total assets 107,127,748 11,047,005 (2,234,595) 115,940,158
BEAE Total liabilities 99,474,842 9,451,440 (2,234,595) 106,691,687
F R BEREE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 39,579,508 1,584,097 - 41,163,605
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6. A EWA 6. Net interest income
—EENE _—ZTTLF
2008 2007
FIEWA Interest income
e MEIRITHEAS Cash and balances with banks 375,003 345,024
BHIE Investments in securities 1,290,235 1,829,103
EPEMIBITER Advances to customers and banks 2,945,973 3,674,735
Hith Others 1,257 2,440
4,612,468 5,851,302
FEXH Interest expense
BITER S BEER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 1,839,600 2,824,792
BEEITHTERE Certificates of deposit issued 200,175 436,710
BETHEBRES Issued debt securities 89,399 115,338
BEES Subordinated notes 209,819 311,402
Hh Others 65,889 95,227
2,404,882 3,783,469
FIEWAERE Included within interest income
ETREZFBWA Interest income on listed investments 1,108,681 957,198
JEETIRE 2 F B A Interest income on unlisted investments 181,554 871,905
1,290,235 1,829,103
RETAAFEFEBHEE Interest income on financial assets
FABZNEREE ZFEHA not designated at fair value through
profit or loss 4,572,517 5,274,563
BB E EF B Interest income on impaired assets 16,069 17,969
FMEXHERE Included within interest expense
RIEEURAFEFEAHY Interest expenses on financial liabilities
FABENeRBEEZFEZ S not designated at fair value through
profit or loss 2,104,945 3,144,650
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7. FWEERMEBRA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. Net fee and commission income

—EENE _—ZTTLF
2008 2007
BREERASKWA Fee and commission income
FETUARQAFEFZEEED Fee and commission income from
FABENEMEERABEZ financial assets and liabilities not
RS E RBEKA designated at fair value through
profit or loss
-~ EEABEZREENES — Credit related fees and commissions 65,262 62,166
- EFmE — Trade finance 57,520 63,878
- EAF — Credit card 198,634 197,854
HEmRBEE A2 MA Other fee and commission income
— BARRLEREERBREE - Securities brokerage and investment
services 149,772 220,058
— REREE R EAM - Insurance distribution and others 46,367 56,635
- DEREEHSREFARS - Retail investment funds and fiduciary
services 44,490 80,660
— Hi R & — Other fees 74,955 66,196
637,000 747,447
BREERFASIH Fee and commission expense
FEERED Handling fees and commission 92,947 86,736
BEfHEMEA Other fees paid 11,789 13,278
104,736 100,014

AEERAE=DRHERE - 5t CEEERR
BEERY - RENXEAFORBEZEELT

BEENEMBHRRA

142 AHRFEMERLT
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The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. Those assets that

are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. WHHEWA 8.  Net trading income
—EENF CZTTLF
2008 2007
IVE B B F W Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 258,603 174,866
BIEEBERBRNES ZFRE (B18) Net gain/(loss) from trading securities 12,449 (1,448)
HIEEERBRMITETAE Y FEEB Net loss from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose (137,357) (20,830)
BAFEES BB TR FEE Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge (15,511) (38,270)
BENAFEFEEAEE Net gain arising from financial instruments
FFAEEMNERI AT designated at fair value through
profit or loss 92,876 35,033
211,060 149,351

9. HAbEEWRA

9.  Other operating income

—BRNE  —TTLA

2008 2007
AHHEFERTE 2RISBA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
— LTRAE - Listed investments 1,720 5,106
— FETMERE - Unlisted investments 4,174 5,188
WEMHE SR AERE Gross rental income from investment
properties 11,720 16,713
HipHs WA Other rental income 5,462 6,678
H Others 40,189 65,008
63,265 98,693
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(ABEE T TLF)R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. HELH 10. Operating expenses
—EENE —ZTZTLF
2008 2007
EEHMEEFZH Employee compensation and benefit
(BREE=EHM) (MHE11) expenses (including directors’
remuneration) (Note 11) 677,835 722,965
TERAEMEEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
~RFERE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEZHEE - Rental of premises 79,679 63,060
—HEfh - Others 78,766 77,244
EEH Advertising costs 76,110 95,808
BILEEBREER (M15E33) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 33) 19,036 22,752
& (fIzE34) Depreciation (Note 34) 95,492 84,882
ZER B & Auditors’ remuneration 5,780 5,780
Hit Others 522,459 200,466
1,555,157 1,272,957
11. 1 B3 Be A1) 52 11. Employee compensation and benefit expenses
—EENE —“ZTALF
2008 2007
FMREMASER Salaries and other staff costs 674,447 664,502
LARR 15 A LT SR BN 4 (D0 388) he 38 Provision for share-based compensation
(Mt5E51) (reversed)/charged (Note 51) (42,540) 19,645
Rike Pension costs
— REHREE - defined contribution plans 45,928 38,818
677,835 722,965
BeMe s A AL The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:
iy BMeEsEt ()  The aggregate emoluments
K E3|
Restated
—EENE —ZTLF
2008 2007
e BE - BEYAm R EMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 23,159 50,898
RIKEBF Pensions 1,588 1,490
24,747 52,388

KRBT EEERA T
—ZEN\FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
11. Employee compensation and benefit expenses
(Continued)

(i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were within

the following bands:

AH
Number of individuals

“EENFE _TTLE
2008 2007

77T HK$
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 _
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 _
7,000,001 - 7,500,000 - 1
7,500,001 - 8,000,000 - 1
8,500,001 — 9,000,000 1 _
9,500,001 - 10,000,000 - 1
10,500,001 - 11,000,000 - 1
17,000,001 - 17,500,000 - 1
5 5

ERAUSZEMEWAZALTR G4 (ZTT+
F M) AEEES c HRANESHEE 2E
EREE 120 -

RERN - AEBTERAEALCEZSBAA LI
NS - (FRIMASINEARRE 2 RE R

=y
g o

ElFERRAATHHEBEGEETEZF
EATR AR S AR &R (B 2 2B M TR IR SEEN1EAL -
REBRAETERMESBRITRAEBREBAE
E_ZETN\FIRMURE N FE AT R
A BRZEENFT A=+ —AUETERE
BYIEAT -

TELFEZAMEFEINURMR T LF

A=T—HRAUSREBRAATREE=F
T FREARTS MR FE EE 2 BRI
TEREE - ZNABERE_TTLF A=
—HA& R -

+=
=

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2007: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’

emoluments have been included in Note 12 below.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered
and the Group’s performance for the financial year. The Group has
determined that no incentive bonuses are payable to all senior
executives in respect of 2008 performance and services rendered, and

as at 31 December 2008, no incentive bonuses have been accrued.

The information for 2007 has been restated to reflect the accrual basis
for incentive bonus accrued as at 31 December 2007 to be paid to the
five highest paid individuals in respect of 2007 performance and service.

The actual bonuses were paid after 31 December 2007.
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(ABEE T TLF)R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. HHEWME 12. Directors’ emoluments
BEFZH T The remuneration of each Director is set out below:
BRERRHY
R 2 iR
RBEA
(1)
Incentive
bonuses
HER accrued
ENAE  inrespectof LRGAEH
Salary, services  HIXfY (33)
EZHe allowances rendered  Share-based
HE-EEIN% Year ended Directors’  and benefits in the year payment RASHI &it
+ZA=+-HILEE 31 December 2008 Fee in kind (Note 1) (Note 3) Pensions Total
Ed Chairman
TFEEE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 3,960 - - - 4,460
HTES Executive directors
EBEESLE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 - - 600 8,600
TRELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,900 - - 360 4,260
BEXEE Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) - 2,644 - - 192 2,836
THRALE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 3,250 - - 300 3,550
ASEEE Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau - 2,600 - - 240 2,840
FHITES Non-executive directors
mIREE T Keisuke Tahara 180 - - - - 180
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
RhEgs John W. Simpson 180 - - - - 180
BUEEE David R. Hinde 180 - - - - 180
LEBLA Robert Tsai-To Sze 300 - - - - 300
2EERA Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 180 - - - - 180
REFEE Seng-Lee Chan 67 - - - - 67
ait Total 1,587 24,354 - - 1,692 27,633
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FRUZRBEEZFEZEFEMBRIME_ZF
tFE+ A=+ —REERTERES 2 ZHTE

A BERBIIREEE-ZETLFLRETA -

BEEN_ZELENRRERE_STRNFRH
ZRBRZFEZEB 2L TREE_ZF
TEEINNEFA -

12. #EHFME @D 12. Directors” emoluments (Continued)
BRERRM
REzER
REBEA
(F2R4)
Incentive
bonuses
¥ER accrued (&3
EWAIE  inrespectof LIRAAEH A5t
Salary, services  BUXAT (§9) (£4)
EEhe allowances rendered  Share-based (Restated)
HE-EZ4% Year ended Directors’  benefits and in the year payment RASHI Total
TZA=1+-HILEE 31 December 2007 Fee inkind  (Note 2 and 4) (Note 3) Pensions (Note 4)
Ed Chairman
TFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 3,570 6,000 - - 9,570
HTES Executive directors
BEAELE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 7,570 9,000 - 557 17,127
TRELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,600 7,000 - 330 10,930
HEXRE Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) - 2,611 3,000 - 192 5,803
THALE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 3,040 3,800 - 279 7,119
BELEE Dennis Tat-Wang Yau - 152 - - 9 161
et Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau - 2,510 2,000 - 231 4,741
FHITES Non-executive directors
ENEYy Kosuke Furukawa 41 - - - - 41
mRMELE Keisuke Tahara 139 - - - - 139
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
HEELE John W. Simpson 180 - - - - 180
BUELE David R. Hinde 180 - - - - 180
SEREE Robert Tsai-To Sze 300 - - - - 300
2EERA Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 180 - - - - 180
Bt Total 1,020 23,053 30,800 - 1,598 56,471
A Note:
1. AEBERATERNESHEAEE ST 1. The Group has resolved that no incentive bonuses are payable to the
IRERE M RFE 2 EEE BRI - = Directors in respect of 2008 performance and services rendered, and no
T N\F+_A=t+—BIEETEIREFEL - accrual for incentive bonuses is made as at 31 December 2008.
Eﬁ:??ti%ﬁi\zHE%&EZ@E’Z%%EEE@Z 2. Such bonuses, in respect of performance and services rendered in 2007,
Tt EZTTLF+-A=+—HEEBER " were accrued as at 31 December 2007 and paid in the first quarter of
Iﬁfy 7/\¢§E FEW o 2008.
DAL B 7 TANIRIER @ X 1 - IR EHAT 3. Share-based payment represents the cash payment, being the difference
FEHRRERRE 2 MIZKMERTFEECE between the closing market price and exercise price of the share options
£ o on the date when a Director exercised the options granted.
RZEELF+A=+—HRBHEE-ZZ Lt 4, Incentive bonuses in respect of 2007 performance and service accrued

at 31 December 2007 for distribution to relevant Directors subsequent to
31 December 2007 have been restated and included in 2007. Incentive
bonuses received by Directors in early 2007 in respect of 2006
performance and service are excluded from the restated 2007 amounts.
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13. Sk K EGR Z WAE S H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. Impairment losses on loans and advances

—EENE —TTLEF
2008 2007
EFEXR Advances to customers 658,535 181,570
RITER Advances to banks - (778)
JEETRIE R EMERE Accrued interest and other accounts - 3
658,535 180,795
BERERBAFREBEFIE Net charge of impairment losses on
loans and advances
— {ERFE - Individually assessed 476,335 66,052
— kREFHE - Collectively assessed 182,200 114,743
658,535 180,795
BEHELE Of which
— I EE (BERENEEME 2 258) - new allowances (including amounts
directly written off in the year) 784,634 331,221
— [O#& - releases (46,678) (66,049)
— I - recoveries (79,421) (84,377)
e B F 2 Net charge to income statement 658,535 180,795

14, A7 B AR A B B S A 2

14. Net gain on disposal and revaluation of premises and

W 25 other fixed assets
—EENE —ZTLF
2008 2007
TEEGHRE (BB /B# Deficit (charged)/reversed on

revaluation of premises (819) 27,575
TELE Z2FRR Net gain from disposal of premises 1,857 66,869

HiEEEEDEZF (H8), e Net (loss)/gain from disposal of
other fixed assets (184) 68
854 94,512
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. Net (loss)/gain on disposal of and fair value adjustment
on investment properties

—EENE _—ZTTLF

2008 2007
BEMEABQNTFEZF (BE) = Net (loss)/gain on fair value adjustment
of investment properties (78,923) 141,235
WEYEDE 2 F i Net gain from disposal of investment
properties - 40,292
(78,923) 181,527

16. A3 A i o < A 1 2 4

AEBZAHHEESREBEHE=TREL
BAMEENERR EEBERETA -

RAFER  AEEREEFBVER T LF
+Z A=+ BT ADREZERR EEE
& T AmRIERREE15257,346,0008 7T © A
fib S5 B &5 8. 40,272,00058 7T J0 3% I EAth (& 755 J 4
WEFEHZE o

17. BLIEZH

FB NS BT R IR WA AT FERR TR B AT &K
16.5% (ZZT+F : 17.5%) REBEMH < JGIMR
AR TR E RBIME T ERTURE MR A K EE
BERBR ZBITHEE -

16. Impairment losses charged on available-for-sale
securities

The Group’s investment in available-for-sale securities included
leveraged/structured investment vehicles managed by third party

portfolio managers.

During the year, additional impairment losses totalling HK$257,346,000
were recognised on the Group’s holdings in leveraged/structured
investment vehicles, which had been assessed as impaired as at
31 December 2007. The remaining impairment loss of HK$40,272,000
is related to investments in other debt and equity securities.

17.  Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2007:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

—BRNE  —TTLA

2008 2007
REFEHIE Current income tax:
BENIEH Hong Kong profits tax 3,844 62,591
O IR Overseas taxation 19,803 19,954
RBEFETREE Underprovision in prior years 7,533 -
REHIE (M7543) Deferred income tax (Note 43)
—BEBEEH o E - Impact of change of Hong Kong
tax rate (2,143) -
—BAREREENELRER - Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (7,749) 26,773
BB Income tax expense 21,288 109,318
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17. BLIESZH @)

AEERBADG N 2 MR B BIRERA &R RN
FIEREAE 2 ERBBEOT ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17.  Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

—EENE —ZTTLF

2008 2007
B Bt BT V) Profit before income tax 211,865 915,602
i AR &SRR F) 2 AN Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
BMEFEFIE applicable to profits in the respective
countries 34,958 160,230
HIBRAERR Tax effects of:
HiBR 2 TR E Different taxation rates in other countries (1,535) (10,268)
MR EE 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (21,846) (62,239)
TR A X Expenses not deductible 24,614 39,059
LBBERIMoEgE R TR Results of associates and jointly
HEEGIERE S controlled entities reported net of tax (20,293) (11,692)
AR BB EE Tax losses not recognised - 404
RBEFENBEE Underprovision in prior years 7,533 -
EABEREER 2 HEEE Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses - (6,176)
BT ERERIEA Remeasurement of deferred tax
-BiEEgE — change of tax rate (2,143) -
BB Income tax expense 21,288 109,318

18. B B EAL Vi A

PR A A R BB R R A 2 R R M i I
338,697,000/ 7T (= T4 : 681,620,000/%
L) °

19. BB

REE-ZEN\F+_A=+—HLFEREE
R FF+ A=t BLEFEREXIMNKRE
% Al /307,609,000 & o (& % 0.33/5 7r) M
651,991,000/ 7T (FA%0.70/87T0) - EBHE &%
REZTTNFEREARS -

]

18. Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$338,697,000 (2007:
HK$681,620,000).

19. Dividends

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007
were HK$307,609,000 (HK$0.33 per share) and 651,991,000 (HK$0.70
per share) respectively. The Directors do not propose the payment of a

final dividend in respect of 2008.

—EENE —“ZTALF
Company 2008 2007

BFEHKE  BREBERA018ET
—ETLF  gREBR0.25ET)
FRARERE - &
ZETLF  gREBR05ET)
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Interim dividend paid, of HK$0.18

(2007: HK$0.25) per ordinary share 167,897 232,854

Proposed final dividend of HK$Nil
(2007: HK$0.15) per ordinary share - 139,712
167,897 372,566
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. HEBEA 20. Earnings per share
FRREAREF TR EF)188,642,000/8 T (= The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings of
T+ : 800,169,000/ 70) & F A E 1T (5 M1 HK$188,642,000 (2007: HK$800,169,000) and the weighted average
W F 15 $1982,193,954f% (= T T + & number of 932,193,954 (2007: 931,416,279) shares in issue during the
931,416,2790%) 5T & o year.

FESE AT TR R 2 5)188,642,000/8 T (= The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on earnings of
T+ : 800,169,000/ 7T) & F A E 1T D M1 HK$188,642,000 (2007: HK$800,169,000) and the weighted average
W F 15 $1982,193,954% (= T T + &£ number of 932,193,954 (2007: 931,573,619) shares in issue during the
931,573,619%) Wt FT A ¥ L @R E T E BN R year after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

BT IABHEHE -

—EENE _—ZTTLF

2008 2007
& tn &8 Number of shares
TZA=+—BEBRNEFEHE Weighted average number of
ordinary shares as at 31 December 932,193,954 931,416,279
R 2 AR Adjustments for share options - 157,340
TZA=+—HREREERF Weighted average number of
2 & AR hnE T ordinary shares for diluted earnings
per share as at 31 December 932,193,954 931,573,619
21. Bl RAE8RAT B 45 R 21. Cash and balances with banks
£8 N
Group Company
—EENFE CZTT+F CZEBENFE CTTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
Be RERITHES Cash and balances with banks 2,434,158 1,779,413 4,029 -
BANREEER Money at call and short notice 10,231,009 8,245,590 15,047 50,399
12,665,167 10,025,003 19,076 50,399
22, FESRATMITERK 22. Placements with banks
£8 N
Group Company
—EENFE CZTTLF CZEENFE CTTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ERIT-ZETZEAR Placements with banks maturing
B EETF 50 between one and twelve months 1,656,950 1,919,342 - -
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
23. FHEEEHERE SR LA EG & 23. Trading securities and financial assets at fair value
HLC A B 3T AR 25 B < 1 through profit or loss
—sBNFE —TTF
£E= Group 2008 2007
RBIEEERBMES Trading securities:
BERESF Debt securities:
—&AL™M - Listed in Hong Kong 923,292 578,783
— BANINET — Listed outside Hong Kong 17,034 20,094
— 3EET™ - Unlisted 935,238 1,682,532
FIFEERENESFETE Total trading securities 1,875,564 2,281,409
NAFEFEEEZHTABENEREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
BBEES Debt securities:
— BB ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 135,364 -
— Ltk - Unlisted 429,926 1,351,698
AAFEFZHEZEH AER Total financial assets at fair value through
BWE R EERR profit or loss 565,290 1,351,698
FIFEERENEFRURATERE Total trading securities and financial
BEEZFHTABENEMEELR assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2,440,854 3,633,107
PEEEBESFANE Included within debt securities are:
- BEEREEERRES ZBNES - Government bonds included in
trading securities 1,812,779 2,233,712
— BENTERE - Certificates of deposit held - 381,171
— HMEKESH — Other debt securities 628,075 1,018,224

2,440,854 3,633,107
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23. FEEE BB SR AFEEHE
HH AR 4 mE E &)

REZZETN\F+-A=+— B EEERTRIE
BFER (ZEELF  REELABEEER
BHESF AT HEEH2,033,947,000% 7T 2 I E
EeBERBFHFODEBETEELERUFNAEE
EHNEECERESNEBERTSHRED) ©

NAHEERREH T ABSNEREETR
BREMEABRITETAZRERE - AMi5ER
EAREMBEANFEAEEEESHABENE
Fi7 sRPT R

NAFEFEEHEHTABTNEREE (£
FERIFEBRBRNEF) WEITHEERN DT
T~

p e e

-l

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. Trading securities and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008, there were no government or non-government
bond pledged (2007: Exchange Fund debt securities included in trading
securities above with a market value of HK$2,033,947,000 were
pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s trading and market-
making activities in Exchange Fund debts).

Included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
primarily investment notes with embedded derivatives. The market risk
of these notes is substantially offset by deposits from customers

designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including trading

securities) are analysed by categories of issuer as follows:

—EENE —ZTTLF

5 Group 2008 2007
— FRBTR AR RERTT - Central governments and central banks 1,812,779 2,233,712
— DEHE - Public sector entities 24,414 24,748
— RITREAM S REE - Banks and other financial institutions 38,371 682,773
— % — Corporate entities 565,290 691,874

2,440,854 3,633,107
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24, fi4&mph T H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Derivative financial instruments

RZZEENEF+_A=+—AKRIGITETIAS The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
NzBaBAREATEDT their fair values as of 31 December 2008 were as follows:
&8/
EESHE DFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =L
£8 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEBEEREZITETIR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMELTAETAR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RENMBESYN Forward and future contracts 61,684,583 263,311 (297,452)
Ekmh Currency swaps 1,045,229 8,362 (39,759)
B\ RO AN B Currency options purchased and written 23,321,550 40,001 (38,141)
b) FIX/TETA b) Interest rate derivatives
&4z 5 Interest rate swaps 16,493,221 176,103 (284,236)
B RO ) o R g Interest rate options purchased and written 1,489,445 20,447 (20,447)
c) BRMITAETA c) Equity derivatives
B8 Rk R A M EA Equity options purchased and written 79,323 4,944 (4,936)
BIEEER®ZITETIA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (AR ast held for trading 104,113,351 513,168 (684,971)
2) FIEEHRARZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) IEEULTFEHW a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ZITHETA
7| 2 4 2 Interest rate swaps 13,402,453 397,443  (1,568,246)
FERRRBZITETLA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (A A held for hedging 13,402,453 397,443  (1,568,246)
3) mEHE 'JW\??G{’F”’??EP 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
F#% - BREENATE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
FrE BEEE JK B with the financial instruments designated at
ERMIA—REE fair value through profit or loss
ZITHETA
EkER Currency swaps 368,499 491 (14,423)
il R 42 Interest rate swaps 3,658,750 155,337 -
IEEEERREZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
BE/ (AR a&f as hedges 4,027,249 155,828 (14,423)
BERRZITESRIA Total recognised derivative financial
GE/ (BF) A assets/(liabilities) 121,543,053 1,066,439 (2,267,640)

KHRITEEER AT
—ZEN\FEH
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

p e e

Notes to the Financial Statements

-l

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

%’U ZERERAEREQFERAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2007 were as follows:
&8/
E2E52HE N¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE afE
£8 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HIEEERSZITETIAR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMEPTAETAR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHREEEH Forward and future contracts 71,133,159 207,811 (289,621)
EER Currency swaps 304,956 - (28,892)
BB\ Rk AN B Currency options purchased and written 9,729,423 141,167 (139,271)
b) FIELTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
F== 5 Interest rate swaps 18,454,045 97,776 (92,154)
BB Rl R R ER Interest rate options purchased and written 200,000 10 (10)
o) BmlMtiT4TA c) Equity derivatives
BB\ N i M E Equity options purchased and written 628,909 4,641 (4,143)
d EEMITETA d) Credit derivatives
ERENZBEH Credit default swaps 390,045 - (312)
FIEEERBZITELA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (BB A held for trading 100,840,537 451,405 (554,403)
2) FEHRRBZITETLA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) EEURFELH T a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ZITHETA
) & 4= H Interest rate swaps 16,164,559 198,254 (399,531)
F{ELHA LZ THETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (BB A held for hedging 16,164,559 198,254 (399,531)
3) HEHEANFAIEL R 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
R - BEIEENALFE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
STERHZHHABEN with the financial instruments designated at
CHITA—RER fair value through profit or loss
ZITETA
BisiEt Currency swaps 443,337 59,052 (34)
il R4z Interest rate swaps 8,160,097 49,336 (16,813)
IEEEHRABRZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
BE/(BF) A as hedges 8,603,434 108,388 (16,847)
EERZITEERIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/ (AR A assets/(liabilities) 125,608,530 758,047 (970,781)
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24, fid4m T B @)

BRETETAZ A TFEREZE B M B8 FHE
RERFNTE -

LR R B ARG B MR AR KB Z
SRFRREERIz B EERERINAR (B
RERENXBAD) NEERRNESE 2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The effect of valid bilateral netting agreements has been taken into

account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures (including credit default swaps) calculated under Basel I

basis and without taking into account the effect of bilateral netting

HIEAT arrangement that the Group entered into, are as follows:
—EENE —ZTLF
3 Group 2008 2007

PTAETA Derivatives

ERE 4 Exchange rate contracts 529,302 508,850
FEEH Interest rate contracts 401,664 141,282
HEihaed Other contracts 5,023 18,563
935,989 668,695

HWETEZANHBEAERLEEHNR S 2 -
WARKERE R EE -

EERRMEREDZ2ZEEELER HjZ<<$E
TEERN)RAMAE 2R FFEMB 28
HMARTZZEFREEEY 'Jﬁ}ﬂ—ir’\é{ﬂﬁm °

SR IER G RIE ) AR M L2 85 5 o

REE A AR R B 2 A TE R
BREERREBIEER 2 EFHFITE - Al E
EEBEFLOETABZBNRETEE R

¥ih T B 2 B518 /41,049,171,0008 T (T T+

& [{518/5314,815,000/8 1) © ¥ IEE EEE

SRR B 2 U %5 41,033,660,000% T (— T E+

4+ 25 5276,545,00087T) °
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The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the balance sheet date, they do not
represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the

counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.8.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category,
available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities by fair value
hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The losses on the hedging
instruments were HK$1,049,171,000 (2007: a loss of HK$314,815,000).
The gains on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk were
HK$1,033,660,000 (2007: a gain of HK$276,545,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Advances and other accounts

—BRNE  —TTLA

5 Group 2008 2007
EAERRBR Loans and advances to individuals

- EAFR - Credit cards 3,482,972 3,395,440
— RI\BER - Mortgages 18,526,215 18,476,883
— Hith - Others 3,802,967 3,988,516
TEERRBK Loans and advances to corporate entities

— BEEXR - Term loans 10,205,960 10,066,194
— RI\BER - Mortgages 8,496,416 8,629,646
- BE58E - Trade finance 4,638,482 5,615,014
— EAh - Others 11,846,061 11,122,938
XEERBAE Gross advances to customers 60,999,073 61,294,631
IRITER AR Gross advances to banks 179,226 160,426

B < L
— {ERIEFE
— A

HAth & 7 (F45E36)

BIEEE RN W IR R

ZEHRE (Hiz2e)

BEERREAMERR

LB EREEDEE 5 E5449,373,00075 7T
—EE L : 735,804,000/ 7T) ©

61,178,299 61,455,057

Less: Impairment allowances
- Individually assessed (550,909) (142,589)
— Collectively assessed (298,645) (216,968)

(849,554) (359,557)

Other assets (Note 36) 2,281,945 4,343,268

Investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category
(Note 26) 6,896,646 -

Advances and other accounts 69,507,336 65,438,768

Included in gross advances to customers above are trade bills of
HK$449,373,000 (2007: HK$735,804,000).
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#*

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Advances and other accounts (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and

advances to customers

HEERE - BRI
Impairment allowances
- Individual assessment

REEXN Hit &%
£8 Group Mortgages Others Total
BABREBFREEE2EE  Movement in impairment allowances on loans

and advances to individuals
“EEtF-[-HOEH Balance at 1 January 2007 9,190 2,443 11,633
(B B 18 12 % Impairment losses reversed (5,099) (156) (5,255)
RELEEERMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible (4,126) (1,073) (5,199)
WEEREFEMEZER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 3,592 1,413 5,005
HEEFITHE R & Unwind of discount on allowance (319) - (319)
—EEE+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2007 3,238 2,627 5,865
“EEN\F-A-HNEH Balance at 1 January 2008 3,238 2,627 5,865
B IERE Impairment losses charged 910 1,304 2,214
RELEEERMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (1,837 (1,161) (2,998)
WEIERNEEMSE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 1,810 468 2,278
B EEEITEE R & Unwind of discount on allowance (194) - (194)
—EENF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 3,927 3,238 7,165

HEEE - HETMH
Impairment allowances
- Collective assessment

ER+ EBEXN Hity =i

58 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BABREBRRHEEE 22T  Movement in impairment allowances

on loans and advances to

individuals
T A-BWEH Balance at 1 January 2007 49,428 22,706 40,564 112,698
FEBERE (B8) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 77,459 (16,370) 37,813 98,902
RELEBETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (120,562) - (67,282) (187,844)
WElE A EFE 2 BN Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 49,330 - 22,672 72,002
—EELFE+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2007 55,655 6,336 33,767 95,758
—ET\F—A—BHEH Balance at 1 January 2008 55,655 6,336 33,767 95,758
FEBERE (B8) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 63,691 (3,351) 59,576 119,916
RELEEEFTIMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (103,212 - (60,918) (164,130)
WElE A EFME 2 BN Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 23,330 - 48,313 71,643
Hiz Other adjustments - - 56 56
—EZEN\FE+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 39,464 2,985 80,794 123,243

KHRITEEER AT
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25.  Advances and other accounts (Continued)

() % P S0k M 3k = s 4R 1 M T 3 IR (a)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and

7= () advances to customers (Continued)
B — BRI
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
EHER ESRE
Term RBER Trade Hit =5
£8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERRBH Movement in impairment
HEEEZ2E2S allowances on loans and
advances to corporate entities
“ETEF-A—B0EH Balance at 1 January 2007 6,651 6,367 43,020 68,058 124,096
HEEERE Impairment losses charged 255 927 33,443 36,679 71,304
REEEEFRMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (6,391) (1,850) (30,760) (21,824) (60,825)
WEE R EFEME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 634 321 4,189 2,193 7,337
LB TR (E R Unwind of discount on allowance (57) 17) (403) @,711) (5,188)
—EEtF+-R=+—H At 31 December 2007 1,092 5,748 49,489 80,395 136,724
—TT\F—F—B®4%  Balance at 1 January 2008 1,002 5,748 49,489 80,395 136,724
HEEERE Impairment losses charged 86,950 21,988 195,395 169,788 474,121
REEEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (921) (2,120) (44,777) (18,643) (66,461)
WEIEREFEHIEZER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 93 253 2,966 2,180 5,492
REE BT (B & Unwind of discount on allowance (14) (45) (656) (5,417) (6,132)
—EZEN\FE+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 87,200 25,824 202,417 228,303 543,744
HEEE-RETE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
EHEX ESRE
Term REBEX Trade Hit &%
£8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERRBHN Movement in impairment
HEEEZ22S allowances on loans and
advances to corporate entities
“ETF-A—B0EH Balance at 1 January 2007 14,790 15,995 19,009 56,098 105,892
AR (E#) /R Impairment losses (reversed)/
charged (2,410) 4,686 (1,653) 15,996 16,619
ReLBEERMBEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (1,334) (1,334)
WElE A EF#E 2 BN Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years - - - 33 33
—EELFE+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2007 12,380 20,681 17,356 70,793 121,210
“TEN\F—A—BHES  Balance at 1 January 2008 12,380 20,681 17,356 70,793 121,210
RERBERE (2#) Impairment losses charged/
(reversed) 4,231 (5652) (2,964) 61,569 62,284
RELEEERMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (8,043) (8,043)
WEE R EFEME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years - - - 8 8
fE 5 R E R Exchange and other adjustments 583 12 94 (746) (57)
—EZEN\FE+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 17,194 20,141 14,486 123,581 175,402
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25.  Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and
advances to banks, and accrued interest and other accounts
WEEE - RETMH
Impairment allowances
- Collective assessment

FEStFIE 0

RITER HhBR1A

k&R Accrued

Loans and interest

advances and other

5 Group to banks accounts

RITERRER > REFRESMERE Movement in impairment allowances

HEEEZ22E on loans and advances to banks, and
accrued interest and other accounts

—EELFE-A AR Balance at 1 January 2007 778 -

VEREY R IR Impairment losses reversed (778) -

—E2Ft+F+=-HA=+—H

“EENF-HA-BHEH
Rl B8/ 18 [

—BBN\FE+=A=+-8

At 31 December 2007 - -

Balance at 1 January 2008 - -
Impairment losses reversed - -

At 31 December 2008 - -

B 2 — B BT
Impairment allowances
- Individual assessment

FESHFIE

HBRE

Accrued

interest and

5 Group other accounts
R EFNEMREREEE ZEE Movement in impairment allowances

on accrued interest and other accounts

—ETLF-A—HNER Balance at 1 January 2007 -

E B R R Impairment losses charged 3

REE(E IR E FMH 5 Loans written off as uncollectible @)

—EELF A=+ R
—EEN\F-A-HNEH
BB B R

KEE(EEE ML
—EENF+ZA=1+—H

KRBT EEERA T
—ZEN\FEH

At 31 December 2007 -

Balance at 1 January 2008 -
Impairment losses charged -
Loans written off as uncollectible -

At 31 December 2008 -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25.  Advances and other accounts (Continued)

-l

(¢) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease

receivables as follows:

—EENE _—ZTTLF
& Group 2008 2007
KREEMERE c EIARES Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
—F A Not later than 1 year 3,667,280 3,437,842
—FUAEERF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 3,628,393 4,093,051
HFE Later than 5 years 3,110,168 2,905,324
10,405,841 10,436,217
BEMAEZ KRR Z #hE WA Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (1,363,390) (1,884,718)
BEHERE R Net investment in finance leases 9,042,451 8,551,499
MEMEREFHEHAR 2OTWT ¢ The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:
—F IR Not later than 1 year 3,293,847 2,984,690
—FUEERF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 3,216,505 3,517,454
HFUE Later than 5 years 2,532,099 2,049,355
9,042,451 8,551,499
RZEZENF+A=+—H LB EHEE There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross

BREBENREEERNBEERE(CTTLEF
fm

“EE\F+ZAZ+-RZAEEEFREE
ERERTARE Z BE R EEYRIEL A ERE
& & /5 152,666,0008 T (= T T £ F -
63,355,000/ 7T) °

investment in finance lease above as at 31 December 2008 (2007:Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included in

the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2008 of the Group
amounted to HK$152,666,000 (2007: HK$63,355,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Investments in securities included in the loans and

% receivables category
—EENE —ZTTAHF
3 Group 2008 2007
BREEERNERGERRZ EHEE Investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category

- REAF AR TR FES R — At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 5,113,559 -
— LB AR ARSI BR — At amortised cost 1,783,087 -
6,896,646 -

BREERMEWIRER 2 EFRETINFEE
REAHEEESTEN SR - BRAKEFR DR
Z R BE 29 -

BEEERKEBGRIEEN 2 EHRE SN
I

Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category

were reclassified from the available-for-sale category in the year. Details

relating to this reclassification are set out in Note 29.

Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category

are analysed as follows.

—BENE _—TTLHF
5 Group 2008 2007
BISFE S
Debt securities:
-HELE™M — Listed in Hong Kong 187,820 -
- BBINET — Listed outside Hong Kong 5,496,534 -
- 3L — Unlisted 1,212,292 -
6,896,646 -
rhmEAzTE Market value of listed securities 4,828,680 -
BREEEBKES Included within debt securities are:
- FEMIFRE — Certificates of deposit held - -
- EhEHES — Other debt securities 6,896,646 -
6,896,646 -
BREEREEWGIBERNZEHFEE Investments in securities included in
RETHBENS AT the loans and receivables category
are analysed by categories of issuers
as follows:
- RIT M E A& B S - Banks and other financial institutions 4,763,102 -
-1 - Corporate entities 2,133,544 -
6,896,646 -

RZEENEFE+-_A=+—8 EFEEEE
57,429,000/ T (Z 2Tt F : ) ZIEHNES
EROE R T IEEESRERE o

KRBT EEERA T
—ZEN\FEH

As at 31 December 2008, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$57,429,000 (2007: Nil) was pledged with unrelated financial

institutions under repurchase agreements.
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27. Wt B

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. Available-for-sale securities

—BENE —TTLHF
5 Group 2008 2007
BEBSES Debt securities:
-HELE™M — Listed in Hong Kong 1,408,161 1,737,690
- BB TR - Listed outside Hong Kong 7,620,884 12,829,696
-3 - Unlisted 5,055,866 10,502,553
14,084,911 25,069,939
BmEES Equity securities:
-HELE™M — Listed in Hong Kong 4,119 22,534
- HBLASN TR — Listed outside Hong Kong 80,960 129,940
-3t — Unlisted
-RIEEES 2R — Interests in investment funds - 152,024
- HAt — Others 77,309 59,758
162,388 364,256
AHEEELAE Total available-for-sale securities 14,247,299 25,434,195
BEEEHES Included within debt securities are:
-FHENERE — Certificates of deposit held - 970,338
- HihEBES — Other debt securities 14,084,911 24,099,601
14,084,911 25,069,939
BIE ek=cE> Available-for-sale securities are
RETHBENS AT analysed by categories of issuers
as follows:
- R RIEF A RERTT — Central governments and central
banks 1,037,592 2,339,796
- NEE - Public sector entities 91,063 112,226
- RIT R EMA S R - Banks and other financial institutions 5,506,728 12,605,668
- - Corporate entities 7,610,388 10,374,977
- H - Others 1,528 1,528
14,247,299 25,434,195

RZEENF+ZA=+—H EEHRLE
399,022,000/ 7T 2 FEH T & 75 B 1= Bl i s 47
TIHBESHREE (=T LF  MBEAEA
704,530,000/ T 2 INEE S EHBHDERTE
BEERUFRAEEEINEESEBHELFNE
ERTHEERED) °

As at 31 December 2008, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$399,022,000 was pledged with unrelated financial

institutions under repurchase agreements (2007: Exchange Fund debt

securities with a market value of HK$704,530,000 were pledged with

the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s trading and market-making activities

in Exchange Fund debts).
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REEAN  AEBRAIHLEESFHERRETS
BRENEAMISEES6,519,483,0008 70
(ZZTLF B L BEBREFRERERKER
RIEHER o BRAULEF 2B MEE29 o

28. #HEIWIBRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. Available-for-sale securities (Continued)

During the year, the Group reclassified investments in debt securities
with a total market value at the time of reclassification of
HK$6,519,483,000 (2007: Nil) out of the available-for-sale category into
the loans and receivables category. Details relating to this

reclassification are set out in Note 29.

28. Held-to-maturity securities

—BBNFE  —TTLA

5 Group 2008 2007
(R Debt securities
- BB - Listed outside Hong Kong 4,094,474 4,086,699
-3 — Unlisted 2,064,790 267,482
6,159,264 4,354,181
rtmEHsTE Market value of listed securities 3,572,127 3,880,589
BIEEEBES Included within debt securities are:
- BBENTRE - Certificates of deposit held 265,000 4,833
- HMEBE — Other debt securities 5,894,264 4,349,348
6,159,264 4,354,181
SEIEF S Held-to-maturity securities are
RETHBERNSTHAT analysed by issuer as follows:
- R RIEAT R RERTT - Central governments and central
banks 1,135,177 -
- IRIT R EM S B - Banks and other financial institutions 4,404,317 3,987,837
-1 — Corporate entities 619,770 366,344
6,159,264 4,354,181

R-FENF+-A=+—-0 FREAMHE
178,918,000/ L (ZZZ 4 ¢ ﬂﬁ)z#ﬂzﬁﬁ%
EROE R T IEEESRERE o

RER AEEBEHFS>ERENEBEMS
E1E 4 5 1,201,087,0008 7T (— T T + 4
4,141,610,000/87T) 2 ] E BB ESF RIHE
FEES  RMAEEHBEEZEESFNERE
ERIBETE -

KHRITEEER AT
—ZEN\FEH

As at 31 December 2008, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$178,918,000 (2007: Nil) was pledged with unrelated

financial institutions under repurchase agreements.

The Group reclassified available-for-sale debt securities with a total
market value at the time of reclassification of HK$1,201,087,000 (2007:
HK$4,141,610,000) as held-to-maturity securities, reflecting a change

in the Group’s intention on holding these securities to maturity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. Reclassification of financial assets

During the year, the Group reclassified financial assets out of the
available-for-sale category into the loans and receivables category. The
Group had the intention and ability to hold these reclassified loans and
receivables for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of

reclassification.

The fair values of reclassified financial assets as of the respective dates

of reclassification are disclosed below:

BE-ZEZENF+=-A=+—H
LFEREHI2ECEREE
Financial assets reclassified in the
year ended 31 December 2008

REFA2ERAZLAFE
Fair values on date of

reclassification

wAHfEEEN O EAERREWFIE
Reclassified from available-for-sale to

loans and receivables

RZZFENF+ZA=1T—R EFEREHD
BrzeMEENAFYEREEED A
5,905,929,000;& 7t }.6,896,646,000/8 7T (— T F

tF  AEHFREFENNR) ©
REBDREERAREHEZEN D BEMEE

R Tz Was - BE - ARSI H -

EBEFRE

Investments in debt securities 6,519,483

As at 31 December 2008, the fair values and carrying values of financial
assets reclassified during the current year are HK$5,905,929,000 and
HK$6,896,646,000 respectively (2007: no such reclassification
permitted).

The Group has recognised the following gains, losses, income and
expenses in the income statement in respect of the reclassified financial

assets.

BE-ZZE\E+-HA=+-HLEFE BE_EZtF

For the year ended 31 December2008 +=HF=+—H

ENOREE EHAEA LFE

After Before For the year ended

reclassification reclassification 31 December 2007

M EMA Interest income 187,042 217,494 400,830
RUSFHBeREECTERFEEHRLH T Certain reclassified financial assets have been hedged by interest rate

MESTET A - WEEERNERBREE S
W BESECEERERR WY X
PTHEIANATFEEFHRE - TR2FEELE

BREERZsAZ [AAFESPHEESRT
B2 FEE] -

derivatives under fair value hedge arrangements. The changes in the
value of these assets attributable to changes in interest rate risk has
been recognised in the income statement and have been offset by the
fair value changes in the hedging interest rate derivatives. The total net
loss shown below has been included in the “Net loss arising from

financial instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. Reclassification of financial assets (Continued)

BE-EENFt-A=+-BLEE BE-22+tF
For the year ended 31 December2008 +=-HA=+—H
ENSE#R EXDEA tEE
After Before For the year ended
reclassification reclassification 31 December 2007
W BN EEREEL Fair value gain/(loss) on the hedged
DEERE (BE) reclassified financial assets 672,499 (111,038) 30,733
FAS 2 FIRSTHET A Fair value (loss)/gain on the hedging
NFE(BE) /s interest rate derivatives (671,392) 95,889 (55,911)
DEEFRE (BB Net fair value gain/(loss) 1,107 (15,149) (25,178)

RFARENHMEN  AREEEREEANZE
EREEAZENIHEEESFERPEN S EA
ERRERGIEERNz cREERRR T EEE
355,436,000 70 (TEARNFENEFH DB 2 A
EEE WZZTZLF+-A=1+—HHEERE
BaBbR2ENRBEONLATEER A
437,883,000/ 7T) °

BN OBEAERNERZIEZ CRHEENBERE
FEFHE510% °

TRARESBERAREEAMALEENRI
ZEREEWR Z B ARMBEER S IMEEE

In the current year before reclassification, the Group recognised in the
revaluation reserve in equity a fair value loss in the amount of
HK$355,436,000 on financial assets reclassified out of the available-
for-sale category into the loans and receivables category (the fair value
loss recognised in revaluation reserve in equity as at 31 December 2007
on available-for-sale assets reclassified in the current period was
HK$437,883,000).

Effective interest rates on financial assets reclassified into loans and

receivables averaged to 5.10% p.a.

Presented below are the estimated amounts of undiscounted cash flows
the Group expected to recover for these reclassified financial assets as

at the date of reclassification:

—FHUE MENE
—FHZUTF EWME EHF
1 year or Between 1 Between 2 EFUE

less and2years and5years Over 5 years

EREFRE

166 AHRFTEMERLT
—TT N\ EER

Investments in debt securities 358,424 359,424

1,076,971 9,068,188
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. Investment in an associate

—BRNE  —TTLA

568 Group 2008 2007
EiHEEFE Share of net assets 787,838 517,630
EES Goodwill 344,623 283,359
AEt Total 1,132,461 800,989

—EBEENE —ZTHE
£8 Group 2008 2007
—HA—H At 1 January 800,989 -
FRILHE Additions during the year 179,718 703,339
JEEBRTR 1B 345 Share of results, net of tax 120,589 72,070
EHER Exchange differences 31,165 25,580
+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 1,132,461 800,989

RoPENFTZA=t—AZ2HBEADMN
T

The following is a full list of associates as at 31 December 2008:

FihERBE DL
Percentage of interest in
o it B FEEK ownership
7B Place of incorporation Principal —EENF —ZTTLF
Name and operation activities 2008 2007
BERTT hEE AR AFE R1T 20% 17%
Bank of Chongqing People’s Republic of China Banking

EEBRRTZRERZARRE ZM B AR AFIR
THA « KRR -_ZZENFTA-+—HRE
PIBFFFRSIN 2 3% s 1L - R R EEIRI TR
BE20% - R _ERHFERBE_ZZENEFTA
Zt—HZA  BERAEEREBSEBEEIRTT
BEE UNATERRDEERBERNBERmME &
BRTTABRENTEN  AEEAREERTAHE

BT -

The investment in Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”") is held by the
Company’s subsidiary, DSB. On 21 October 2008, following the
completion of a further acquisition of 3% equity interest, DSB’s total
interest in BOCQ was increased to 20%. In 2007 and prior to 21 October
2008, BOCQ was treated as an associate on the ground that the Group
through its participation in BOCQ’s board meetings, review and
approval of strategies and policies, could exercise significant influence
on BOCQ.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008

167



168

B 15 R R B ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

(ABEE T TLF)R)

31, S [ 5 i E R A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. Investments in jointly controlled entities

—EENE —TTLEF
& Group 2008 2007
SELETIRAY - 1R Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
H—HRAESEE 2 EREREE Loans receivable from a jointly
controlled entity 37,571 47,124

57,571 67,124
JEAE U 12 B Share of post-acquisition reserves 2,402 (3,272)

59,973 63,852

RZZEZENF+TZA=+T—HLREHEE
T

The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2008:

tHEEEZES

Percentage of

effective interest

in ownership

o /0 3t B FTEEBRKE I
£18 Place of Principal activities and
Name incorporation place of operation
IREEZERR AR A A EPe wEER - BB
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding,

Hong Kong
IR EFEARAA £ RN FERKRSER
Bank Consortium Trust Company Hong Kong ZREARE - BB

Limited

AEBEERBERARAR 2 EAEHMBARK
FIRTTRA - MR EEARRQAIRBHZARA
BRARZZEKBAT -

H-HEZGHERZEREVRAFER - A
—REBBERGEREDL ©

Trustee and custodian services
for retirement fund schemes,
Hong Kong

13.333%

13.333%

The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by

DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company

Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank Consortium Holding

Limited.

The loan receivable from a jointly controlled entity is secured and is

extended on normal commercial terms.

32. MBARKE 32. Investments in subsidiaries
—EBEENE _—ZTTLF
AT Company 2008 2007
FE LR - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 3,150,282 3,150,282
NGRS Amounts due from subsidiaries 115,452 61,747
3,265,734 3,212,029

JE W BB X B 2 FUOR I BT - RS RIZEK

yam &
B o

KRBT EEERA T
—ZEN\FEH

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

-l

The following is a full list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31

BARMT December 2008:
FRiERBEAL
Percentage of shares held
1 s B BROTEERRA
ARER TEEH Place of HiE %  Particulars of issued
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary shares
AFBRITERDA ®’17 B
Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% - HK$2,300,000,000
CRRITERLDA ®17 0
MEVAS Bank Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% - HK$400,000,000
NERE REBRUHES
Channel Winner Limited Property Investment British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1
ABHBERDA TEex BiE
Dah Sing Finance Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
NERE KBRS
South Development Limited Property Investment British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1
EEe® REBRUHES
Yield Rich Group Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1
RERK BRE
D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 75.5% - US$1,000,000
A#RT (PE) ERAA ®17 hiEA\R AR
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 100% RMB1,000,000,000
BFBERTERAA ®17 RF
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 100% MOP225,000,000
ANEREZGERRA LEex BiE
Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$20
KHRBERER AT R4 B0
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 100% HK$200,000
EEe® RERIHES
DSLI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
BE REBRAHS
Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
AHEFRERLA REARY 0
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$100,000
RERK B
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000
Emex EERAHS
Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
RERK 0
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$1
RERK B
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$1
AHEFERDA
(FIEHEEFERAA) EFHEE BB
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000

(formerly Global Courage Securities

Limited)

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

FRERBEAL
Percentage of shares held

T 2 BRTEBRRA

ARER TEEH Place of HE M#  Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary shares
RIEART 0

MEVAS Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$50,000
RREHE (BE) ERAR mex 3

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$450,000,000
TEex EBEAHE

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
HEREBERAA NERE BiE

Vanishing Border Investment Services Property investment Hong Kong - 100% HK$20

Limited

®17 REAS

D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) ~ Banking Guernsey - 75.5% US$8,000,000

Limited

HOBEEERAF NERE HiE

Modern World Holdings Limited Property investment Hong Kong 100% - HK$1
HNBEEERRF NERE BiE

Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Property investment Hong Kong 100% - HK$1
NERE EBERHE

Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1
K EEERLDA TEex 0

Ever Silver Holdings Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2

BRAFIRITERDRZRARBERARIN

EatFr

Except for Dah Sing Bank, Limited which is a public limited company,

BB RFLA R RIS BB A M J7 M A
o HERBBEFEBEZMAZZIARRERE
e

= D. A. H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands)
Limited - AFrR1T (FE) BRAQA] - BFIEEIR
TAERA AR L5 BT B AINEMK IO R
Ao - b R RIGERERE o

REFERIT (PE) BRAFR _ZZENF L AES
BN - YRIBFEARKMBEERERLR
[EREERF (RBRENEE)]

170 AHRFTEMERLT

“TENETH

all the above companies are private companies, or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a

Hong Kong incorporated private company.

Except for D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited, Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., and companies
incorporated outside Hong Kong specified above, all other companies

operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body)” under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.
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33. P MR EE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Goodwill and intangible assets

BOER EFBf&
&4 EBVEE BREE
BREE Core  Customer Bk
#%  Contract deposit  relationship Trade Bt
&E Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name Total
KR Cost
ZZE\§-A-BRk At 1 January 2008 and
“EE/\F+-A=1+-H at 31 December 2008 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
ZRAE/ B Accumulated impairment/Amortisation
—TT\E-F-H At 1 January 2008 - 19,661 35,005 5,534 - 60,200
FRXE (F10 Charge for the year (Note 10) - 4,282 10,288 4,466 - 19,036
“ZE\E+ZA=1+-H At 31 December 2008 - 23,943 45,293 10,000 - 79,236
REME Carrying value
—EEN\E+ZA=1—H At 31 December 2008 811,690 2,556 35,290 30,777 58,252 938,565
BOER EFBf&
&4 BREE BREE
BREE Core  Customer Bk
B8  Contract deposit  relationship Trade Bt
£H Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name Total
KR Cost
“ZZt5-A-BR At 1 January 2007 and
—E2E+F+-fA=1-H at 31 December 2007 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
ZHRRE/ B Accumulated impairment/Amortisation
“ZZ+F-f-H At 1 January 2007 - 12,725 22,684 2,039 - 37,448
ERZE (FE10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - 6,936 12,321 3,495 - 22,752
“EE+F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2007 - 19,661 35,005 5,534 - 60,200
REE Carrying value
“ZE+F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2007 811,690 6,838 45,578 35,243 58,252 957,601

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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33. BERLEEEE @

ERERYRZEBEVEERRTALY RUEREE
FRREVEESARBERERENTRES
CEZARFHEE - ARARERERESF
A BB EE R RARA MR RIEREE RS
= o

FESEERIRALEE N EHRHECRAZ
REeEABM (REELBEM]) UERERE -
TREABREHEZ N

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets with finite life including contract intangibles, core
deposit intangible and customer relationship intangibles are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name is with indefinite life and is tested annually
for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less accumulated impairment

loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to geographical area of operation and business
segment for impairment losses assessment. A summary of goodwill

allocation is presented below.

—ERtFT=-A=t-BR
—2EN\F+=A=+-8
As at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008

[EE3Sh B ART
Commercial Personal BB % &5t
58 Group Banking Banking Treasury Total
BB Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
P! Macau 199,140 260,408 33,475 493,023
395,618 382,597 33,475 811,690

EFEYEEABELRARZIBEER(CTT
tFH|) o

BEASFERENN  BHUREFEZERE
EMEEZREELEMAOREHE - ZtEE
AEEEEEABMGRHRESEHECEES
—EZBABRER - RERATHF S ZEARE
MHEAEERF  AUBEFIERF2%ERER
FAREXENRST - ARAZMMRXRTER
RSB 2 B AN F 15 8(10.23% °

ESREERITTZORENRA D ERA2RBREESER
SH23%HAI BT EREMZNBEEE =F&
H2HERARA - KRB AR EIGH 82 TR &
RZEERF - BUEREFISRE2%HERE AFIA
BEFGERIEEN o FTEMA AR E7310.23% )
BENRNER 2 ERKAMET I -

KR TEEERA R
—ZEN\FEH

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name are identified in the
year (2007: Nil).

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on value
in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections prepared
by the senior management and approved by the Board covering a three-
year period and extrapolated into five years using cash flow projections
in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth
rate after the fifth year. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s

weighted average cost of capital at 10.23%.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rates of 3% with reference to similar business services
transactions, and projected revenue in the approved budget covering a
three-year period and extrapolated into five years using cash flow
projections in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth. The discount rate of 10.23% used is based on the

Group’s weighted average cost of capital.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Premises and other fixed assets

-l

R
RERAE
Furniture,
equipment
TE and motor A%
58 Group Premises vehicles Total
HE_ZZ+tF+-A=+—-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2007
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,281,509 105,127 1,386,636
i Additions 319 68,455 68,774
BERT 2 EMRE Recovery of previous revaluation
deficits 27,575 - 27,575
EfHEE Revaluation surplus 399,842 - 399,842
HE Disposals (93,525) - (93,525)
ENHE Reclassification 80,613 - 80,613
FEZE (HFE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (40,595) (44,287) (84,882)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,655,738 129,295 1,785,033
—EZ+F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2007
KA/ (HE Cost/valuation 1,655,738 385,928 2,041,666
REFE Accumulated depreciation - (256,633) (256,633)
EEFE Net book amount 1,655,738 129,295 1,785,033
BE-_ZEN\E+-A=1+-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2008
FHEEFE Opening net book amount 1,655,738 129,295 1,785,033
i Additions 952 77,530 78,482
EXRYAE Revaluation deficit (107,693) - (107,693)
HE Disposals (11,463) (4,698) (16,161)
EFNE Reclassification 22,330 - 22,330
FESZ M (FHFE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (47,780) (47,712) (95,492)
FRIEEAFE Closing net book amount 1,512,084 154,415 1,666,499
—EZEN\FE+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2008
KA/ 1hE Cost/valuation 1,512,084 378,510 1,890,594
ZRITE Accumulated depreciation - (224,095) (224,095)
REFE Net book amount 1,512,084 154,415 1,666,499

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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34.

(T o

A7 T oAt B 5 B E ()

AEBITERN 2 EER
— BT - A ARB L EXFINEME —K
FERES (HEREEXBRER) BRAR GRURE
B K NZWE) RE—RFR A CRF)
BRAR GMIRRPIZ M) B oMM EEE

— ==

NE+ZA=1

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

The Group’s premises were last revalued at 31 December 2008.
Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
Professional Services) Limited for premises in Hong Kong and Mainland

China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for premises in Macau.

W17 EREBR K AEESR BUOR If premises were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would
be as follows:
—EENE —ZZTHEF
= Group 2008 2007
BN Cost 1,018,030 1,043,197
2EE Accumulated depreciation (192,472) (173,669)
BRmEFE Net book amount 825,558 869,528

NEEER-ZBENF+_A=+—B2ZRAL

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2008 of the above

HESTET - assets is as follows:

& -

BRERAE

Furniture,

equipment
TE and motor B
£8 Group Premises vehicles Total
DN At cost - 378,510 378,510
RitE -T2 N\F At valuation - 2008 1,512,084 - 1,512,084
1,512,084 378,510 1,890,594

NEEER-ZTZLF+ - A=+—B2ZMAK

HEIFWT

assets is as follows:

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2007 of the above

&AW

BRERRE

Furniture,

equipment
TE and motor =i
&M@ Group Premises vehicles Total
B At cost - 385,928 385,928
REE-—TTLF At valuation — 2007 1,655,738 - 1,655,738
1,655,738 385,928 2,041,666

KRBT EEERA T
—ZEN\FEH
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. A7 MM R H A (@0

34. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

TEZEREEDFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
—EENE —ZZTLF
£E= Group 2008 2007
TR fEH Leaseholds
EBEBFAZHERELY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ER+F2H) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,193,337 1,326,168
EBEBAINGE 2P HHEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(E+ER+F2/H) term lease (between 10-50 years) 318,747 329,570
1,512,084 1,655,738
35. HEWE 35. Investment properties
—EENE _—ZETtF
£H Group 2008 2007
—H—H At 1 January 658,588 642,140
i Additions - 16,289
& Disposals (11,163) (60,463)
EpiN ] Reclassification (22,330) (80,613)
EHAFE (BB) Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation (78,923) 141,235
+=—A=+—H At 31 December 546,172 658,588

REERENMESH ZHEER_FTENF+ A
=+ —HET - BFHERBIEESIFRBME
— RV EER (HEMEERR) BRAR (B
REEBRDEBEAZ2YME) ME - K FRAELH (R
F)BRAR GLIRRFIZYE) RARTHISE

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2008. Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong

and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment

EERAT o

properties in Macau.

WEYHEZ EHFERRE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
—EENF CZTTLF
£E= Group 2008 2007
TR fEH Leaseholds
EBEBFAZHERELY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ERT+F2ME) lease (between 10-50 years) 534,230 609,794
EBEBAINGE 2P HHEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(E+ERT+F2/H) term lease (between 10-50 years) 11,942 48,794
546,172 658,588

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. HAhEE 36. Other assets
—EENE -TTHE
& Group 2008 2007
FEMGRIE R TESIE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,260,112 2,988,634
EETFIE Accrued income 803,449 1,030,269
Hh Others 218,384 324,365
2,281,945 4,343,268

37. #HEHEMBHAR

&M

37. Trading liabilities

—EENE _—ZTTLF
Group 2008 2007

HEBEREMEEES

38 HAREDAA PG i HLILS TN A
1% 73k

&M

Short sales of treasury bills and treasury

bonds 1,791,419 2,689,069

38. Deposits from customers designated at fair value
through profit or loss

ZEEN\E —ZTTLHF

Group 2008 2007

BB

RER - NEBABRVAERRIETCEATS
ERAEUNATFEFELEZH T ABRZ (ZZET
+4F : 48{E592,400,000/8 70 2 B P17 A 104 HE
RIS T AN EE B HEE T AER) °

AEEELERFTFREBEREANENNSHE
A _FFrY 2 BRE{E 10,000,000/ 7T (ZEE+
£ : 5124,000,000/57T) °

176 AHFRFTEMERLT

“TENETH

Structured deposits 471,065 3,142,488

During the year, the Group did not designate on initial recognition any
deposits from customers at fair value through profit or loss (2007:
deposits from customers totalling HK$592,400,000 were designated at

fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition).

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these deposits is HK$10 million higher (2007:
HK$124 million higher) than the above carrying amount.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. Deposits from customers

—BRNE  —TTLA

5 Group 2008 2007
TE BT R A R TFE R Demand deposits and current accounts 8,328,274 9,100,349
BETH Savings deposits 9,858,550 9,550,455
EH - @A RS EER Time, call and notice deposits 63,703,623 57,290,057

81,890,447 75,940,861

BEFOG&SBBESHIFEADEBE T HUEEE
PEHIR 5 2 17 7010,862,000/8 70 (— T T4 ¢
31,950,000/ 7T) ©

B E HIE AN

Koo

MEEMEPERERTIEF

40. BTN E

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$10,862,000 (2007:
HK$31,950,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than fixed deposits, all other customer deposits carry variable

rates.

40. Certificates of deposit issued

—EENE _—ZTTLF

£E= Group 2008 2007
BENLNAFEFEBEEZEHTAERE Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,605,722 4,160,268
LR R R T AT EY R At fair value under fair value hedge

(for hedging interest rate risk) 629,096 1,605,373
R ERAK AT R At amortised cost 2,420,167 3,077,773

4,654,985 8,843,414

RZBENFRZZZTLFAN - AEERERT During 2008 and 2007, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
ta TR Ry 5 Efﬂﬂﬁeﬁf?ﬁ?ﬁﬁl% AERE any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.
BE#E ABE -
BENRAFEFEBEEEBTABEZEETRE The change in the fair value of certificates of deposit and designated at
& Al B AN TS B A (Flan - P - HNE) & fair value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external
HEERREE2AFTEZHH A A KR market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of HK$4,619,000

4,619,0008 L (ZZEZ+F : E18/511,045,000
BIT) & E5182,013,0008 T (2T +F : WEA
4,584,000 7T) °

AEETE I EE BITF B IRE QR
SERUA AT 2 BRI {E1K36,000,0005 T (=
T4 : 21,000,000/ 7T) °

(2007: a loss of HK$11,045,000) and that attributable to own credit
standing is a loss of HK$2,013,000 (2007: a gain of HK$4,584,000)
respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$36 million

lower (2007: HK$21 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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41. OBITMEEESR

E3L]

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. Issued debt securities

—BRNE  —TTLA
Group 2008 2007

BEUAFEITER ST AER

R R X ER T XV ED R

RN AR

RZZFENER_ZFZLFR  AEERERY
R EEMNERITEBESR /U FEF
EAHEHH AR -

ERTEHBEFBRE N

. R¥#R1T 2 2 &M B A 7lDah Sing MTN
Financing Limitedi& 8 A5 #R17 2 BUMN T 5
REIRERT A RZTEWF+ A A%
T EFR R 5 F7 £ 2 150,000,000% T
7 2.%150,000,000% 7T )% BB ERELRE
([ZBEREREERRE]) - ZAERELE
BHRAMBTER - AEER - SEZEH
BR-ZZZNF+=-A—H8 " Eﬁ}i$‘5_‘n
RITBATETHO A R AR E BT 8

# o

. RFIRITBE BEBONTIIS R BAEIERE A
RZZZ+F+— A ABTUEF MK
%X 5 Bt b 2 450,000,000/ 7T M 4 B E B
ER((ZERRE] - ZEEEBZER
FHERI13%  HEBINFBA-TZTN
F+—AZH  ERABBRHRITHEST
R R B B R B E%E o

BEUNAFEFEAEZTT ABR 2 BERITE
53 %Tﬁmlm\%m%ﬁ%uﬁwu FE - HNE)
REGEERREE AT EED S ABRE
ms%ow%mc_??ti [&518 437,395,000
B7T) kiz£2,218,0008 T (ZEZLF « Wam R
3,672,000/ 7T) °

AEEE N ECRITEBELFINPRFIEE QRN
H & REE A L FT7) 2 BR B 1K.29,000,000/8 7T (=
TZ+4F ¢ {£5,000,000/87T) °

KR TEEERA R
—ZEN\FEH

Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,181,486 1,169,948
At fair value under fair value hedge

(for hedging interest rate risk) 459,654 454,778
At amortised cost 1,162,500 1,170,135

2,803,640 2,794,861

During 2008 and 2007, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any issued debt securities at fair value through profit or loss.

Issued debt securities comprises the following:

o The US$150 million fixed rate and the US$150 million floating
rate Senior Guaranteed Notes (the “Senior Guaranteed Notes”)
issued by Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of DSB, on 1 December 2004 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme which are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Senior Guaranteed Notes are
guaranteed by DSB, unsecured, and have a final maturity on 1
December 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the fixed rate Senior Guaranteed

Notes is determined on floating rate basis.

° The HK$450 million 2-year Fixed Rate Note (the “Fixed Rate
Note”) issued by DSB on 2 November 2007 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme, and is listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Fixed Rate Note
carries interest at 4.13% per annum and has a final maturity date
on 2 November 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the Fixed Rate Note is

determined on floating rate basis.

The change in the fair value of issued debt securities designated at fair
value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external market
prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a loss of HK$21,398,000 (2007: a
loss of HK$37,395,000) and that attributable to own credit standing is
a gain of HK$2,218,000 (2007: a gain of HK$3,672,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these issued debt securities is HK$29 million

lower (2007: HK$5 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. Subordinated notes

—BRNE  —TTLA

2008 2007
150,000,000FE TR —Z — A E R HH US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating

FEREGR GEF) Rate Notes due 2015 (Note (a)) 1,162,500 1,170,135
150,000,000 7T A =T —+F B Hi K US$150,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

EEREGHEGEL) Rate Notes due 2017 (Note (b)) 1,040,438 1,163,688
150,000,000E LA = ZF — N FEIHAH US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating

FEBEEEGER) Rate Notes due 2016 (Note (c)) 1,162,500 1,170,135
200,000,000 7Tk A E B & EEB US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated

GET) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (d)) 1,903,278 1,643,879
52,000,000 Tk A JE B & B E 5 US$52,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated

(GEI) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (e)) 403,000 -

BENRAFEASEEZHAER

PR EE R T QP ED R

R RS AR

F:g
AR

ENFR-ETLER - AEBRERY]
BEEMEEEBRAATEAEEH

4++ NH{

“@J P AR -

i
()

B ARFIRITR _EEZRFUA -+ BT
150,000,000% JT 7= & FR R 22 5 B £ W 4 7 5E
RETINE R Z BEEER ([EBH]) - LEEK
BR-_E—RFRANBRE - BEMEEEAA
“T-ZEFRANE - c ARTAEHRENEE
B WEBZASR=(EAHETRITRZERS
MA+EF - UB=EABT—K - Hik - W&
BAREEEGHEERED  TEANTEEETA
—EABMEARITAEREM—BASTEHTF &
BEEBSERBEAIME - REFRITAIREERNE
R A AR KR EANF SR A B UEEER
fEE A GEB D) &%

5,671,716 5,147,837

Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,040,438 1,163,688
At fair value under fair value hedge

(for hedging interest rate risk) 1,903,278 1,643,879
At amortised cost 2,728,000 2,340,270

5,671,716 5,147,837

During 2008 and 2007, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(@) This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 29 April 2005 (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Notes
will mature on 6 May 2015 with an optional redemption date falling on 6
May 2010. Interest rate for the Notes is set on a quarterly basis based on
3-month LIBOR plus 60 basis points from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 160
basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
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42.

i
(2)

180 &

-2

— =

RAEAEF (80

(48)

W AFBRTR_ZETRENATNBETZ
150,000,0003 L& £5.451 % EERER ST £
MAEWARAEAMMERN T EREER ([E
Bl o WEBEBHER_Z—+tENATNHE
HegEMEERA-T——F/\A+/\A &
BTREHEEEEER  £EAL41% &
FEME—IX - g MEBRTEEEEER
BE - FRNFEEETAERTIFHERREE
EHFEEM-E-T2T  wEGSELESERE
FBOAE - RETERATRI NI BMEE A A S E
HRFIENFBAEEEEERME EED) &
% o RETRITIRE B —BEBRRITEI U R R in i 4
A EB R EE N SR ABUETTIRITEER S
BERONZEFSMAK -

T ARHFRITR_TSTAFEAB-BEITZ
150,000,0003% 7T 1E #7 A3 32 5 Fr b i1 3 4% R 5E
B MERNZ S RERER ((EF]) - LEER
BR-Z—XFEAAZHEH - BIEHEERA
ZE——FXRA=ZA - ARTAEZHBEUHESR
B WEHZHESER=EASETRITRERE
ME+REEF  UE=EABET—R - Eig - fin
EHEREREMEEABE  FEOFESER]
REZBEABMETRITAZEFRSM—BEHT - 5
BEBSEREEIE - KHFIRITAIAEZEE
BHKERBEHANEN KB AREEEER
FiE GEEP D) & -

WD ARFBIR ST LE_A+ AT
200,000,000 7T £ ¥ h14 22 5 B & 1 30 1% 5278
BB MERNE B KA KEER ([EH] -
IhEEHREEBEERA-S—tF AT+t
BE|HE - RETHEHBRIEREER 84
6.253% ' F¥FRNE—R - Hi& - MEBRE
BEUEEAELD  ARONEEEITA=EA
HETRITRAEREN—BNTEHT - ERES
BeERELIE - KHFIRITAIAEIBHEER
FEBSEARFEN K AUEEEBERBRME
GEEBD) EH - RFTRITINE B —BIBRIRITET L
M B A A B EBS O EE N SR AUETR
TREREBEWNFEFEMNRK -

T RFIRITN —ETNF+ A=+ AT
252,000,000 7T 3E £ 30 4% 57 E &= FE T INE
RHE BAARERES (TEB)) - LEEHZE
BUBERR_Z—=F1+_A=1tH -F8A
10% @ HBETARSFFNE K - FESEE
SERALIME - RIRITAIPERMUEEE B L
EARBEARMENKRAAREEEERME
(GEaR D) &7 -

RITEEBR2T
TNFEFH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. Subordinated notes (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(©

(e)

This represents US$150,000,000 5.451% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 18 August 2005
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 18 August 2017 with an optional redemption date
falling on 18 August 2012. Interest at 5.451% p.a. is payable semi-annually
from the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the
Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will
bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus 220 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 2 June 2006 (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The Notes will mature on 3 June 2016 with an optional
redemption date falling on 3 June 2011. Interest rate for the Notes is set
on a quarterly basis based on 3-month LIBOR plus 75 basis points from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the Notes will bear
interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 100 basis points. DSB may, subject to
receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but
not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation
reasons on interest payment date.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Notes carry an optional
redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at 6.253% p.a. is
payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset
and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 190 basis points.
DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption
date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An interest rate
swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to
floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an
international bank.

This represents US$52,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as upper Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 29 December
2008 (the “Notes”) and are unlisted. The Notes carry an optional
redemption date falling on 30 December 2013. Interest at 10% p.a. is
payable semi-annually from the issue date. DSB may, subject to receiving
the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in
part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons
on interest payment date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. Subordinated notes (Continued)

The change in the fair value of subordinated notes designated at fair
value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external market
prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a loss of HK$83,296,000 (2007: a
loss of HK$46,013,000) and that attributable to own credit standing is
a gain of HK$199,292,000 (2007: a gain of HK$32,451,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$231 million

lower (2007: HK$77 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

43. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

—ETN\F —ZTTLF
3 Group 2008 2007
BEEFRIBEEE Deferred income tax assets 159,380 9,228
RIETIE A E Deferred income tax liabilities (1,575) (88,862)
—EENE _—ZTTLF
% Group 2008 2007
BEEIREE Deferred income tax assets:
-AETZEAEKE ZIEERIEE E — Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12 months 355,095 164,976
BEEFHIBEAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
-EE+TZEAREEZELCRIBEE — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled after more than 12 months (197,290) (244,434)
-EET-EARNBEZELERIEEE — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled within 12 months - (176)
(197,290) (244,610)
EEBIRBEBINT The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
—ETN\F —ZTTLF
3 Group 2008 2007
—A—H At 1 January (79,634) (131,572)
RUESER AT IE R & () Tax credited/(charged) to the income
(7E17) statement (Note 17) 9,892 (26,773)
R AR AT I8 B8 (B 5247) Tax credited to equity (Note 47) 227,547 78,711
+=—A=+—H At 31 December 157,805 (79,634)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

98 JE 8 JE A - Deferred income tax assets:
BEXH
BEERRERE NERBAE RE#
Impairment  Accelerated REEM Deferred
allowances and tax BEBE  Investment  expenses &it
£E Group provisions depreciation  Taxlosses  revaluation  and others Total
“EZtE-A-A At 1 January 2007 15,169 681 3,061 - 5,126 24,037
REEEAEE/ (Zi) Credited/(charged) to the income statement 14,785 (69) (3,061) - 933 12,588
REZEAE R Credited to equity - - - 127,822 - 127,822
BN Reclassification - - - 529 - 529
“EELETZR=T-H At 31 December 2007 and
R=-2ENE-5-A 1 January 2008 29,954 612 - 128,351 6,059 164,976
RS A E & Credited to the income statement 5,725 12 120 - 12,635 18,492
RERRAE R Credited to equity - - - 177,686 - 177,686
BNHE Reclassification - - - - (6,059) (6,059)
“EE\EtZR=1-H At 31 December 2008 35,679 624 120 306,037 12,635 355,095
8 HE R IE A A - Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE RENRER
Accelerated ~ fTEEf Investment  REEf
B tax  Premises  properties Investment Hth &it
£@ Group Provisions depreciation  revaluation  revaluation  revaluation Others Total
“EZt5-A-A At 1 January 2007 3,495 7,985 127,171 17,311 (529) 176 155,609
REEREAT Charged to the income statement 1,038 14,116 - 24,207 - - 39,361
RERRAZ Charged to equity - - 49,111 - - - 49,111
ENPE Reclassification - - - - 529 - 529
“EELETZR=T-H At 31 December 2007 and
R=%EN¥-5-H 1 January 2008 4,533 22,101 176,282 4,518 - 176 244,610
REERAS L/ (B E) Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 29,419 (9,836) - (13,734) - 2,751 8,600
REEER(EE) /2 (Credited)/charged to equity - - (49,965) - 104 - (49,861)
BNAE Reclassification (6,059) - - - - - (6,059)
“BEN\E+ZR=1-H At 31 December 2008 27,893 12,265 126,317 27,784 104 2,927 197,290

RFB/OTEEFRDF

“TENETH
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. Deferred income tax (Continued)
The deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity during the year is

as follows:

—EENE _—ZTTLF
Group 2008 2007

R RERS 2 AP ERGE
- 17 (MI3E47)
- Al R S (I 5E47)

44, HEEAFZ Hik

EEBEXRANKEABEEEER QT ZERFHIN
T~

Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:

— premises (Note 47) 49,965 (49,111)
— available-for-sale securities (Note 47) 177,582 127,822
227,547 78,711

44. Balances with Group companies
Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances with

group companies and detailed as follows:

—BRNE  —TTLA
Group 2008 2007

B

B [E) P B R 2 A #k

Balances with the ultimate holding
company

Deposits from customers 7,095 3,436

Balances with fellow subsidiaries

ZHEEREEMIRE Advances and other accounts 7,995 7,707

BPER Deposits from customers 1,936,274 161,068

HibRB KIER Other accounts and accruals 3,539 17,034

—EENE —TTLEF

A H] Company 2008 2007
HiffT B A R 2 B Balances with a subsidiary

RITHEEH Bank balances 19,076 21,222

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited 183
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45.  Contingent liabilities and commitments

) BEA R (a) Capital commitments
HERERBANARREREHEBRER KEA Capital expenditure in respect of project and acquisition of fixed assets
FEEZEBREENT at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows:

—EENE _—ZTTLF
5 Group 2008 2007

EHEEREN A Expenditure authorised but
not contracted for 766 -

EENEREBER ZHX Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 98,821 83,904
99,587 83,904

) 5 B

REBEERBRINVEERETRPZEHT
ARSEREEERRMESBELT

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-

balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

CE k]
Contract amount
—EENE _—TTLHF
5 Group 2008 2007
HEEEERE® Direct credit substitutes 704,420 692,615
MR ZMEE 2 KAIEE Transaction related contingencies 6,898 2,521
HE S EE KRB Trade-related contingencies 364,258 883,271
AR BB M N /B TR S il A 2 AR Commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice 32,922,775 30,758,565
Hfth A Other commitments with an original
RAHR A maturity of:
- DR—%F - under 1 year 2,673,642 3,902,908
-—FE RN E -1 year and over 938,980 1,301,489
RETFR Forward forward deposits placed 73,547 640,102
37,684,520 38,181,471
EEREMESE
Credit risk
weighted amount
—EENE C"TTAEF
5 Group 2008 2007
SARBE AR Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,286,256 1,729,744

KRBT EEERA T
—ZEN\FEH
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45.  Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

Assets pledged as collateral with the HKMA and with unrelated financial

M ESREBECEE - institutions under repurchase agreements are as follows:
—EENFE _—ZTTLHE
% Group 2008 2007
FIEEERE 2 H 5 (M13123) Trading securities (Note 23) - 2,033,947
A EEFES (HE27) Available-for-sale securities (Note 27) 399,022 704,530
BEIEES (H5F28) Held-to-maturity securities (Note 28) 178,918 -

BIEEER R ERE Investments in securities included in
Rz EHZE (H5E26) the loans and receivables category

(Note 26) 57,429 -
635,369 2,738,477

(T) REMERYE

IASEEREEAA - AT BUEMERLLHEEM
MARFEAXNN Z ZEBENRATEMT :

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:

—EBENE -—TTAE
£H5 Group 2008 2007
—F R Not later than 1 year 81,619 78,290

—FUERERF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 54,256 81,463
AEMNRE Later than 5 years 24,300 -
160,175 159,753

IARKEAHEA - BHATEEMELLEEM
MARRAX N 2 ZEBRENRAEMT

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:
—EENE —ZZTLF
£HE Group 2008 2007
—F AR Not later than 1 year 17,791 19,385
—FENERERE Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 14,529 9,969
32,320 29,354
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. JBA 46. Share capital
—EENE —ZTTHEF
2008 2007
SETERA Authorised:
1,500,000,000 f% & 3@ A% 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of
SREE1TET HK$1 each 1,500,000 1,500,000
—EENF ZTTAF
2008 2007
R & (& e %N
BEITREERA Issued and fully paid: Number of Share Number of Share
L@ BREETST Ordinary shares of HK$1 each shares capital shares capital
—H—H At 1 January 931,416,279 931,416 931,416,279 931,416
BIIROHEBERZZZLSF Issue of shares in lieu of 2007
RER S final dividend 1,342,590 1,343 - -
+-A=+—8H At 31 December 932,758,869 932,759 931,416,279 931,416
BRARNT R 8 (T2 T El]) - Q Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”), 47
R FESTEIBITUAE » 471 (ZEE 4 - (2007: 47) options to subscribe for 1,750,000 shares (2007: 1,750,000

>

1) R HELAREE1,750 0001&(:%5?:& :
1,750,0000%) ERREE1B T2 AR GRG - B%

THHEEREBNRBRITHAE - BZTEIK
VEEZZEZENFE+_A=+—AHIL 5H(=F
T F - 5)) RARELAREE250,000/% (ZFE+
£ : 250,0000%) BREEVE T2 AR ARG A
R AR R

)

AENAEZERSRITHRABRE 2RBRED R
RERMEBEESHUT :

shares) of HK$1 each of the Company had been granted to certain
Directors and senior executives of the Group since the inception of the
Scheme. Up to 31 December 2008 and since the incorporation of the
Scheme, 5 (2007: 5) options to subscribe for 250,000 shares (2007:
250,000 shares) of HK$1 each of the Company lapsed due to

resignation of a grantee.

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share options

held by Directors and senior executives during the year are as follows:

RREPROEE
Number of shares

in the options

—EENE _—ZTTLF

2008 2007

—H—H At 1 January 1,500,000 1,150,000
EXFARART Granted in the year - 350,000
fEARFRKRK Lapsed in the year - -
+—-A=+—H At 31 December 1,500,000 1,500,000

KRBT EEERA T
—ZEN\FEH




(ABEE T TLF)R)

46. A (41)

FEANLEE FRRR 2 RBIHE -

BT 15 R R B A

Notes to the Financial Statements

-l

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. Share capital (Continued)

No share options were granted or lapsed during the year.

RTZA=+T—BINRETE 2 RBREFT W Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as follows:
T~
ARERRAHE
AREHE Number of shares
RFAROEE Date of grant and exercise price Number of options in the options
ZEENE CIEHE BN CIEE
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEME+-AoTRA BAEESRI6I0ET 25 November 2004, at an exercise price of HK$16.70 per share 5 5 250,000 250,000
ZEERENAZTRA  BOFESR1440ET 25 August 2005, at an exercise price of HK$14.40 per share 20 2 550,000 550,000
“EERET-RCTR BOFESRI4RET 30 December 2005, at an exercise price of HK$14.32 per share 5 5 250,000 250,000
ZEEAENACTRA  BOBESRI70ET 25 September 2006, at an exercise price of HK$17.30 per share 5 5 100,000 100,000
ZESLELATAR  RORESRITSET 19 July 2007, at an exercise price of HK$17.84 per share 7 7 350,000 350,000
42 42 1,500,000 1,500,000
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47. fEfE 47. Reserves
-k
TEERRE REZGRE (& ()
ROBE  GERE  Premises  Investment  EXRE General  REER
Share Consolidation  Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange Reserve Retained ait
£E Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note (i)) Earnings Total
“EEtE-f-A At 1 January 2007 2,209,149 (220,986) 509,356 3,128 (119) 700,254 5,184,043 8,384,825
—Mﬁu”i’% ﬁﬁ&ﬂ?iﬁ Fair value gains/(losses)
LATENG/ (B8 on available-for-sale
securities and
revaluation of premises - - 399,842 (1,695,133 - - - (1,295291)
RABHERRTRLES Investment revaluation reserve
MEMEBENEE transferred to income statement
upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - - 1,087,742 - - - 1,087,742
HETHLERS Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - - (85,141) - - - (85,141)
NEERATHLERS Deferred income tax liabilties
ATEEERIE (recognised)released
i (:2) /B 2 B on premises revaluation and
I RTR) fair value losses on and disposal
of available-for-sale securities
(Note 43) - - (49,11) 127,822 - - - 78,711
RERLENERER Reserve realised on disposal
of premises - - (76,857) - - - 76,857 -
ROENEMEH Revaluation reserve transferred to
EREBZRARN retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (14,444) - - - 14,444 -
BEENHEL N BRR Exchange difference arising on
MELZE translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - - 28,986 - - 26,986
Profit for the year - - - - - - 800,169 800,169
- g 2006 final dividend - - - - - - Memn) (19130
:foﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁxﬁ 2007 interim dividend - - - - - - (232,854 (232,854)
“EEtE+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2007 2,209,149 (220,986) 768,786 (611,582) 28,867 700,254 5,423,522 8,298,010
“EENF-A-A At 1 January 2008 2,209,149 (220,986) 768,786 (611,582) 28,867 700,254 5,423,522 8,298,010
TREEESRAEER Fair value losses on
LOTEES avallable-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises - - (106,874)  (1,396,982) - - - (1,503,856)
RABHERRTRLES Investment revaluation reserve
MEMEBZNEE transferred to income statement
upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - - 297,618 - - - 297,618
HETHLERS Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - - (18,490) - - - (18,490)
hE‘i: ERREEREE Deferred income tax asset
2YMEDLET recognised/liabilites released
HEAE/ R ER on movements in premises
HERR (M) revaluation reserve and
investment revaluation reserve
(Note 43) - - 49,965 177,582 - - - 221,541
RERHENERER Reserve realised on disposal
of premises - - (4,852) - - - 4,852 -
ROENEMEH Revaluation reserve transferred to
EREBZRARN retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (12,491) - - - 12,491 -
BEENHEL N BRR Exchange difference arising on
MELZE translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - - 39,293 - - 39,293
EHURR B2l Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to
LA D0 sorip dividend arrangement 19,306 - - - - - - 19,306
FHBEORAER Payment of share issue expenses (19) - - - - - - (19)
EEgT Proft for the year - - - - - - 188,642 188,642
ZESHERERE 2007 final dividend - - - - - - (139712)  (139,712)
“E5/\5RERE 2008 nterim dividend - - - - - - (6780 (167,897)
“EENEtTZRA=1-H At 31 December 2008 2,228,436 (220,986) 694,534 (1,551,854) 68,160 700,254 5,321,898 7,240,442

RFB/OTEEFRDF

“TENETH
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47. fEfE &0 47. Reserves (Continued)
EEE Note:
(i) AEBZEBMBRITLAT  KFRITREHER (i) The Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS, are
7 AREEBRTEKRIAEEREERENZ required to maintain regulatory reserve to satisfy the provisions of the
BE EREEREB RZTZTN\F+ZA=+ Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes. At
—H - RIRITLEHRITES R AEEA R 31 December 2008, each of DSB and MEVAS has earmarked a regulatory
B R R B TR HEE 472,301,000 T (ZTF reserve of HK$472,301,000 (2007: HK$734,327,000) and HK$12,714,000
+ 4 : 734,327,000/ 7T) % 12,714,0007% 7T (— (2007: HK$16,798,000) in the consolidated general reserve and retained
T F 1 16,798,0008 L) 2 SEAIEREE profits respectively. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly
- BERBZENERERHERR WA through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.
HELSEREITHN
R EE REEF
Share Retained &ast
A H] Company Premium Earnings Total
—EE+F—A—H At 1 January 2007 2,209,149 61,880 2,271,029
FZ % F Profit for the year - 681,620 681,620
TEEREFERARE 2006 final dividend - (419,137) (419,137)
—ETLFHHRE 2007 interim dividend - (232,854) (232,854)
—EE+F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 2,209,149 91,509 2,300,658
—EZEN\F—-A—H: Wk At 1 January 2008, as above 2,209,149 91,509 2,300,658
BIROBR_ZZLF Issue of shares in lieu of 2007
REARR B final dividend 19,287 - 19,287
FE A Profit for the year - 338,698 338,698
—EELFRPRE 2007 final dividend - (139,712) (139,712)
ZEENFFHRE 2008 interim dividend - (167,897) (167,897)
—EEN\FE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2008 2,228,436 122,598 2,351,034

BREREQAGPIETIBIGE - ARRINR_F
ZNFE+_A=Z+-RBZAHERERER
122,598,000/ 7T (= F T L4 : 91,509,000/8
L) °

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2008, calculated

under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$122,598,000 (2007: HK$91,509,000).
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48. FEABLAe TR R4S R AR W EE 48. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements
(F) BTHRERBETETEERRNEIERN 2 EE (@)  Reconciliation of operating profit before gains or losses on certain
A B R ENIR @R A FRBEERR investments and fixed assets to net cash flows from operating
activities
—EENE —“ZTALF
2008 2007
ATIREREEEEWGRNEER 2 & &R Operating profit before gains or losses
on certain investments and fixed assets 800,483 1,509,558
FFBUA Net interest income (2,207,586)  (2,067,833)
& B Uz Dividend income (5,894) (10,294)
EXRBRZBEEE Impairment losses on loans and advances 658,535 180,795
EFCREEE AR ERE Unwind of discount on loan impairment (6,326) (5,507)
e Depreciation 95,492 84,882
WA E 2 Amortisation of intangible assets 19,036 22,752
BB B s 2 BRI R 58 Advances written off net of recoveries (162,211) (170,828)
M EWA Interest received 4,839,371 5,525,145
FEZ W Interest paid (1,670,025)  (2,885,626)
ESRL PN Dividend received 5,894 10,294
CEEERBEEHN I EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,366,769 2,193,338
LEEERBEZE Changes in operating assets and liabilities
BIEEERASRNESRZEE Change in trading securities (359,370) 512,751
PTEEMIT A& Change in derivative financial instruments 988,467 261,787
TEEL‘AQ$@§+§Eﬁ”‘3@U FFAEE® Change in financial assets designated
TRMEEZED at fair value through profit or loss 786,408 (75,027)
ﬁ}f'“ W22 E Change in advances to customers 295,558  (10,691,339)
RITERZEE Change in advances to banks (18,800) (5,323)
Eﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ BZz2% Change in other accounts 1,835,612 (2,759,623)
BIEEER M E HQ?AIE%’E,E hill Change in investments in securities
IREREZE included in the loans and
receivables category (377,163) -
AR EF A2 ED Change in available-for-sale securities 2,069,093 1,652,384
REINHELF 22 Change in held-to-maturity securities (786,684) 191,321
JEWHREGIEEER 2 # Change in loans receivable from
a jointly controlled entity 9,553 (16,124)
RITHER & Change in deposits from banks (208,074) 541,571
HIEEERBRNEBEZEE Change in trading liabilities (897,650) (3,837,164)
X}ETUAZ“"“"EJJ Change in deposits from customers 5,949,586 12,055,803
BELNAFEFEEAE Change in deposits from customers
n‘l‘)\j‘% SRR EH designated at fair value through
profit or loss (2,671,423) (250,560)
HEMEEA RTERRZEF) Change in other accounts and accruals  (2,074,348) 2,756,798
P H AR Exchange adjustments (400,800) (18,877)
REEESRANRS Cash generated from operating activities 6,506,734 2,511,716
XNEBTREEBREBESZHE Interest paid on subordinated notes and
debt securities issued (383,663) (383,382)
SNEBITHNEREZHNE Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (306,022) (397,327)
EHEBNER Hong Kong profits tax paid (54,812) (139,531)
E#EIINTR Overseas tax paid (28,578) (16,592)
LEFRERARSFRE Net cash from operating activities 5,733,659 1,574,884
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48. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

(Continued)

(b)  For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash

equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three

months’ maturity from the date of acquisition.

—EENE —ZTTLF

5 Group 2008 2007

BRe MEIRITHEAS Cash and balances with banks 12,665,167 10,025,003
FERIT—E+ZE B AF B FR Placements with banks maturing

between one and twelve months 1,656,950 1,919,342

FHIEEERBNES Trading securities 913,421 1,678,636

15,235,538 13,622,981

49. HHENEBEK

MIRE AT EHIE 1618 - ERTERARZ
HEHBENT -

49. Loans to officers

Particulars of loans made to officers and disclosed pursuant to section

161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

TZA=t+—H#&#H% FRAERESHER
Balance outstanding Maximum balance
at 31 December during the year
ZEENF —TTLF ZBENFE _—TITLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
e RN SR BT Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 58,048 65,634 65,860 94,216
BiRAER AR Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees 8,149 149 8,149 149
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50. AREANLZARS

BREALRZFALAERNERXHEELRFS
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Related-party transactions

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control

or common significant influence.

During 2008 and 2007, the Group entered into various transactions with
related parties including the ultimate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries of the Group, companies directly or indirectly controlled or
significantly influenced by the shareholders or directors of the ultimate
holding company. These, as described in Note (a)(l) below and being
continuing connected transactions, had been reviewed by the
Company’s independent non-executive directors in their review of the
financial statements of the Group. Based on their review and enquiry
with management, the Company’s independent non-executive directors
were satisfied that all of the continuing connected transactions were
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with relevant
agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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50. HEHEANLZRZS @)
RAEBBALTZEAZSNT

50. Related-party transactions (Continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

Transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow

(FF) B o5 2 422 M 2 W) D [ 2R Y Do A ) ) 22 (a)
5

subsidiaries

(  AKSH 0]

Income and expenses

ARFREBEEZEWBATRERHEHEE The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group

ERARRFAZRMBAREI 25 ERE
R (EELEBMER BB AFFES
EMRAN(T EMARAE14A148) I EI &
EETHZWARSH - 2EX5H 2 #8E
REBBRE ™R B E 14A.352)% &
14A36(1)ER - AR AEEBZFEE LR -

received and incurred the following income and expense from
the continuing connected transactions (within the definition of
Rule 14A.14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”))
entered into with the ultimate holding company and fellow

subsidiaries during the year. The aggregate values of these

transactions are within the respective annual caps applicable to
the Group pursuant to Rules 14A.35(2) and 14A.36(1) of the

Listing Rules.
o REW EMBARREAERT & . Income or expense arising from transactions involving
BRERTT « JRPIPgRTT - RFEIRE subsidiaries, namely DSB, MEVAS, BCM and Vanishing

BRAR ([HE]) FEKLIER AR
RRAZMBARR S 2 WA R HZ
FELRRE -

Border Investment Services Limited (“VB”), with the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries subject to annual

caps:

—EENE _—ZTTLF

£ Group 2008 2007
B A FLE GE) Interest paid (Note (i) (35,580) (23,928)
BUERITFEE (51() Bank charges received (Note (i)) 6,884 5,228
EWHEREBAEEEE MY Rentals and related building management

(& (i) fee and charges received (Note (ii)) 11,166 11,210
EfHeREEREERSE Rentals and related building management

KB 2 (R (i) fee and charges paid (Note (jii) (4,522) -
EWEEE (51 (v) Management fees received (Note (iv)) 18,254 18,159
EWREBRAS GEV) Insurance commission received (Note (v)) 27,135 33,656
B R R E (FE(vi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi) (10,258) (9,502)

193
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50.

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

0

Note:
(i)

(i)

Income and expenses (Continued)

Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of
deposit taking and other standard banking services to the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

Interest was paid by three banking subsidiaries, namely DSB,
MEVAS and BCM, on deposits received from the fellow
subsidiaries. The balances of deposits outstanding as at the end
of the year are set out in Note 44 above.

Bank charges were levied by DSB, MEVAS and BCM on the
provision of standard banking services covering cheque clearing,
investment dealing services, etc. on normal commercial terms. In
addition, merchant fees were charged at market rates to Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”, a fellow subsidiary) on
settlement of insurance premiums by its customers using credit
cards issued by DSB, MEVAS and BCM. These banking
arrangements are for an indefinite term and can be terminated in
accordance with market practice.

Lease and sub-lease of properties to fellow subsidiaries

DSB, BCM and another subsidiary, VB, have leased and sub-leased
certain of their owned and rented properties to DSLA and three
other fellow subsidiaries, Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited
(“DSIS”), Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”) and Macau
Insurance Company Limited (“MIC”) as their office premises. DSB,
BCM and VB received from DSLA, DSIS, DSIA and MIC the lease
rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management
charges and other utilities charges based on the actual amount of
costs incurred. These leases which had expired in 2008 have been
renewed for a two-year period effective from 1 January 2009.
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50.

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

0

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Lease and sub-lease of properties from fellow subsidiaries

DSLA has leased a portion of its owned property to DSB as its
branch office for a term of three years effective from 28 December
2007.

Provision of computer and administrative services to the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries

On 28 December 2006, DSB (and its subsidiaries including BCM)
entered into a new computer and administrative services
agreement with the ultimate holding company for a fixed term of
two years with effect from 1 January 2007. Pursuant to the service
agreement, DSB is to provide to the latter and certain of the fellow
subsidiaries including DSLA, DSIS, DSIA, Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited (“DSI”), MIC and Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited (“MLIC”) management support services including retail
branch and marketing support, computer services, operations
support, autopay services, treasury services, risk management
support and other administrative services. The fee is determined
at the end of the year by reference to the estimated actual cost of
providing the services.

On 30 December 2008, DSB entered into a new Computer and
Administrative Services Agreement with the ultimate holding
company for a fixed term of two years with effect from 1 January
2009.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Annual Report 2008

N\

195



B 15 R R B ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

(ABEE T TLF)R)

50. HEHEANLZRZS @)

(FF) B o 4 2 Tt 2 W) o [l 2% A D 2 ) 1) 22
5 (#0)

(  WAKRSH (&)

C-))
v) DERRER®

REFTIREE BRI B AT IR B (R BR B K BT ERTT
REYRRTEEE D HEREERIER
& A RPIRR RORPI AT ERPI R 3
ﬁ?ﬂﬂ“%&ﬁﬁﬁ@%%'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
TOITREEERD AT R —RIRRE
oo MR - RFTERAT - BRARITRORPIES
%ﬁﬁf*&ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁo%%m
ZETREHFITUYR =TT N\FERZH
CERZEENFTZA=THER -
ﬁ%ﬁi*%:?%ﬂi*ﬂfaﬁi
e
(viy  KRHTATE - K¥RR - BRPURM OBPIA
FAREZRBRE

AMASRBEEESRRERS (HREE
BRERKHEBTREARTEL ZEAE
A EAREERERBER) MAFRT
LRRITIRERBIRE - REURIEHRE
B2 MAEREHRIE - REAERRTE
IR E - KITASNTARBESETER
BERARFRITMERARITRE 2 &Kk
SEEERRR c BAMABZBR TS AF
BN =TT N\FERZRE  BERZ
TENF+ZA=+RHEH  BEMF -
H-ZTENF—A—BRBER - KFAF
FRFIANSERAKREETI ZRETET
FEH -E_TT)\F AEEZHFFTK
MAFRIBPIAFZIRE S 45,273,000
BT (ZEZ+HF 1 5,147,000 7T) ©

KETIRER BOR PRI A K FTER1T R ERTT 5
lE@ﬁa@ﬂZ%%*&uﬁ# ﬁﬁ
ARBGRERE  REGERERE
Fiﬁ~“%§&»iﬁ~a%aﬁ~ﬁ
BEEREBEAZIN - RETIAFRE
FORPURBIZH — M E BB EERMA S
B WEGFESR  EZTTN\F
REBZNTFRIFRBRIRPIRB 2 RE
/5,111,000 ¢ (Z T T £ F
4,355,000 7T) °

() 2 FEIEAE R

NEIEEHREN AW E44 -

196 AHRFTEMERALT
—EEN\FFTR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50.

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

0

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(1

Distribution and Agency Agreements

DSIS and DSIA have entered into distribution agreements and
agency agreements with each of DSB and MEVAS, and MIC and
MLIC have entered into distribution agreement and agency
agreements with BCM, for the marketing and distribution of life
and general insurance products through their network of bank
branches. DSB, MEVAS and BCM are entitled to receive
commissions calculated on normal commercial terms. The
agreements entered into in 2006 and expired in 2008 have been
renewed on 30 December 2008 for a fixed term of two years
commencing 1 January 2009.

Insurance services provided by DSLA, DSI, MIC and MLIC

Under the Credit Life Insurance Policy Agreements which cover
personal loans, credit card lending and mortgage loans extended
by DSB and MEVAS, DSLA provides insurance cover to DSB and
MEVAS in return for a premium which is calculated based on the
outstanding balances of the relevant loans on normal commercial
terms. DSLA also underwrites insurance policies to cover the death
and/or critical illnesses of certain loan customers and staff of DSB
and MEVAS. Policies entered into with DSLA in 2006 and expired
in 2008 have been renewed on 30 December 2008 for a fixed term
of two years commencing 1 January 2009. Both DSLA and MLIC
underwrite insurance policies to cover staff of the Group and are
subject to renewal annually. Premiums paid by the Group to DSLA
and MLIC in 2008 totalled HK$5,273,000 (2007: HK$5,147,000).

DSI and MIC underwrite general insurance policies in the name,
and for the benefit, of DSB and other companies of the Group
including policies covering domestic motor, property all risks,
public liability, money, electronic equipment, employees’
compensation and group personal accident. The policies are
subject to renewal annually. The policies are provided to the Group
on DSl and MIC’s normal, written commercial terms. Premiums paid
by the Group in 2008 totalled HK$5,111,000 (2007: HK$4,355,000).

Inter-company balances

Inter-company balances are shown under Note 44.
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50. Related-party transactions (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key

management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their spouses and

companies which the key management personnel have significant

Bz EBRIT influence. For the year ended 31 December, the following
balances were outstanding:

—EENE —ZTALF

£ Group 2008 2007

ERRBR Loans and advances 50,278 60,644

TR Deposits 425,031 505,137

ER Guarantees 149 149
FREREBRZ E=BE Maximum aggregate amount of loans

and advances during the year 55,118 61,132

(i) TEEEASHE

ARBEBEBABEWITES - LR
BRELZIAKEI2

51. DUt 7 5 6% e it 8

REEBBARRAZ RBAEE ([KIRITEE

R REZEBRARAHEREBERIFZR
Bereat 8l (TR RET 81 IR IEAR D BERE
B TEHEERSRITHRAR - ERES Z AR
0 RER RN Z AE 25 NHIEE12 -

() R SR AT 45 1 it 1

ARRERTHEREMBARETEZEREERR
o BRGEFIAFARTAREMBRREZER
PETERRAEERHREREINBBRENREE
B ABROEHETRND - RABITERERL
REeXMNEPRRITER T 2 RBIHE -

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive

directors and their remunerations are included under Note 12.

51. Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation through the Company’s Share Option
Scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of the
holding company, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “DSFH
Scheme”), is available to Directors and senior executives of the Group.
Details of the share-based compensation paid to directors are disclosed
in Note 12.

(a) DSBG Scheme

The Company issues to certain directors and employees of its
subsidiaries share options on terms that allow the Company or its
subsidiaries to make cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic
value of each share option, to the directors or employees at the date of
exercise instead of allotting newly issued shares. The Company has
the intention to adopt this cash settlement practice in respect of the

existing share options issued.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. Share-based compensation plans (Continued)
(a) DSBG Scheme (Continued)

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Scheme. The exercise prices of the options granted
was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”) prevailing in force, being the higher of the
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date
of grant, or the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The exercise
period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries from the

date of grant.

(b) DSFH Scheme

DSFH issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries share
options on terms that allow DSFH or its subsidiaries to make cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share option
of each share option, to the directors or employees at the date of
exercise instead of allotting newly issued shares. DSFH has adopted
the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this practice in

respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance to the terms and
conditions of the new Share Option Scheme established by the
shareholders of DSFH on 28 April 2005. The exercise prices of the
options granted was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK prevailing in
force, being the higher of the closing price of DSFH’s shares traded on
the SEHK on the date of grant, or the average closing price of DSFH’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.

The Group has recorded liabilities of HK$3,998,000 (2007:
HK$46,538,000) in respect of the fair value of the share options. Such
fair value is determined by using the Trinomial Pricing Model using the
major assumptions set out in the following table. The Group recorded a
reversal of expenses for the share options of HK$42,540,000 in 2008
(2007: total expense of HK$19,645,000). The total intrinsic value of the
share options for which the grantee’s right to receive cash had vested
as of 31 December 2008 is nil (2007: HK$20,714,000).
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51.

Share-based compensation plans (Continued)

-l

The inputs into the Trinomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

FHRTERHE
DSBG Scheme
“EENE CE5tE
2008 2007
CERtE CETtE IS CEERE CESRE CEERE CISHE CERHE CERSE CEERE CERRE EAmE
tBtARE  tAtAR AB=TER fZAZtR NA=TER+-A=tER  +tATAR tATAR ARZtEA +ZA=FR NAZHRR T-A-fEA
19 dul 19ul 25 Sep 30 Dec 25 Aug 25 Nov 19l 190l 25 Sep 30 Dec 25Aug 25 Nov
R¥A Grant date 2007 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2007 2007 2006 2005 2006 2004
KRaRTZA Share price of the
=t-f Company as at
LRE(#T) 31 December
(HKS) 5.57 5.57 551 551 5.57 5.57 1810 1810 1810 1810 18.10 18.10
kR (A7) Evercise price (HKS) 1784 1784 13 143 1440 1670 1784 1784 173 143 1440 1670
B ) Expected volatity
(Note (i) 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 21.9% 21.9% 21.9% 21.9% 21.9% 21.9%
E5(F) Time to maturty (years) <2 <5 <4 <3 <3 <2 <3 <6 <5 <4 <4 <3
SERAE () Risk freg rate (Note (i) 0.43% 1.12% 0.96% 0.79% 0.71% 0.53% 211% 3.15% 3.06% 2.94% 2.89% 2.78%
iR 8% (i) Expected dividend rate
(Note i) 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 387% 387% 387% 387% 387% 387%
KEF&metal
DSFH Scheme
—EENF —EELF
2008 2007
g} o : 3 —ZETEHF —ETtHF —ETRF
AAZ+NH NA=+EB AAZ+NAB NAZ+HAH
®¥H Grant date 28 Sep 2007 25 Aug 2005 28 Sep 2007 25 Aug 2005
AFerR+=A Share price of DSFH
=+—H as at 31 December
2 &E (BT) (HK$) 19.88 19.88 77.10 77.10
IEE (BT) Exercise price (HK$) 61.93 51.71 61.93 51.71
FEEHK R G () Expected volatility (Note (i)) 62.4% 62.4% 30.3% 30.3%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <5 <3 <6 <4
[ B 1) 2 (5 i) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 1.16% 0.71% 3.17% 2.89%
FEEHAR B & (R (iii) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 7.19% 7.19% 3.05% 3.05%

i

()  TEEREEIERERNFE A ZABE —FaRE
MatE - WRFRBE AR RITERE DR
BRI - B ER AR 2 FHIRN 2 AR

B WEEBRANER -

(i) S|ERINEAEBFHZEEINEESTEZK

S o

E\

(i)

BEHIR S R BEREME]

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of

the share price during the one year period immediately preceding the

measurement date and is based on the assumption that there is no

material difference between the expected volatility over the time to

maturity of the options and the historical volatility of the shares in DSBG

and DSFH set out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant

time to maturity.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.
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51. Share-based compensation plans (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

AHBTEBE S RE SR
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
ZBENE —ET+E ZBENE —ZTtF
2008 2007 2008 2007
BEFTEE BRYAURE BEFTEE BRYARE

AFRTER METLY AHRTEE METH Sk mETH Nk METH

AR &8 ARES 1B AR &8 ARES 1B

RG#E (B7) nE ] (A7) kG #E (B7) nE ] (A7)

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted ~ Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

DSBG shares average DSBG shares average DSFH shares average DSFH shares average

in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise

options price options price options price options price

granted (HK$) granted (HKS) granted (HK$) granted (HKS)

-A-H At 1 January 1,500,000 15.77 1,150,000 15.13 2,100,000 52.68 1,900,000 51.71

B Granted - - 350,000 17.84 - - 200,000 61.93

BEE/KE Cancelled/Forfeited - - - - - - - -

REG Exercised - - - - - - - -

Bk Expired - - - - - - - -

+ZA=1-H At 31 December 1,500,000 15.77 1,500,000 15.77 2,100,000 52.68 2,100,000 52.68
+-A=1t-8 Exercisable at

e 31 December 820,000 15.51 490,000 15.21 1,180,000 52.06 760,000 51.71

ARFRZZBZNFEFT_A=+—HBRITEZR The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2008

h%ZwﬁEﬁ?mw%ﬁimm%ﬁt%%
+F  ITEENT14.328 0217848 m) - KE
INEFARBENTERA2.90F (Z2T+F -
3.90%F) - AN _ZEZENF+_HA=+—H
RITEZ RBREZITEREN F51.7157LE61.93
BT (ZEELF : NTS51.71E L E61.93%5
T0)  RENMBEFEESBENITERR2.85F (=
TET+HF : 3.855F) ©

EFATERBRERTFTARASRITHRAE (=
TELF - GETEE —RRREZ INETS
NFERI.60ETT) o BRFERIEAF &/ AR
EERFARABRITBRAB (ZZZLF : 5@

AT HE B — AR T SRRRAE 2 INAE 39 A 1B R25.0578
JT) °
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NIZEZAF=ZA-+HAB  AQFRBEAHE

772 E #181,000,000,0007% 7T 2 10,000, oooﬂx%ﬁ
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have a range of exercise price from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84 (2007: in
the range of exercise price from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84), and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.90 years (2007: 3.90
years). DSFH’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2008 have
a range of exercise price from HK$51.71 to HK$61.93 (2007: in the
range of exercise price from HK$51.71 to HK$61.93), and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.85 years (2007: 3.85 years).

No share options were granted to senior executives of the Company
during the year (2007: a weighted average fair value of HK$3.60 per
new share option to purchase a share). No DSFH’s share options were
granted to senior executives of the Company during the year (2007: a
weighted average fair value of HK$25.05 per new share option to

purchase a share).
52. Event after the balance sheet date

On 25 March 2009, the Company subscribed an additional 10 million
ordinary shares in DSB at the a nominal value of HK$1 billion funded by
a loan of the same amount extended from the ultimate holding
company, DSFH, on normal commercial terms. On the same day, DSB,
after receiving approval from the HKMA, repaid in full its US$52,000,000
perpetual subordinated note originally issued on 29 December 2008,
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of DSFH.
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Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. Capital adequacy ratio

The table below summarises the ratios and the composition of
regulatory capital of the Group. The individual entities within the Group
and the Group complied with all of the externally imposed capital
requirements by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”).

—BENE  —TTLF

+=A +=ZA
=+—-A =+t—H
As at As at
31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007

BEARF R E Capital adequacy ratio
-1z - Core 6.8% 9.1%
- - Overall 13.6% 15.5%

ERFZREXRTIARFRITER LA ([KFIR
71) BPFIEERTAERAF (DEFIHER
71) ~ KEERTT (R ED) AR AR ([RFTERTT (F
Bl) ) « @RRIRITER AR ([Z/FRTT]) RD.AH.
Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited
([DAHCI) 2EZ (R17% (B 7AR) RAD B ZE /R 2
RINERE ST ER S 0Tt % - ZEARFT R X H5T
HEERITMSARMZEERR -

RIBEBRITEME  EXAEEFEEMZHE
RITARABTEAR R RKEER - BRFIE
FIRTTAB T B BRFIIRITRET HRE A
RIT (PR BETHRTBRIRITREETNRE
AEBE LR RFAERIHZE o

The capital adequacy ratio represents the combined ratio of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”), Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), MEVAS Bank Limited
(“MEVAS”) and D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited
(“DAHCI”) computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking
(Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account market
risk and operational risk.

Only the Hong Kong incorporated banking subsidiaries within the Group
are subject to the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
regulations and DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

The above ratios of the Group are calculated for reference only.
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. BEARFRELE @) 1.

R ERNER R AEE LR E—TTN\F
TZA=+—BEARBLENDTAT -

Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)

The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2008 is analysed as follows:

—EENE —TTLEF
+=A +=ZA
=+-—HA =+—H
As at As at
31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
2B R Core capital
20 2 B SR Y 3 AR IR R Paid up ordinary share capital 2,707,749 2,707,749
&1 & (B Share premium 55,519 55,519
Bk Reserves 3,808,200 4,996,578
B e Less: goodwill (811,690) (318,667)
W HtEEEE Less: other intangible assets (126,875) (6,838)
W RIEERIBEE Less: net deferred tax assets (4,150) (641)
5,628,753 7,433,700
B EIRIBEESE A N 2A T Less: 50% of total amount of
deductible items (454,040) (1,331,367)
& AR Core capital 5,174,713 6,102,333
Bt hn & A Supplementary capital
HETWEMEBESEHNFE Reserves on revaluation of holding
of land and building 197,762 238,402
ARt AZRBEEE ZHGEREEERR Eligible amount of collective
BB R mEE impairment allowances for impaired
assets and regulatory reserve 783,661 848,438
AHEEESNEMHER Revaluation reserve for
available-for-sale investments 237 (552,435)
EHIRREBGR Perpetual subordinated debt 1,953,000 1,643,879
HH®RERRA Term subordinated debt 2,814,377 3,461,825
B hnE A 4258 Total Supplementary capital 5,749,037 5,640,109
A EF A Z B & AN 2058 Eligible amount of
Supplementary capital 5,628,753 5,640,109
W EIRIBEEAE A 2A T Less: 50% of total amount of
deductible items (454,040) (1,331,368)
LIRIIEEN Supplementary capital 5,174,713 4,308,741
B ARENE A EE Total capital base 10,349,426 10,411,074

202 AHBFTEEERAF
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Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1.  Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)

The above ratios as at 31 December 2008 are computed taking into
account HKMA clarification, issued subsequent to 31 December 2008,
that unrealised losses on available-for-sale securities should be
deducted from core capital for the purpose of determining capital

adequacy.

In response to such a clarification from the HKMA, the Company,
supported by Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, has resolved and
taken actions to subscribe a total of HK$1 billion new equity issued by
DSB on 25 March 2009, and as result of this capital increase action,
DSB’s core capital has been increased by the same amount on 25
March 2009.

If this injection of HK$1 billion new equity capital to DSB were to be
considered as having taken effect as at 31 December 2008, the
proforma combined capital base and combined capital adequacy ratio
of the Group’s banking subsidiaries, would increase to the following

levels as at 31 December 2008:

—BBNFE+=A=+-8

FERT HK$°000 As at 31 Dec 2008
(E=)

(Proforma)

ZOE AR Core Capital 6,174,713
BERER Total Capital 11,566,710
RLERT R E Core Capital Ratio 8.1%
WENRT L& Total Capital Ratio 15.2%

2. WEESHER

2. Liquidity ratios

—EENE —ZTTLF
2008 2007

MEBE T E

MBESLERAEENBRITATNRAEFA
T EABEEANFARBDES L ENBHEYF
B - ZRBE S L ERBERITEMPIE DM
RAMIDEE -

RIBIRITRIGD - EAKE AR 2 M BRTT
REAABTRDESH RREEF - AEH Lt
M ERAERHSE -

Liquidity ratio 48.9% 52.4%

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average liquidity ratio of the Group’s banking subsidiaries for
the twelve months of the financial year. The liquidity ratio is computed
with reference to the methods set out in the Fourth Schedule of the

Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Only the locally incorporated banking subsidiaries within the Group are
subject to the minimum liquidity ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. The above ratios of the Group are calculated for
reference only.
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. I B 3. Currency concentrations
FH A # T Equivalent in HK$ millions
THRAREE-_ZZ NF+_A=+—Hz=E The following sets out the Group’s net foreign exchange position in
TLAE BE A& 2 INEFEE (B2 IMNEF R USD and other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of
BB FT A INEFE10%) - REAREZ LEREH the total net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2008
B o and the corresponding comparative balances.

E ARY B
—EENF+=ZA=+—H At 31 Dec 2008 usD CNY MOP
BEEE Spot assets 32,558 2,156 2,895
REBE Spot liabilities (28,104) (2,208) (4,526)
EHEA Forward purchases 30,681 107 1
mHEIE N Forward sales (32,991) (111) -
HitE s B R Net options position (1,063) 2 -
R/ 8T Net long/(short) position 1,081 (58) (1,630)
EHBRRIFE Net structural position - 114 -

E AR pedkecs
ZE2ZtF+=ZA=1+—H At 31 Dec 2007 usD CNY MOP
REEE Spot assets 30,404 1,031 3,038
REAR Spot liabilities (26,030) (1,045) (4,317)
REBEA Forward purchases 34,672 638 -
REIEN Forward sales (38,417) (548) -
&/ (8) B FHE Net long/(short) position 629 76 (1,279)
EBMER TR Net structural position - 107 -
SR FEEARREENEERRESE The net options position is calculated using the delta equivalent
FE o ABMBERIEREAEREBIN T approach. The net structural position includes the structural position of
MR - the Group’s overseas branches.
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Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. Loans and advances to customers

(a)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

#r) covered by collateral
—ZEEN\E+=Z/A=1+—H —EEHETA=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2008 As at 31 Dec 2007
RBE EReE
ZEARRE TERmRE
ZEA ZADL
% of gross % of gross
REEBELR advances  REEHH advances
Outstanding covered  Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
EREFRNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IHER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEERE - Property development 448,282 83.6 389,293 95.6
-MERE - Property investment 10,102,405 92.4 9,523,416 85.7
-t - Financial concerns 373,243 91.4 528,728 475
-REEL - Stockbrokers 9,707 53.4 55,432 59.8
-RBERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 1,187,833 87.3 1,204,904 78.2
-BlER - Manufacturing 885,724 78.3 1,277,385 69.4
- B RBERHHRE - Transport and transport
equipment 4,241,249 93.5 3,755,326 93.1
-BEED - Recreational activities 23,507 25.7 58,083 -
- BB - Information technology 418 - 2,214 27.4
- Hfh - Others 2,140,815 88.7 1,671,503 80.2
19,413,183 90.9 18,466,284 83.9
(EPN Individuals
-BEIREEHEEE] - - Loans for the purchase of
[FAAZEEEE] R flats in Home Ownership
[HEBHEFEIET Scheme, Private Sector
BER Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,625,129 99.9 1,776,573 100.0
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,715,925 99.7 11,330,250 99.6
-EARER — Credit card advances 3,371,802 - 3,311,174 -
- Hith - Others 6,513,226 58.5 6,195,711 52.8
22,226,082 72.5 22,613,708 72.2
EREAFRANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 41,639,265 81.1 41,079,992 77.5
BHRME Trade finance 4,457,618 64.0 5,393,581 54.0
BB IME AR ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 14,902,190 822 14,821,058 78.7
60,999,073 80.1 61,294,631 75.7
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

covered by collateral (Continued)

B i SR EP &K
¥ HEEREERE - B8 E 5 M E R AR
BRMENETREERENT

HBE10%3 A ERTT

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting

10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the

attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, and individually

and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances are as follows:

BEXREE
WEREER
HBB=@A 18 Bl R AT
Gross WEEE HEEE
advances Individually  Collectively
REEBEH HWEER  overdue for as d assessed
Outstanding Impaired over3 impairment impairment
—EENF+-RA=1+—H As at 31 Dec 2008 balance loans months  allowances  allowances
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IHER Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MERE - Property investment 10,102,405 14,785 - 5,429 17,862
(EUN Individuals
-BEHEMAEEMEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 10,715,925 1,111 1,839 407 3,211
BEREE
R EE
BB=@A 18 Bl 7 mET
Gross HEEE AEERE
advances Individually  Collectively
REEBELR HWMEER  overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over 3 impairment impairment
“EE+E+-A=1t—H As at 31 Dec 2007 balance loans months  allowances  allowances
EEEFRANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEeR Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MERE - Property investment 9,523,416 1,540 1,550 741 15,957
A Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 11,330,250 2,071 6,301 997 4,553

206 AFBFTEEERAF
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

covered by collateral (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year were

disclosed in the tables below.

BEEREE
REFEEBEER HMHEZEXN
HMi845% Recoveries of
Loans advances
HiREE written  written off in
New off as previous
—EENE 2008 allowances uncollectible years
EEAEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 5,205 542 -
A Individuals
-BEEMAEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 133 921 957
5,338 1,463 957
BEEREE
HBERE KEEEBEER HMEZER
(EHEEE) M 255 Recoveries of
New Loans advances
allowances/ written  written off in
(Allowances off as previous
g} o : 3 2007 written back) uncollectible years
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TSR Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 8 2,067 -
A Individuals
-BEEMAEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties (5,477) 2,294 918
(5,469) 4,361 918
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(BT T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
4. FKPER LB @) 4.  Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(&) E K B IERAT R P AR E (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures

2B \F+=A=1-8
As at 31 Dec 2008

1 51 FE 44
EERER EBEREX BEEE
WY EREE ShHEREE Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet MEXEE  impairment
REHFER Type of counterparties exposure  exposure Total allowances
o B R BE S Mainland entities 2,484,332 - 2,484,332 -
R B K BE ASNA B K Companies and individuals
A - mF REER outside Mainland where the
FHR B K B {5 AR credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 8,184,005 420,865 8,604,870 314,368
H 32 5% F w2 = g Other counterparties the
WRTE RBBERIERTT exposures to whom are
BEEPRK considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 50,138 - 50,138 -
—EZ+H+=-A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2007
& 51 FE &
EEREER EEHEX REEE
A EREE NI BREE Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet #Er%  impairment
REHFER Type of counterparties exposure  exposure Total allowances
Hh K B R Mainland entities 1,921,468 - 1,921,468 -
5 BOK B LASNA B K Companies and individuals
EA - mFREE R outside Mainland where the
AR B K B {5 credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 9,918,810 599,287 10,518,097 92,503
Hth3z 5% FmARR Other counterparties the
WRTE BBEIRIERTT exposures to whom are
HEPERE considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 90,234 1,100 91,334 -
i PERHBEEERFPERBEREMHERR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
Bza®E- other balances of claims on the customers.
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Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue loans

by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advances is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of

the counterparty.

At 31 December 2008, over 90% of the Group’s advances to customers,
including related impaired advances and overdue advances, were
classified under Hong Kong (a position unchanged from that as at 31
December 2007).

5. Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2008 disclosed in Note
1 above represents the combined ratio of DSB, BCM, DSB China,
MEVAS and DAHCI computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the
methods set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting
purposes, the basis of consolidation is described in Note 2.2 to the

financial statements.

The decrease in regulatory capital in the year of 2008 is mainly due to a
higher amount of unrealised losses on available-for-sale securities

having been deducted from DSB’s cpaital base.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks

(Continued)

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows.

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

—EENE CZTTLHF
2008 2007
B BRI E Sovereign exposures 3,841 4,019
N B R AE Public Sector Entity exposures 31,260 32,187
%R B RIRITRE R A Multilateral Development Bank exposures - -
SR1T7 R B A Bank exposures 723,094 735,802
B H R R Securities firm exposures 1,998 1,495
v [ [ B Corporate exposures 2,425,695 2,493,079
S REIR A 5T 2 [ b A HE Collective investment
schemes exposures - -
ReIA Cash items 9,110 9,469
EETERmAE Regulatory retail exposures 672,674 661,379
FEZRBER Residential mortgage loans 777,442 676,287
Hh R 260 AR = A oE Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 566,633 256,330
180 HA | o 7 Past due exposures 49,567 18,127
BEBBERARBEAE 2 ERERKETE Total capital charge for on-balance sheet
exposures 5,261,314 4,888,174
BEEGEERER Direct credit substitutes 15,356 6,221
MR SMEE KRB Transactions-related contingencies 35,985 60
HE Z B RARIEE Trade-related contingencies 4,379 10,241
=3 -iREE Forward forward deposits placed 251 10,216
Hfh A Other commitments 46,930 74,430
[EREL Exchange rate contracts 42,429 41,052
FEESL Interest rate contracts 32,134 11,693
RSN Equity contracts 402 1,434
BEETEIARED Credit derivatives contracts - 51
AEBERINEAE 2 ERERKERHE Total capital charge for off-balance sheet
exposures 177,866 155,398
ZEEKRZEARERLEEE Total capital charge for credit risk 5,439,180 5,043,572

BB A S B A B E AR H 2 B g
BERNBWMHE - WIHAKREZEREAEE

N o

KHRITEEER AT
—ZEN\FEH

This disclosure is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-weighted

amount derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the

institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks
(Continued)

(i) Market risk capital charge

The Group uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market risk.

—22/\F5+=-A=+-H
As at 31 Dec 2008

—EE+F+-A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2007

2 B A B4 2R BERER ERNEHH EREXR
Risk weighted Capital Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
T = @ g A4 (B 15 B ) Interest rate exposures

(including options) 1,090,150 87,212 424,925 33,994

SN BEE [ g 7 2 Foreign exchange exposures
(BiE=Ee L) (including gold and options) 1,719,080 137,526 104,351 8,348
2,809,230 224,738 529,276 42,342

BEBCEREBEARNRITENTEGEELARE
Lt SR B B OF A R P R S8R AT R R SR AT (R D)
ZRKEHEE  RZTE\F+-_A=+—H2Z

FERNESEDRIEREZMENBRARERZ
MEENEE - —TTLFURBIEENENE
ARz BHERKEE  EMENBARZIRER
R RIIRITHE RNERER R o

(iii) HAE R B Z B A E R
AEFRBENEEAEETERERR -

The risk-weighted amount as at 31 December 2008 included those
amounts arising from derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB
China after the HKMA specified that DSB shall consolidate the
exposures of these two subsidiaries in its consolidated capital
adequacy calculation. In 2007, exposures related to these two
subsidiaries were not included and DSB deducted the cost of

investment in these two subsidiaries from its capital base.

(iif) Operational risk capital charge

The Group uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating operational

risk.

—BRNE  —TTLA
2008 2007

BRIFER 2 EARER

6.  JE\BE B

7 S B A LR T B O B B
ENEREBEERER -

REEREINAAEE - FERR  THEA
% MERR - RBESERRRERR - FE
RRzELEEZRRAEEZEEAE  HhE
HEEE SHENTEEER  BRANEERE LR
BRNSRBBRB O EES -

Capital charge for operational risk 418,049 332,673

6. Risk management

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it

through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on the five major areas of risk — credit
risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial, wholesale and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase

financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.
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6. Risk management (Continued)

Market risk arises mainly in Treasury and is associated principally with
the Group’s on-balance sheet positions in the trading book, and off-
balance sheet trading positions including positions taken to hedge

elements of the trading book.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition

resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.
Liquidity risk arises across the Group’s balance sheet.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from

external events.

Apart from the description of financial risk management disclosed in
Note 3 to the financial statements, the other risk management aspects

are disclosed below.

(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in

relation to risk control are:

° the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure that
credit and other risks are properly managed at both the

transaction and portfolio levels;

° the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics and

policy compliance; and

° financial performance by analysis against approved budgets and

analysis of variations in key non-financial measures.

The Executive Committee has been delegated the authority to oversee
and guide the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by Group Risk and different functional

committees.
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6. Risk management (Continued)
(b)  Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring that
policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole. Group
Risk monitors and reports the Group risk positions to the Board via the
Risk Management Committee and the Executive Committee, sets
standards for financial risks and data integrity and ensures that the
financial risks are fully considered in the product planning and pricing
process. Group Risk reviews and approves all credit and risk exposure
policies for the Group including the approval of exposures to new
markets, economic sectors, organisations, credit products and financial
instruments which expose the Group to different types of risks. In
determining risk policies, Group Risk takes into account the guidelines
established by the HKMA, business direction, and risk adjusted
performance of each business. Group Risk is also represented on the
lending or risk committees of the Group’s operating divisions and

businesses.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the Group
to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter into credit
exposures with the confidence that it understands the associated risks

and rewards.

The Group is continuing to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk, increasing the focus of its
risk strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The Group uses
a range of risk measurement and analytical tools in its management of
the various risks which it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these
are continually being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-
changing business needs and the requirements of the regulators. The
Risk Management and Control function is part of Group Risk and reports

directly to the Head of Group Risk.
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6. R B (#) 6.  Risk management (Continued)

[ £BEHMERZEY (c) Business division credit committees
AEEERLEENMOIREHEELEREZES - Each of the operating divisions of the Group has its own credit or risk
ZEZECRERENEREXEBEE AN committee responsible for approving and recommending policies, limits

B REMERIZFNES - GRHIRRAKE
EEERRIESAETECRRERNETRARR
XK BREETD - Bl - BEBZEERRY
BE BB PT5 1R L STIR HO S 755 I 5% 18 2 e 8D O i

(T) 15 8l b
() 1FERRAE
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BREERB AR ([BARE]) REEE
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ARz ERERBAE - REFEF(CEHER
EENMAAEREREETERARAEZ
A R AGE o
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and mandates for risk control within their respective business areas.

This is consistent with the Group’s approach of devolving responsibility

for risk management to the individual business areas under the aegis

of the Group Risk function. As such, each business credit risk function

reports to both Group Risk and the business area which it supports.

(d)

Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (“Standard & Poor’s”),
Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s”) and Fitch Ratings are the
external credit assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) that the Group
uses for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to banks,
sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective investment
schemes as well as securitisation exposures and exposures to

corporates that do not qualify as regulatory retail exposures.

The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in Part
4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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6. Risk management (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(0 Credit risk exposures (Continued)

SATERR
337
EEfEIR
2HREZ
BRARAE
Total
ERAEERERE exposure
LBRAE RRTERR covered by
Exposures after BRMEHE REZER recognised
recognised credit Risk-weighted RELE guarantees
tisk mitigation amounts BRNER Total or
BREE B8 REFR R RETR 4% exposure recognised
ag (2 (3) (2 (33) Total risk- covered by credit
-+ 913 2008 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BREH Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
150 The Group
B, EE&EXA A On-balance sheet
1. EnER 1. Sovereign 3,156,165 3,748,843 - 48,011 - 48,011 - -
2 DEEf 2. Public Sector Entity 207,930 1,937,014 15,671 387,635 3,114 390,749 - -
3 SRBERT 3 Multilateral
Development
Bank - - - - - - - -
4 B 4, Bank /HBA® 25435498 028377 8.766,122 225,191 8,991,313 - -
5 E5H 5, Securities firm 49,958 - 49,958 - 24,979 2979 - -
6. %8 6. Corporate 35,370,082 11,910,178 21,431,622 8,904,371 21,416,814 30,321,185 1,045,297 584,606
1. REREHE 7. Collective
investment
scheme - - - - - - - -
8. BEER 8. Cashitems 676,368 - 2,043,919 - 113,876 113,876 - -
9 BEEZE 9. Regulatory retail 11,456,954 - 11,211,224 - 8,408,419 8,408,419 237,662 8,072
10, iZ%% 10. Residential
mortgage loans 21,084,692 - 19,340,810 - 9,718,026 9,718,026 - 1,743,862
1. EttxAH 11, Other exposures
BRAE which are not
past due
exposures 7,268,418 248,400 6,834,501 250,171 6,832,214 7,082,991 185,427 -
12 BBERAE 12 Pastdue
exposures 453,040 - 453,040 - 619,588 619,558 90,717 9,743
7. BEEEED B, Off-balance sheet
1. BEMTE 1. Off-balance sheet
I8%5% exposures other
5-tt:3 than OTC
IEEHH derivative
JEEBER transactions or
NEREE credit derivative
contracts 1,583,065 48,258 1,534,807 9,652 1,216,604 1,286,256 141,997 -
2, BHMAIRE 2 OTC derivative
2% transactions 2,100,299 1,848,689 251,610 704,386 232,679 937,065 136 36,415
3, EEFAIR 3 Credit derivative
&4 contracts - - - - - - - -

REXEBMEZ  Exposures deducted
BRAR from capital base 1,850,795
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6. Risk management (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

() EEREFAEGE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
SATERR
337
EEfEIR
2HREZ
BRARAE
Total
ERAEERERE exposure
LBRAE RATERR covered by
Exposures after BRMEHE REZER recognised
recognised credit Risk-weighted RESE guarantees
risk mitigation amounts BRNER Total or
BREE B8 REHR B RETR 4% exposure recognised
ag (2 (33) (2 (53) Total risk- covered by credit
EEtE 2007 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BREH Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
558 The Group
B BEEERM A Onbalance sheet
1. BhEE 1. Soverign 1,161,631 1,586,598 - 50,651 - 50,651 - -
2. DEEf 2. Public Sector Entity 94,911 2,011,661 - 402,333 - 402,333 - -
3 ZEEESRT 3 Multlateral
Development
Bank - - - - - - - -
4 B 4, Bank 25,502,511 26,410,400 195,129 9,128,433 69,092 9,197,525 - -
5 E5E 5. Securities firm 44453 11,796 32,657 2,359 16,328 18,687 - -
] 6. Corporate 37,693,062 12,076,318 22,971,509 8,303,779 22,971,509 31,275,288 1,339,569 1,444,061
7. EERETE 7 Colletive
investment
scheme 152,024 - - - - - - 152,024
8. H2EH 8. Cash items 421,629 - 2,053,439 - 118,357 118,357 - -
9 EEZE 9. Regulatory retail 11,301,233 - 11,022,985 - 8,267,239 8,267,239 273,183 5,065
10, B=2%5 10, Residential
mortgage loans 19,351,268 - 17,437,788 - 8,453,583 8,453,583 - 1,913,480
1, Efpred 11, Other exposures
BlAs which are not
past due
exposures 3,350,125 - 3,204,130 - 3,204,130 3,204,130 145,995 -
12, DEERAE 12 Pastdueexposures 171,601 5,087 166,514 - 226,589 226,589 42,956 5,087
7. BEBEFN B, Offbalance shest
1. BEMTE 1. Offt-balance sheet
A% exposures other
EENE than OTC
TAGHI derivative
LEEBER transactions or
EREE credlt derivative
contracts 2,102,752 697,636 1,405,116 139,527 1,118,668 1,258,195 235,685 -
2 BOMTEIE 2. OTC dervative
% transactions 1,834,566 1,473,095 361,471 349,488 327,755 677,243 1,822 19,776
3 EEMETE 3. Credt derivative
&4 contracts 3,176 3176 - 635 - 635 - -
WEREETEZ  Exposures deducted
Bl from capital base 2,988,881

216 AFRTEEERLT
—TT \EER



(ABEE T TLF)R)

6.
T

JE B A B ()

) {7 B E K ()

() EERRFAEE)

1. A2BEKEESEHREWER - 1k
ERIFFERE L)

2. SEEAEAFEREBETETIRZA
G AHE o HERR AT AR 2 LB R (BDR A R
FBEERITIR RBESE - BER
EARRRIER 2 BB INEED2ER TE
BB RARANE 2 (E R EEEETA
BRIEEACT VNS S A R e ]
BREEITFR)

3. KA LB T RS E TR 2R
R o

(i) XBHEFIZERERAE

AEEBRZZEFERTHREREERANZS
SMTZHNDTTER 5 - BBV AR S RE
ENTERSANERRFRZIFHNRE
HHREWEE - Bt EA0NERZEER
BAEIRZEEAHE@ANAEEZH
BEELESE) - ZEERRAEERRED
SEBBERBAEERARTRSY
FORBREBEERE 2 —MHMER - HFE
SRR R A - R EE R R

BERRESXNREIRWEFLBERL
BHAKOERREHELFARERE
o AEERERSGHFEMABMGEER
BRESREHEBEEARBEAFEAR - K
SENRFEEELY - RRBEERZ
WX EEEE -

fFE I 5B

Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(d)

Risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(0 Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note
1. principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2. including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and exposures
which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which do not have an
issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are determined under
the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer rating assigned to
the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue rating of any other
exposures of the obligor).

3. exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and outstanding
amounts on net open positions arising from over-the-counter
(“OTC”) derivative transactions, repo-style transactions and credit
derivative contracts booked in its banking book or trading book.
The credit risk exposures associated with these contracts are
predominantly their fair values (i.e. the positive marked-to-market
values favourable to the Group). These credit risk exposures
together with potential exposures from market movements are
managed as part of the overall lending limits allowed to
counterparties. Collateral or other security is generally not

obtained for such credit risk exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash or a
delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To mitigate
settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established for each
counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements on any day. The
Group will also enter into netting arrangements and make
settlement on the basis of delivery against payment as

appropriate.
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6. R B (#) 6.  Risk management (Continued)
(1) f&5 & E b ) (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) XKBEHFEERBAE(E) (i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TERBAAREERBSIMIERS - O The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
FRAZGREETERGEHNZEEREE exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions, repo-style
R\ B A HE o transactions and credit derivative contracts.
—EENF ZETAF
2008 2007
EEITERS EENERS
SBMTER S EH BIMTERS &8
oTC Credit oTC Credit
derivative derivative derivative derivative
REE The Group transactions contracts  transactions contracts
ATEESELE Gross total positive fair value 1,089,861 - 702,337 -
EESEHE Credit equivalent amounts 2,100,300 - 1,816,246 3,176
RAEHFMEE Rl Value of recognised collateral by type
-EBES — debt securities - - - -
- Hit - others 136 - 1,822 -
[\ B D0 B RE Risk weighted amounts 937,065 - 668,060 635

218 AHRTEEERLT
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Risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(i)

Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit

exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as

follows.
—EENF —ETtF
2008 2007
BEEITERS EETERS
a8 &5
Credit Credit
BMTERS derivative SIMTER H derivative
OoTC contracts OTC contracts
derivative (63 derivative (1)
AEE The Group transactions (Note) transactions (Note)
REHE Notional amounts:
- REEM — Public sector entities 217,149 - 437,136 -
- 897 - Banks 86,907,023 - 101,703,893 390,045
-% - Corporates 11,482,924 - 7,013,660 -
- Hfh - Others 1,966,277 - 1,376,738 -
100,573,373 - 110,531,427 390,045
SESEEE/ Credit equivalent amounts/net
EERRFE credit exposures:
- REER - Public sector entities 12,844 - 4,967 -
- 8R17 - Banks 1,766,722 - 1,346,614 3,176
-E - Corporates 168,004 - 220,717 -
- HA - Others 152,730 - 243,948 -
2,100,300 - 1,816,246 3,176
[P 0 SR Risk-weighted amounts:
- REER - Public sector entities 2,569 - 994 -
- R1T - Banks 654,805 - 326,075 635
-E - Corporates 144,952 - 118,106 -
- Hith - Others 134,739 - 222,885 -
937,065 - 668,060 635
s Note:
EETERSEN Credit derivative contracts
“BENE  CTTLF
2008 2007
R BHREE 60 REHE
Contract/ Contract/
AEE The Group notional amount notional amount
ARAEBZEEHRE Used for the Group’s credit portfolio
- EREHRBRER — Credit default swaps
S EBERE Protection sold - 390,045
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6. R B (#) 6.  Risk management (Continued)
) {5 B BE () (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) AL EE (i) ~ Credit risk mitigation
REEFKAZREEEREEB—RBER The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
15 (BAR) RAD R LUR D& AR piEE - generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
Wz B mBENERRRETER - T8 reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
EYERNETMALNELEERE - Tfu%ﬁb are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and public
BRIZEPER  REBIMZRBBUN - light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to customers,
EEUREEAER foﬁi&/il—ﬁ*ﬁ the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued by
R o governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.
TEHAEERM I ITHEDELERLER The value of all real estate properties taken as collateral is
RIS E o [ EEE}E‘Z#&WW% NG| appraised prior to the inception of the loans. For property
MEEE/ELSINEABE R - B collateral supporting problem accounts, their open market values
ez R ZS%IZBZmﬁTEEI are appraised at least every six months. For property collateral
TERATEREE - that has been repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for
realisation as soon as practicable.
(5) i 35 J B (e) Market risk

AEBEE AR 2 THER - FRAZ AR
B IR M AR P ARET I B A M 3.3 -

) BER IR
AEBEFRARE @) A BEEAAEEFEE
ZEERR - AEBEATISERRZKER
e
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The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the risk

management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note 3.3

to the financial statements.

(f)

Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to calculate

the credit risk for securitisation exposures. The Group is an investing

institution for all classes of exposures below.
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6. R B (#) 6.  Risk management (Continued)
(©) BERBZH E) (f)  Asset securitisation (Continued)
FAELR LB E AR ZER R E Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAls that the Group has used
Rz BEHERBAERTRA 25 AT HEE - in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures below.
—EENE 2008
rE The Group
BB fn 4 B AE TR B
KEE £ 4] Exposures deducted from
thEE Risk- ERRE BRUOER i 0 g A&
#FH Securitisation Outstanding weighted Capital Core Supplementary
BB AEE exposures amounts amount requirements Capital Capital
BHREEM Synthetic securitisations
-ZBMHERETR - Structured investment
vehicles 134,269 134,269 10,742 625 624
134,269 134,269 10,742 625 624
—B2tE 2007
r& The Group
BB fn 4 B AE TR B
KEE £ 4] Exposures deducted from
thE Risk- ERRE BRUOER i 0 g A&
#FH Securitisation Outstanding weighted Capital Core Supplementary
BB EE exposures amounts amount requirements Capital Capital
EHER Synthetic securitisations
-REEUERETER - Structured investment
vehicles 1,443,514 - - 1,201,179 242,335
-HTEFEA - Taxi loan portfolios 29,925 5,985 479 - -
1,473,439 5,985 479 1,201,179 242,335
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6. R B (#) 6.  Risk management (Continued)

(5) BRAT MR Z e i Il i (g) Equity exposures in banking book
REEMEBIERE D ERRE RFIERER The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for
HISRHEEAIGEE M - RAAIFIEERILER strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes at
B2 BRI B AR EZIRE T R BAKERSE inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital
i - mSRBYE - HE BRRENEEET appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment
EFEEE 2 NS - KM EBBEFMAT analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,
Bz HAth TR BRI 5 ol fEaT(h « FTRFERIR B IR marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger, and
M5B EEEME - various other control guidelines specified in the Treasury Policy Manual.

Equity holdings are valued on the basis of bid market prices.

—EENE _—ZTTLF

E The Group 2008 2007
e EBmMER 2 ke Realised gains from
sales/liquidations 18,595 11,456
REIE 7 Fh s Unrealised revaluation gains
-ERsaHEBEERERN N ERB85E — Amount included in reserves but not
through income statement 1,496 4,196
- HURKI & AN 2 k8 - Amount deducted from
supplementary capital 237 20
() RAT IR Z A 2% ) B (h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book
g%
Currency
BT EYH BT Hit &t
—2ENE 2008 HK$ us$ EUR Others Total
MEEEE Interest rate risk shock
tAZE®T +200 basis points
- BRI m CR ) — Increase/(Decline)
in earnings (59,000) (21,000) 86,000 (116,000) (110,000)
=L
Currency
BT EYH BT HAit &t
—EBLF 2007 HK$ us$ EUR Others Total
MEEpEE Interest rate risk shock
tA-E®T +200 basis points
- BRI M, CR ) — Increase/(Decline)
in earnings (116,000) 45,000 96,000 (34,000) (9,000)
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6. Risk management (Continued)
(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management and operational
risk officers from each business and support function, and operating
through a set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk
incident reporting and tracking system, and control self assessment
and key risk indicator tools. Together with a well established internal
control systems, operational risk in most situations can be adequately
identified, assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational
risk framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,

awareness and training programs are conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of system
failure or disasters, back-up sites and operational recovery policies and
plans have been established and tested for all critical business and

operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
Reporting and assessment of the performance of operational risk
management are monitored by the Group Risk and reported to the

Group’s Risk Management Committee.

(j)  Reputation risk

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high standard
of corporate governance and management oversight, maintenance of
effective policies and procedures with emphasis on internal control,
risk management and compliance; proper staff training and supervision;
proper handling of customer complaints or dissatisfaction; and
adherence to sound business practices. Standards are set and policies
and procedures are established by the Group in all areas, which operate

to reduce vulnerability to reputation risk.
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6. Risk management (Continued)
(k) Strategic risk

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial and
market positions of the Group because of poor strategic decisions,
unacceptable financial performance, improper implementation of

strategies and lack of effective response to the market changes.

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group, ensure business
strategies are developed to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic
development and implementation to secure compatibility with the
Group’s strategic goals, review business performance, deploy proper
resources to achieve the Group’s objectives, and authorise

management to take appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

(1) Implementation of the Basel II Capital Accord

The revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il has come
into force for all locally incorporated authorized institutions in Hong
Kong from January 2007. To implement Basel Il, the HKMA published
the final Banking (Capital) Rules and Banking (Disclosure) Rules at the
end of 2006.

Basel Il is structured around three “pillars”. Pillar 1 sets out the minimum
capital requirements for a bank’s operational risk, in addition to revising
the “Basel I” treatment of credit risk and market risk. Pillar 2 requires
that banks should have in place sound internal processes to assess
the adequacy of their capital, based on a thorough assessment of their
risks including those risks not covered under Pillar 1, and that
supervisors should carry out supervisory review of this process. Pillar 3
complements Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 through enhanced market
transparency and market discipline by requiring banks to make public
disclosure of information on their risk profiles, capital adequacy and

risk management.

Starting January 2007, DSB and MEVAS adopt the standardised
approach for credit risk and market risk, and the basic indicator
approach for operational risk. These are the default approaches as
specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly, the Group has
overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the standards

required for these approaches.
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6. R B (#) 6.  Risk management (Continued)

() HZIEN A A (m) The role of Internal Audit

AEHEzEZRE— B  FEXBEREER The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
BP9 - P RBGETI A IS AR B T R IE E)EFT assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on enhancing
RIFEI RIS - ZEE M — B IERTESRE and sustaining sound internal control in all business and operational
BHNEEEZZEEL N EMER - FZE units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the Group Audit
BRIBEBARERNABEGEES - Hlaas Rt Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.
Fit  BIEM RGBS A BRAEBEIEH RGH The Division conducts a wide variety of internal control activities such
TR - BUORMA ME as compliance audits and operations and systems reviews to ensure

the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control of

the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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“TENETH

To the shareholders of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 200, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009
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Major Banking Subsidiaries — Lists of Branches

a5 b 1 &5 BR
Branch Address Tel Fax
RFBITERAA
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
EBEDTT
Hong Kong Island Branches
BERBF DT BRI ET205%
Aberdeen 20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen 2554 5463 2554 0843
DEEETROLNIT SEERBISHKEFHOMSE E10%H
Admiralty Centre Shop no. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 3110 1886 3110 2818
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty
o % D17 i 8 /2 ¥ JE 558 48255
Causeway Bay 482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay 2891 2201 2591 6037
IR 51T B ER19RIRIRAE
Central Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427
BE LT 2 235268-2705% I A= i T
Fortress Hill G/F., Sunny House, 268-270 King's Road 2922 3389 2887 7604
ETITEDT HLITE108R AF R P O T
Gloucester Road G/F., Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road 2507 8866 2507 8654
#5517 B 55 b 87 75 AT 1358 & 87 K E 1 T ASR &
Happy Valley Shop A, G/F., Kam Yuk Mansion, No.13 Yuk Sau Street, Happy Valley 2572 0708 2572 0718
BIEL 1T S V8 % 2 15710055 25 1€ 28 45 7E 37 3 b T~ G595 47
Heng Fa Chuen Unit G59, G/F., Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 2558 7485 2889 2520
100 Shing Tai Road, Chaiwan
HErHEHT BT I B 16457
Johnston Road 164 Johnston Road, Wanchai 2572 8849 2891 3743
EAHTT 2 i8433-4375 R K B
North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King's Road 2561 8241 2811 4474
BlROBRDTT 8 UM R 2 18 96351 Hh T A4S AR
Quarry Bay Flat A4, G/F., 963 King's Road, Quarry Bay 2884 4802 2884 3151
LEESTT L HEEST-87 I A R M T GBI &
Shaukiwan Shop no. G8, G/F., Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904
AVEEDTT SF KB PE443-4535% 1 T~ 15-165% &
Shek Tong Tsui Shop nos. 15-16, G/F., 443-453 Queen's Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539
FIRATT {28038 FP 28857 5 i i 3 K E b T B25E#:E1/F BE
Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F., No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central 2851 6281 2581 2216

228 AFBFTEEERAF
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Major Banking Subsidiaries — Lists of Branches

a5 b 1 &5 BR
Branch Address Tel Fax
REFRITHRA T
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
hEEDT
Kowloon Branches
HIRE DT BEE U B R B 625k BE BE R A B 5 — B N A2
Hoi Yuen Road Portion 2 of Factory A, G/F, Block 1, Camelpaint Buildings, 2191 8103 2191 8723
62 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong
[ A AW MR AT4-65% =4 E T A
Hunghom Shop no. A, G/F., Tak Yue Mansion, 4-6 Dock Street, Hunghom 2365 8110 2363 5917
EHD 1T 1 SR 2B 33555
Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 2385 0161 2782 0993
BYESTT BB ESAOF T R —12
Kwun Tong G/F. & 1/F., 49 Mut Wah Street, Kwun Tong 2389 6219 2341 4638
EZHEWHIT EF U E EIERE S 1ENISHCH
Mei Foo Sun Chuen Portion C of Shop no. N95, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall, 2370 2660 2370 2006
Mei Foo Sun Chuen
HADT A A 5 BUE 6975
Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 2391 9104
BRI 33 R R AL FE 1095
San Po Kong 10 Choi Hung Road, San Po Kong 2326 5165 2350 0894
IR 1T IR R EE 12455
Sham Shui Po G/F., 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo 2361 0951 2958 0985
ERERDT BE/21ERE S — Bl — 12 F5A-F6ASR
Telford Gardens Units F5A-FBA, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967
+ 51T + M&E237AR S 2 KE
Tokwawan |I-Feng Mansion, 237A Tokwawan Road 2365 9035 2363 5696
15 ER DT 1B ERERGREEH T G31-325k a4
Tseung Kwan O Shop nos. G31-32, G/F., The Edge, 2752 1223 2752 1098
9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O
HER ,_ S
FEWMALDTT BERMEEALE = IE127RE
Tseung Kwan O Shop no. 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza lll, Tseung Kwan O 2927 2101 2702 2305
(Metro City Plaza)
EZIEN ) LY IH R BE66-705% & T KE
Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 2366 9121 2311 1491
S i 5 1T A i 11b 58 B 561 5%
Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 2385 9285
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TZMBIRTT - DT MER
Major Banking Subsidiaries — Lists of Branches

a5 b 1 &5 BR
Branch Address Tel Fax
REFRITHRA T
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
FREDT
New Territories Branches
EE DT ZORIE S ICE 2 CREM T
Kwai Fong Block C, G/F., Podium Level, New Kwai Fong Gardens, 2487 8033 2489 1253
Kwai Chung
BEIES DT > H I T8 B 6085% 5 ¥ 1 LI &% — #8287-2885%
Ma On Shan Plaza Shop nos. 287-288, Level 2, Ma On Shan Plaza, 2929 4137 2633 3432
608 Sai Sha Road, Ma On Shan, Shatin
SXWH 1T T X B WEK 3355 5 7Kk 108 D-ESR 4
Maritime Square Shop nos. 108D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 2435 1368 2435 1582
B D17 P95 22 25 168-23657% /8 # 1 93-9557 £
Ocean Walk Shop nos. 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130
WIHEDTT ZEY IR E2885
Sha Tsui Road G/F., No. 288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 26151510 2615 1099
DHEDIT o W A58 L i T 95 A8
Shatin Shop no. 9, G/F., Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 2601 2413
FRD1T KT & B8 55-595% JK RUE b T BT 4
Sheung Shui Shop no. B, G/F., Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, 2671 5030 2672 1533
Sheung Shui
AHED1T NI & 24 B X 3 iR A 012D 55
Tai Po Shop no. 012D, Tai Po Mega Mall, On Chee Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637
NE DT AEKXKEES LEH T 5504
Tai Wai Shop no. 5, G/F., Kam Shan Building, Tai Wai Road, Tai Wai 2691 1272 2606 1531
RKEEE DT KIKE B = iEis — #1325 &
Tin Shui Wai Chung Fu Shop no. 132, Chung Fu Shopping Centre Stage 2, Tin Shui Wai 2448 9008 2448 9112
ZEDT EEXTE14-1657 5B KE
Tsuen Wan Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan 2492 8102 2415 0984
RBDIT AUEL || 3RF BB B0 87 1555 SR 48 & B b TS 2355 48
Tung Chung Shop 23, G/F., Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street, 2109 3484 2109 4353
Tung Chung, Lantau Island
ZERWHTT 1) 45 2= BA W 2 AF 7Y 455 2011 5% 4
Wah Ming Estate Shop no. 201, Wah Ming Shopping Centre, Wah Ming Estate, Fanling 2677 8830 2669 9950
TP AT TLEA % B B 59B5 [F & 12
Yuen Long Tung Cheong Mansion, 59B On Ning Road, Yuen Long 2479 0167 2474 8498

w217
Shenzhen Branch

RIS 1T F BRI 2R A R REORYI RO KE1504B=
Shenzhen Unit 1504B, Shenzhen Development Center Building, (86-755) (86-755)
Renmin Nan Road, Shenzhen, China 2519 9033 8205 0399
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TZ2MBRIT - DITHMER
Major Banking Subsidiaries — Lists of Branches

a5 b 1 &5 BR
Branch Address Tel Fax
EHBITHRAF
MEVAS Bank Limited
BEEBEST
Hong Kong Island Branches
HRIRHAT AR 28 A8 P 195 IR IR K B A255
Central A2 Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Rd, Central 2921 2485 2840 1737
HEFBDIT BT 58375-379% Fl B 7 ¥ K E i TESR 48
Hennessy Road Shop E, G/F, Lee West Commercial Building, 2591 0353 2147 0823

375-379 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai
BREREF DT EFEAREBEHF 855 T

Queen's Road G/F, No. 85 Queen's Road Central 2537 3844 2537 2669
Central
hEEDTT
Kowloon Branches
HEADTT NEFZH K AB1REENEM TERS
Mongkok Shop E, G/F,Carprio Mansion, 1 Lai Chi Kok Road 2928 6705 2374 5557
KAEHIT JUBESS P IRIE O3B 750 8T8 K E b TESR &R
Tsim Sha Tsui Shop E, G/F, Sands Building, 17 Hankow Road, 2367 4312 2366 2892
Tsimshatsui
HRAEDIT
New Territories Branch
BRID 1T HPFIMESE e Eh T 1657
Tuen Mun UG Shop 16, Tuen Mun Town Plaza Phase 2, Tuen Mun 2450 2818 2450 5566
217 o 1t z:
Branch Address Tel
RERIT (FE) BRAE
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
41T YT RS R B 5047508 Y| B R R1T KE161EB-F « K& T
Head Office Unit B-F & K, 16/F, Shenzhen Development Bank Building, (86-755) 2519 9033
5047 Shennan Dong Road, Shenzhen
YR 5 2 1T YT R E LR 201450 IR E RN BEAR & B3 H B

Shenzhen Zhenye G/F, Block A, Zhenye Building, 2014 Baoan Nan Road, Shenzhen (86-755) 2502 6935
Sub-Branch

BN EgTmEEIL k865t 1/EB

Shanghai Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Shanghai (86-21) 2411 3388
2017 HEME L1365k E1-2[E

Nanchang 1/F & 2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, Nanchang (86-791) 6887 333
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TZMBIRTT - DT MER
Major Banking Subsidiaries — Lists of Branches

Almirante Lacerda

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, 43-B

217 o3k =:
Branch Address Tel
B EBITHERAD A
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
B 21T
Macau Branches
A RTT K 55 B 57255
Main Branch Avenida da Praia Grande, No.572 (853) 8791 0000
REBS1T 7 L R 2 B K 55 B 4357 B

(853) 2831 6191

New Horta e Costa

Avenida Horta e Costa, Nos.53-59, R/c,
Edf. Grand Oceania, Lojas A,B,D.

BARDIT B IREI5818 K5 B 30-30E5%
Areia Preta Estrada Marginal do Hip6dromo, 30-30E (853) 2837 8262
MELTEST JRPY = 72K TS B8 53-595% 1 T i= ¥ 5 ¥FA,B, D

(853) 2821 6523/
(853) 2837 1669

Ponte e Horta

Praca Ponte e Horta, 29

BEDT ENEEE TR BREMNIE3 B A

Kin Wa Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta S/N, (853) 2845 0759
Edif. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja “A”

I AE DT & i K E740-4255 Ak T

Mercadores Rua dos Mercadores, 40-42, R/C A (853) 2857 2610

ST R F 4 & 35315-363 5% 1& % A .0 T OFf

Nape Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcgéao, Nos.315-363, (853) 2872 2515
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

BEEMHTT B E i H4-65%

Palha Rua da Palha, 4-6 (853) 2837 3762

AT A DT a7 12953

(853) 2837 8704

DRI S 1T =T/ & 1540258
Ribeira do Patane Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No.402, R/C (853) 2895 2942
TEZAMERHIT + % A FHT RS B 6955 A
Sidénio Pais Avenida Sidénio Pais, 69-A (853) 2857 3637
allnfT BEBERA Y E+ —EHMHEE £ 18 “CCHl
Toi San Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa No. S/N, (853) 2823 8483
Jardim Cidade Nova Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”
KEDIT
Taipa Branch

KFERATT
Tak Fok, Taipa

IFERAGRERESEEFHE
Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden,
Loja “F”

(853) 2882 1308

BBRADIT
Coloane Branch

IR T
Coloane

[& % Al #1.95% D
Largo do Matadouro, 9-D

(853) 2888 2374
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